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Form C-U: Progress Update

Form C/A: Amendment to Offering Statement

O Check box if Amendment is material and investors must reconfirm within five business days.
Form C-AR: Annual Report

Form C-AR/A: Amendment to Annual Report

Form C-TR: Termination of Reporting

Name of Issuer:

Smart Vylon, LLC

Legal status of Issuer:

Form:

Series LLC

Jurisdiction of Incorporation/Organization:
Delaware

Date of Organization:

December 17,2019

Physical Address of Issuer:

José Maria Velasco 13-502, San José Insurgentes, Benito Juarez, CDMX, 03900

Website of Issuer:

https://www.smartvylon.mx/congreso-park/

Is there a co-issuer? yes _X_no.

Name of Intermediary through which the Offering will be Conducted:

OpenDeal Portal LLC dba Republic

CIK Number of Intermediary:

0001751525

SEC File Number of Intermediary:



007-00167

CRD Number of Intermediary:

283874

Name of qualified third party “Escrow Agent” which the Offering will utilize:

Prime Trust, LLC

Amount of compensation to be paid to the intermediary, whether as a dollar amount or a percentage of the offering
amount, or a good faith estimate if the exact amount is not available at the time of the filing, for conducting the

offering, including the amount of referral and any other fees associated with the offering:

At the conclusion of the offering, the issuer shall pay a fee of four percent (4%) of the amount raised in the offering
to the intermediary.

Any other direct or indirect interest in the issuer held by the intermediary, or any arrangement for the intermediary
to acquire such an interest:

The Intermediary will also receive compensation in the form of securities equal to one percent (1%) of the total number
of the securities sold in the offering.

Type of Security Offered:

Units of Membership Interests

Target Number of Securities to be Offered:
1,400

Price (or Method for Determining Price):
$100.00

Target Offering Amount:

$140,000

Oversubscriptions Accepted:
Yes
O No

Oversubscriptions will be Allocated:

[0 Pro-rata basis

[ First-come, first-served basis

Other: At the Intermediary’s discretion

Maximum offering amount (if different from Target Offering Amount):
$980,500

Deadline to reach the Target Offering Amount:



January 30, 2022

If the sum of the investment commitments does not equal or exceed the target offering amount at the deadline
to reach the target offering amount, no Securities will be sold in the offering, investment commitments will be
cancelled and committed funds will be returned.

Current Number of Employees:
0

Most recent fiscal year-end

Prior fiscal year-end

(2020) 2 (2019)

$0

Total Assets $330,100
Cash & Cash Equivalents $330,100 $0
Accounts Receivable $0 $0
Short-term Debt $0 $0
Long-term Debt $0 $0
$0

Revenues/Sales $0

Cost of Goods Sold $0 $0
Taxes Paid $0 $0
Net Income $0 $0

The jurisdictions in which the issuer intends to offer the securities:

Alabama, Alaska, Arizona, Arkansas, California, Colorado, Connecticut, Delaware, District Of Columbia, Florida,
Georgia, Guam, Hawaii, Idaho, Illinois, Indiana, Iowa, Kansas, Kentucky, Louisiana, Maine, Maryland,
Massachusetts, Michigan, Minnesota, Mississippi, Missouri, Montana, Nebraska, Nevada, New Hampshire, New
Jersey, New Mexico, New York, North Carolina, North Dakota, Ohio, Oklahoma, Oregon, Pennsylvania, Puerto Rico,
Rhode Island, South Carolina, South Dakota, Tennessee, Texas, Utah, Vermont, Virgin Islands, U.S., Virginia,
Washington, West Virginia, Wisconsin, Wyoming, American Samoa, and Northern Mariana Islands.

! This table lists assets of Nectar Series, none of which will be available for use by Congreso Series or assets of

Congreso Series.

2 Congreso Series is a newly formed series of Smart Vylon, LLC and has no assets.
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Smart Vylon, LLC

SMART VYLON

Up to $980,500 of Congreso Series Membership Interests

Smart Vylon, LLC, a Delaware series limited liability company, (the “Company,” “we,” “us”, or “our”),
is offering a minimum amount of $140,000 (the “Target Offering Amount”) and up to a maximum amount
0f $980,500 (the “Maximum Offering Amount”) of membership interests in Congreso Series ("Congreso
Series"), a series of the Company (the “Congreso Series Interests” or “Securities”), as described in this
Form C (this “Offering”). We must raise an amount equal to or greater than the Target Offering Amount
by January 30, 2022 (the “Offering Deadline”). Unless we raise at least the Target Offering Amount by
the Offering Deadline, no Securities will be sold in this Offering, all investment commitments will be
cancelled, and all committed funds will be returned.

As a Delaware series limited liability company, the Company intends to establish other “Series” to act as
separate property-owning subsidiaries. The Securities represent an investment solely in the Congreso Series
and do not represent an investment in the Company, the Company’s manager, or any other Series of the
Company. We do not anticipate that the Congreso Series will own anything other than the properties
described herein.

Potential purchasers of the Securities are referred to herein as “Investors” or “you”. The rights and
obligations of Investors with respect to the Securities are set forth below in the section titled “The Offering
and the Securities—The Securities”. In order to purchase the Securities, you must complete the purchase
process through our intermediary, OpenDeal Portal LLC dba Republic (the “Intermediary”). All
committed funds will be held in escrow with Prime Trust, LLC (the “Escrow Agent”) until the Target
Offering Amount has been met or exceeded and one or more closings occur. Investors may cancel an
investment commitment until up to 48 hours prior to the Offering Deadline, or such earlier time as the
Company designates pursuant to Regulation CF, using the cancellation mechanism provided by the
Intermediary.

Investment commitments may be accepted or rejected by us, in our sole and absolute discretion. We have
the right to cancel or rescind our offer to sell the Securities at any time and for any reason. The Intermediary
has the ability to reject any investment commitment and may cancel or rescind our offer to sell the Securities
at any time for any reason.



. Service Fees and
Price to Investors Commissions (1)(2) Net Proceeds
Minimum Individual
Purchase Amount (3) $200 $8.00 $192.00
Maximum Individual
Purchase Amount (3)(4) 100,000 4,000.00 96,000
Target Offering Amount $140,000 $5,600 $134,400
Maximum Offering $980,500 $39,220 $941,280
Amount
(1 This excludes fees to Company’s advisors, such as attorneys and accountants.
2) In addition to the four percent (4%) fee shown here, the Intermediary will also receive a securities
commission equal to one percent (1%) of the Securities sold in this Offering.
3) The Company reserves the right to amend the Minimum Individual Purchase Amount and Maximum

Individual Purchase Amount, in its sole discretion. In particular, the Company may elect to
participate in one of the Intermediary's special investment programs and may offer alternative
Minimum Individual Purchase Amounts and Maximum Individual Purchase Amounts to Investors
participating in such programs without notice.

@) Subject to any other investment amount limitations applicable to the Investor under Regulation CF.

A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this Offering unless you
can afford to lose your entire investment.

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of the Company and
the terms of the Offering, including the merits and risks involved. These Securities have not been
recommended or approved by any federal or state securities commission or regulatory authority.
Furthermore, these authorities have not passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this document.

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of any Securities offered
or the terms of the Offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or completeness of any Offering
document or literature.

These Securities are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission has not made an independent determination that these Securities are exempt
from registration.

THESE SECURITIES INVOLVE A HIGH DEGREE OF RISK THAT MAY NOT BE APPROPRIATE
FOR ALL INVESTORS. THERE ARE ALSO SIGNIFICANT UNCERTAINTIES ASSOCIATED WITH
AN INVESTMENT IN OUR COMPANY AND THE SECURITIES. THE SECURITIES OFFERED
HEREBY ARE NOT PUBLICLY TRADED. THERE IS NO PUBLIC MARKET FOR THE SECURITIES
AND ONE MAY NEVER DEVELOP. AN INVESTMENT IN OUR COMPANY IS HIGHLY
SPECULATIVE. THE SECURITIES SHOULD NOT BE PURCHASED BY ANYONE WHO CANNOT
BEAR THE FINANCIAL RISK OF THIS INVESTMENT FOR AN INDEFINITE PERIOD OF TIME
AND WHO CANNOT AFFORD THE LOSS OF THEIR ENTIRE INVESTMENT. SEE THE SECTION
OF THIS FORM C TITLED “RISK FACTORS” BEGINNING ON PAGE 3.



THE SECURITIES OFFERED HEREBY WILL HAVE TRANSFER RESTRICTIONS. NO
SECURITIES MAY BE PLEDGED, TRANSFERRED, RESOLD OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF BY
ANY INVESTOR EXCEPT PURSUANT TO RULE 501 OF REGULATION CF. YOU SHOULD BE
AWARE THAT YOU WILL BE REQUIRED TO BEAR THE FINANCIAL RISKS OF THIS
INVESTMENT FOR AN INDEFINITE PERIOD OF TIME.

YOU ARE NOT TO CONSTRUE THE CONTENTS OF THIS FORM C AS LEGAL, ACCOUNTING
OR TAX ADVICE OR AS INFORMATION NECESSARILY APPLICABLE TO YOUR PARTICULAR
FINANCIAL SITUATION. EACH INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT THEIR OWN FINANCIAL
ADVISER, COUNSEL AND ACCOUNTANT AS TO LEGAL, TAX AND RELATED MATTERS
CONCERNING THEIR INVESTMENT.

THIS OFFERING IS ONLY EXEMPT FROM REGISTRATION UNDER THE LAWS OF THE UNITED
STATES AND ITS TERRITORIES. NO OFFER IS BEING MADE IN ANY JURISDICTION NOT
LISTED ABOVE. PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS ARE SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR DETERMINING
THE PERMISSIBILITY OF THEIR PARTICIPATING IN THIS OFFERING, INCLUDING
OBSERVING ANY OTHER REQUIRED LEGAL FORMALITIES AND SEEKING CONSENT FROM
THEIR LOCAL REGULATOR, IF NECESSARY. THE INTERMEDIARY FACILITATING THIS
OFFERING IS LICENSED AND REGISTERED SOLELY IN THE UNITED STATES AND HAS NOT
SECURED, AND HAS NOT SOUGHT TO SECURE, A LICENSE OR WAIVER OF THE NEED FOR
SUCH LICENSE IN ANY OTHER JURISDICTION. THE COMPANY, THE ESCROW AGENT AND
THE INTERMEDIARY, EACH RESERVE THE RIGHT TO REJECT ANY INVESTMENT
COMMITMENT MADE BY ANY PROSPECTIVE INVESTOR, WHETHER FOREIGN OR
DOMESTIC.

SPECIAL NOTICE TO FOREIGN INVESTORS

IF YOU LIVE OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES, IT IS YOUR RESPONSIBILITY TO FULLY
OBSERVE THE LAWS OF ANY RELEVANT TERRITORY OR JURISDICTION OUTSIDE THE
UNITED STATES IN CONNECTION WITH ANY PURCHASE OF THE SECURITIES, INCLUDING
OBTAINING REQUIRED GOVERNMENTAL OR OTHER CONSENTS OR OBSERVING ANY
OTHER REQUIRED LEGAL OR OTHER FORMALITIES. WE RESERVE THE RIGHT TO DENY THE
PURCHASE OF THE SECURITIES BY ANY FOREIGN INVESTOR.

NOTICE REGARDING THE ESCROW AGENT

PRIME TRUST LLC, THE ESCROW AGENT SERVICING THE OFFERING, HAS NOT
INVESTIGATED THE DESIRABILITY OR ADVISABILITY OF AN INVESTMENT IN THIS
OFFERING OR THE SECURITIES OFFERED HEREIN. THE ESCROW AGENT MAKES NO
REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, ENDORSEMENTS, OR JUDGEMENT ON THE MERITS OF
THE OFFERING OR THE SECURITIES OFFERED HEREIN. THE ESCROW AGENT’S
CONNECTION TO THE OFFERING IS SOLELY FOR THE LIMITED PURPOSES OF ACTING AS A
SERVICE PROVIDER.

The Company has certified that all of the following statements are TRUE for the Company in connection
with this Offering:

(1) Is organized under, and subject to, the laws of a State or territory of the United States or the District
of Columbia;



(2) Is not subject to the requirement to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) (15 U.S.C. 78m or 780(d));

(3) Is not an investment company, as defined in Section 3 of the Investment Company Act of 1940 (the
“Investment Company Act”)(15 U.S.C. 80a-3), or excluded from the definition of investment
company by Section 3(b) or Section 3(c) of the Investment Company Act (15 U.S.C. 80a-3(b) or
80a-3(c));

(4) Isnot ineligible to offer or sell securities in reliance on Section 4(a)(6) of the Securities Act of 1933
(the “Securities Act”) (15 U.S.C. 77d(a)(6)) as a result of a disqualification as specified in §
227.503(a);

(5) Has filed with the SEC and provided to investors, to the extent required, any ongoing annual reports
required by law during the two years immediately preceding the filing of this Form C; and

(6) Has a specific business plan, which is not to engage in a merger or acquisition with an unidentified
company Or companies.

Bad Actor Disclosure

The Company is not subject to any bad actor disqualifications under any relevant U.S. securities laws.
Ongoing Reporting

Following the first sale of the Securities, the Company will file a report electronically with the Securities
& Exchange Commission annually and post the report on its website, no later than 120 days after the end

of the Company’s fiscal year.

Once posted, the annual report may be found on the Company’s website at
https://www.smartvylon.mx/congreso-park/

The Company must continue to comply with the ongoing reporting requirements until:
(1) the Company is required to file reports under Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act;

(2) the Company has filed at least three annual reports pursuant to Regulation CF and has total assets
that do not exceed $10,000,000;

(3) the Company has filed at least one annual report pursuant to Regulation CF and has fewer than 300
holders of record;

(4) the Company or another party repurchases all of the Securities issued in reliance on Section 4(a)(6)
of the Securities Act, including any payment in full of debt securities or any complete redemption
of redeemable securities; or

(5) the Company liquidates or dissolves its business in accordance with applicable state law.

Neither the Company nor any of its predecessors (if any) previously failed to comply with the ongoing
reporting requirement of Regulation CF.

Updates

Updates on the status of this Offering may be found at: https://republic.co/congreso



The date of this Form C is October 29, 2021. .
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ABOUT THIS FORM C

You should rely only on the information contained in this Form C. We have not authorized anyone to provide any
information or make any representations other than those contained in this Form C, and no source other than the
Intermediary has been authorized to host this Form C and the Offering. If anyone provides you with different or
inconsistent information, you should not rely on it. We are not offering to sell, nor seeking offers to buy, the Securities
in any jurisdiction where such offers and sales are not permitted. The information contained in this Form C and any
documents incorporated by reference herein is accurate only as of the date of those respective documents, regardless
of the time of delivery of this Form C or the time of issuance or sale of any Securities.

Statements contained herein as to the content of any agreements or other documents are summaries and, therefore, are
necessarily selective and incomplete and are qualified in their entirety by the actual agreements or other documents.
Prior to the consummation of the purchase and sale of the Securities, the Company will afford prospective Investors
an opportunity to ask questions of, and receive answers from, the Company and its management concerning the terms
and conditions of this Offering and the Company.

In making an investment decision, you must rely on your own examination of the Company and the terms of the
Offering, including the merits and risks involved. The statements of the Company contained herein are based on
information believed to be reliable; however, no warranty can be made as to the accuracy of such information or that
circumstances have not changed since the date of this Form C. For example, our business, financial condition, results
of operations, and prospects may have changed since the date of this Form C. The Company does not expect to update
or otherwise revise this Form C or any other materials supplied herewith.

This Form C is submitted in connection with the Offering described herein and may not be reproduced or used for any
other purpose.

CAUTIONARY NOTE CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Form C and any documents incorporated by reference herein contain forward-looking statements and are subject
to risks and uncertainties. All statements other than statements of historical fact or relating to present facts or current
conditions included in this Form C are forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements give our current
reasonable expectations and projections regarding our financial condition, results of operations, plans, objectives,
future performance and business. You can identify forward-looking statements by the fact that they do not relate
strictly to historical or current facts. These statements may include words such as “anticipate,” “estimate,” “expect,”
“project, G o ”

EEINT3

ELINT3

plan,” “intend,” “believe,” “may,” “should,” “can have,” “likely” and other words and terms of similar

meaning in connection with any discussion of the timing or nature of future operating or financial performance or
g

other events.

The forward-looking statements contained in this Form C and any documents incorporated by reference herein are
based on reasonable assumptions we have made in light of our industry experience, perceptions of historical trends,
current conditions, expected future developments and other factors we believe are appropriate under the
circumstances. As you read and consider this Form C, you should understand that these statements are not guarantees
of performance or results. Although we believe that these forward-looking statements are based on reasonable
assumptions, you should be aware that many factors could affect our actual operating and financial performance and
cause our performance to differ materially from the performance anticipated in the forward-looking statements. Should
one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should any of these assumptions prove incorrect or change,
our actual operating and financial performance may vary in material respects from the performance projected in these
forward-looking statements.

Investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. Any forward-looking
statements made in this Form C or any documents incorporated by reference herein is accurate only as of the date of
those respective documents. Except as required by law, we undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-
looking statements for any reason after the date of this Form C or to conform these statements to actual results or to
changes in our expectations.



SUMMARY

The following summary highlights information contained elsewhere or incorporated by reference in this Form C. This
summary may not contain all of the information that may be important to you. You should read this entire Form C
carefully, including the matters discussed under the section titled “Risk Factors.”

The Company

Smart Vylon, LLC, a Delaware series limited liability company (the "Company"), was converted
in April 2020 from a Delaware corporation to a series limited liability company to facilitate private
investments in real estate in Mexico. The Securities (as defined herein) offered in this Offering are
membership interests in Congreso Series, a series of the Company.

The Company intends to establish several series under Delaware law (each, a "Series"), each of
which will have separate assets and liabilities. Each Series may have managers, assets, and members that
are separate from the managers, assets, and members associated with the Company generally and the other
individual Series. The profits and losses of a particular Series may be attributed only to the members
associated with that Series or to the Company generally. As a Delaware series limited liability company,
the debts, liabilities, obligations and expenses incurred, contracted for or otherwise existing with respect to
a particular Series are segregated and enforceable only against the assets of such Series, as provided under
Delaware law. As of the date of this Form C, the Company has established two series: Nectar Series and
Congreso Series.

Since forming the Company, we have been engaged primarily in negotiations to acquire the real
estate property described herein, which will be held by Congreso Series, and developing the financial,
offering and other materials to begin the Offering. The Company’s core business will be the, acquisition,
marketing and management of five condominiums at Congreso Park (each a “Unif’ and together, the
“Units”), a residential condominium complex located at Av. Congreso de la Unién, Col. Janitzio
Venustiano Carranza, Mexico City, Mexico, CP 15200 (the "Property"). For more information, see The
Offering and the Securities.

The Company is located at Jos¢ Maria Velasco 13-502, San José¢ Insurgentes, Benito Juarez,
CDMX,03900. The Company’s website is https://www.smartvylon.mx/congreso-park/

A description of our intended operations and business plan can be found on the Company’s profile
page on the Intermediary’s website under https://republic.co/congresoand is attached as Exhibit B to this
Form C.

Manager

The Company is managed by Vylon Balance Solutions, LLC, a Florida limited liability company
(the "Manager" or "Managing Member"). Vylon Balance Solutions, LLC is also the sole member of the
Company. The Manager is not a member of Congreso Series. Pursuant to the terms of our Amended and
Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement (the “Operating Agreement”’), the Manager will provide
certain management and advisory services to us and to each of our Series and their subsidiaries, as well as
a management team and appropriate support personnel. The Manager is wholly owned by our Chief
Executive Officer. For more information regarding our Chief Executive Officer and management team, see
the section of this Form C titled "Officers and Managers."

The Offering



Minimum amount of Congreso Series Interests

being offered 1,400
Total units of Congreso Series Interests
(outstanding after Offering (if minimum amount *1,400
reached)
Maximum amount of Congreso Series Interests
; 9,805
being offered
Total units of Congreso Series Interests outstanding 9.805%
after Offering (if maximum amount reached) ?
Price Per Security $100.00
Minimum Individual Purchase Amount $200+
Maximum Individual Purchase Amount $100,000

Offering Deadline

January 30, 2022

Use of Proceeds

See the description of the use of proceeds on page 28
hereof.

Voting Rights

See the description of the voting rights on page 38.

*The total number of the Securities outstanding after the Offering is subject to increase in an amount equal
to the Intermediary’s fee of one percent 1%) of the Securities issued in this Offering.

+ The Company reserves the right to amend the Minimum Individual Purchase Amount and Maximum
Individual Purchase Amount, in its sole discretion. In particular, the Company may elect to participate in one
of the Intermediary's special investment programs and may offer alternative Minimum Individual Purchase
Amounts and Maximum Individual Purchase Amounts to Investors participating in such programs without

notice.




RISK FACTORS

Investing in the Securities involves a high degree of risk and may result in the loss of your entire investment. Before
making an investment decision with respect to the Securities, we urge you to carefully consider the risks described in
this section and other factors set forth in this Form C. In addition to the risks specified below, the Company is subject
to same risks that all companies in its business, and all companies in the economy, are exposed to. These include risks
relating to economic downturns, political and economic events and technological developments (such as hacking and
the ability to prevent hacking). Additionally, early-stage companies are inherently riskier than more developed
companies. Prospective Investors should consult with their legal, tax and financial advisors prior to making an
investment in the Securities. The Securities should only be purchased by persons who can afford to lose all of their
investment. As used in this section, “we” refers to the Company and Congreso Series.

Risks Related to the Company’s Business and Industry

We have a limited operating history, which makes our future performance difficult to predict.

The Company has limited operating history. In making an investment decision, you should consider the risks,
uncertainties and difficulties frequently encountered by newly formed companies with similar objectives. We have
minimal operating capital and for the foreseeable future will be dependent upon our ability to finance our operations
from the sale of equity or other financing alternatives. The failure to successfully raise operating capital, could result
in our bankruptcy or other event which would have a material adverse effect on our business. There can be no
assurance that we will achieve our investment objectives.

Our Manager has a limited operating history upon which you can evaluate its performance, and accordingly, our
prospects must be considered in light of the risks that any new company encounters.

Our Manager, formed in 2016, has a limited operating history and is just beginning to implement its business
plan. There can be no assurance that we will ever operate profitably. Our manager may not be successful in attaining
the objectives necessary for it to overcome the risks and uncertainties that any new company encounters.

We have no historic financial statements. Neither the Company nor any Series has any assets or liabilities.

The Company was recently formed in December 2019. Congreso Series was formed on March 1, 2021. At
the time of this filing, Congreso Series has not commenced operations, is not capitalized and has no assets or liabilities
and no Series will commence operations, be capitalized or have assets and liabilities until such time as a closing related
to such Series has occurred. Furthermore, Congreso Series will have not right, title, or interest in any of the assets of
any other Series of the Company

An investment in the Securities constitutes only an investment in Congreso Series Interests and not in the Company
or directly in any real property.

An Investor in this Offering will acquire an ownership interest in Congreso Series and not, for the avoidance
of doubt, in (i) the Company, (ii) any other Series, (iii) the Manager, (iv) directly in the Units or the Property associated
with Congreso Series or any properties or assets owned by any other Series. This results in limited voting rights of the
Investor, which are solely related to Congreso Series, and are further limited by the Operating Agreement, described
further herein. Investors will have voting rights only with respect to certain matters, primarily relating to amendments
to the Operating Agreement that would adversely change the rights of the Members and removal of the Manager for
"cause." The Manager thus retains significant control over the management of the Company, each Series and the Units.
Furthermore, because the membership interests in a Series do not constitute an investment in the Company as a whole,
holders of the membership interests in a Series are not expected to receive any economic benefit from, or be subject
to the liabilities of, the assets of any other Series. In addition, the economic interest of a holder in a Series will not be
identical to owning a direct undivided interest in the Units.

Global crises such as COVID-19 can have a significant effect on our business operations and revenue projections.



With shelter-in-place orders, travel bans, and non-essential business closings potentially happening
throughout 2021 and in the future due to COVID-19, Congreso Series' ability to generate revenue may be adversely
affected. The Property is located in a travel destination and we intend to market the Units as rental properties. Due to
national and international travel restrictions stemming from the spread of COVID-19, we expect fewer people will
travel to Mexico City and we may be unable to rent the Units. Therefore, we may generate significantly less revenue
than expected.

Adverse economic or other conditions in the specific market in which we do business, and the market more broadly,
could negatively affect our occupancy levels and rates and therefore our operating results.

Mexico City is an urban community and its local economy depends heavily on the commerce, vacation,
travel, tourism and recreation industries. As a result, we may be adversely affected by such factors as:

e national global economic recessions and downturns and corresponding declines in discretionary vacation,
travel, tourism and recreational spending levels;

e national and international travel downturns and restrictions;

e the accessibility and convenience of airline flights into the Tulum airport, which can be affected by severe
winter weather;

e overall weather patterns and natural conditions in Tulum and in Mexico, such as the amount and timing of
tropical storms and other hazardous weather conditions in the summer;

e trends regarding the use of competing hotels and short-term rental properties, and the development of new
short-term rental properties in the Tulum area;

e demographic trends regarding vacation and recreational preferences; and

e possible future changes in the currently zoning regulations which may make it easier for competing real estate
projects to be developed, which in turn may reduce the current prices paid for existing lodging facilities.

Our ability to make distributions to Investors may be adversely affected by various operating risks common
to the residential rental industry, including competition, over-building in the Mexico City area and dependence on
business, travel, and tourism in Mexico City.

Residential rental properties have different economic characteristics than many other real estate assets.

A typical office property, for example, has long-term leases with third-party tenants, which provides a
relatively stable long-term stream of revenue. Residential rental properties, on the other hand, generate revenue from
guests that typically stay at the property for one year, which causes the rate and occupancy levels at such properties
to change from year to year, and results in earnings can be volatile. In addition, the Units may be subject to various
operating risks common to the residential real estate industry, many of which are beyond our control, including, among
others, the following:

e competition from other rental properties in the market in which we operate;

e over-building of rental properties in the market in which we operate, which results in increased supply and
will adversely affect occupancy and revenues of the Units;

e dependence on the stability of the rental market;
e decreases in home costs and interest rates, which may adversely affect the rental market;

e requirements for periodic capital reinvestment to repair and upgrade the Units;



e increases in operating costs due to inflation and other factors that may not be offset by increased rental rates;

e changes in governmental laws and regulations, fiscal policies and zoning ordinances and the related costs of
compliance with laws and regulations, fiscal policies and ordinances;

e adverse effects of international, national, regional and local economic and market conditions;

e unforeseen events beyond our control, such as terrorist attacks, travel-related health concerns, including
pandemics and epidemics, imposition of taxes or surcharges by regulatory authorities, travel-related accidents
and unusual weather patterns, including natural disasters such as tornadoes, blizzards or earthquakes; and

e adverse effects of continued or worsening conditions in the rental industry.

The occurrence of any of the foregoing could materially and adversely affect our business and the value of the
Securities.

Competition from other condominiums located on the Property and in the Mexico City area could have a
material adverse effect on our results of operations.

The real estate industry is highly competitive. The Units will compete with other rental properties on and
around the Property for guests based on a number of factors, including availability, location, convenience, rental rates,
range of services and guest amenities or accommodations offered and quality of customer service. Competition is
specific to the individual market in which the Units are located and includes competition from existing and new hotels,
as well as alternative lodging companies. Our competitors may have an operating model that enables them to offer
condominiums at lower rates than we can, which could result in our competitors increasing their occupancy at our
expense.

The nature of the real estate rental industry could have a material adverse effect on us.

The real estate rental market can be expected to cause quarterly fluctuations in our revenues. Our quarterly
earnings may be adversely affected by factors outside our control, including increased tenant defaults, weather
conditions and poor economic factors in the specific market in which we operate. We can provide no assurances that
our cash flows will be sufficient to offset any shortfalls that occur as a result of these fluctuations. Consequently,
volatility in our financial performance resulting from the seasonality of the real estate rental industry could have a
material adverse effect on us.

Congreso Series will own the Units, a non-diversified investment.

We intend for Congreso Series, either directly or through its subsidiaries, to own and operate the Units. The
Congreso Series’ return on its investment will depend on the revenues generated by the Units and the appreciation of
the value of the Units over time. These, in turn, are determined by such factors as national and local economic cycles
and conditions, financial markets and the economy, competition from existing properties as well as future properties
and government regulation (such as tax and building code charges). The value of a Units may decline substantially
after the Congreso Series purchases the Units.

We may become subject to litigation or threatened litigation that may divert management's time and attention,
require us to pay damages and expenses or restrict the operation of our business.

We may become subject to disputes with commercial parties with whom we maintain relationships or other
parties with whom we do business. Any such dispute could result in litigation between us and the other parties.
Whether or not any dispute actually proceeds to litigation, we may be required to devote significant management time
and attention to its successful resolution (through litigation, settlement or otherwise), which would detract from our
management's ability to focus on our business. Any such resolution could involve the payment of damages or expenses
by us, which may be significant. In addition, any such resolution could involve our agreement with terms that restrict
the operation of our business. We also could be sued for personal injuries and/or property damage occurring at the



Units or Property. We may obtain liability insurance that fails to cover all costs and expenses arising from such
lawsuits. Although the assets and liabilities of each Series are separate, there is no guarantee that it will not be included
in a suit for claims against other Series, and Congreso Series may be forced to incur expenses in connection with
defending itself in such suits.

Our business is subject to the risks of fires and other natural catastrophic events and to interruption by manmade
problems such as computer viruses or terrorism.

Our systems and operations are vulnerable to damage or interruption from fires, power losses,
telecommunications failures, terrorist attacks, acts of war, human errors, break-ins and similar events. For example, a
significant natural disaster, such as an earthquake, fire or flood, could have a material adverse impact on our business,
operating results and financial condition. Our IT systems may also be vulnerable to computer viruses, break-ins and
similar disruptions from unauthorized tampering with our computer systems, which could lead to interruptions, delays,
loss of critical data or the unauthorized disclosure of confidential intellectual property or client data. We may not have
sufficient protection or recovery plans in certain circumstances, such as natural disasters affecting the Mexico City
area, and our business interruption insurance may be insufficient to compensate us for losses that may occur. Such
disruptions could negatively impact our ability to run our business, which could have an adverse effect on our
operating results and financial condition.

The amount of capital the Company is attempting to raise in this Offering may not be enough to sustain the
Company’s current business plan.

In order to achieve the Company’s near and long-term goals, the Company may need to procure funds in
addition to the amount raised in the Offering. There is no guarantee the Company will be able to raise such funds on
acceptable terms or at all. If we are not able to raise sufficient capital in the future, we may not be able to execute our
business plan, our continued operations will be in jeopardy and we may be forced to cease operations and sell or
otherwise transfer all or substantially all of our remaining assets, which could cause an Investor to lose all or a portion
of their investment.

Our success depends on the experience and skill of our Manager and our executive officers.

In particular, we are dependent on the Manager and our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating Officer.
We do not intend to enter into employment agreements with such officers, and there can be no assurance they will
continue to serve as officers for a particular period of time. The loss of our Manager or any executive officer could
harm our business, financial condition, cash flow and results of operations.

Although dependent on certain key personnel, the Manager does not have any key person life insurance policies
on any such people.

We are dependent on certain key personnel in order to conduct our operations and execute our business plan,
however, the Manager has not purchased any insurance policies with respect to those individuals in the event of their
death or disability. Therefore, if any of these personnel die or become disabled, Congreso Series will not receive any
compensation to assist with such person’s absence. The loss of such person could negatively affect the Manager and
our operations. We have no way to guarantee key personnel will stay with the Manager, as many states do not enforce
non-competition agreements, and therefore acquiring key man insurance will not ameliorate all of the risk of relying
on key personnel.

Damage to our reputation could negatively impact our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our reputation and the quality of our brand, and the Smart Vylon brand, are critical to our business and
success in existing markets, and will be critical to our success as we enter new markets. Any incident that erodes
consumer loyalty for our brand could significantly reduce its value and damage our business. We may be adversely
affected by any negative publicity, regardless of its accuracy. Also, there has been a marked increase in the use of
social media platforms and similar devices, including blogs, social media websites and other forms of internet-based
communications that provide individuals with access to a broad audience of consumers and other interested persons.
The availability of information on social media platforms is virtually immediate as is its impact. Information posted



may be adverse to our interests or may be inaccurate, each of which may harm our performance, prospects or business.
The harm may be immediate and may disseminate rapidly and broadly, without affording us an opportunity for redress
or correction.

Our Property will be subject to the risks typically associated with real estate.

Our Property will be subject to the risks typically associated with real estate. The value of real estate may be
adversely affected by a number of risks, including:

° natural disasters such as hurricanes, earthquakes and floods;

° acts of war or terrorism, including the consequences of terrorist attacks;

° adverse changes in national and local economic and real estate conditions;

° an oversupply of (or a reduction in demand for) and the attractiveness of the Property to

prospective tenants;

° changes in governmental laws and regulations, fiscal policies and zoning ordinances and the
related costs of compliance therewith and the potential for liability under applicable laws;

° costs of remediation and liabilities associated with environmental conditions; and;
° the potential for uninsured or underinsured property losses.

The value of the Units will be affected significantly by their ability to generate cash flow and net income,
which in turn depends on the amount of rental or other income that can be generated net of expenses required to be
incurred with respect to the Units. Many expenditures associated with the Units (such as operating expenses and
capital expenditures) cannot be reduced when there is a reduction in income from the Units.

These factors may have a material adverse effect on the value that we can realize from the Units.

We may not be able to sell the Units at a price equal to, or greater than, the total amount of capital we have invested
in the Units, which may lead to a decrease in the value of the Securities.

The value of the Units to a potential purchaser may not increase over time, which may restrict our ability to
sell each Unit, or if we are able to sell such Units, may lead to a sale price less than the price that we paid to purchase
a Units. Such loss, would reduce the value of the Securities.

We may be unable to rent the Units.

If the rental rates for the Units decrease or we are not able to rent the Units our financial condition, results of
operations, cash flow, the market value of our Securities our ability to make distributions to our Investors could be
adversely affected.

The actual rents we receive for the Units may be less than estimated market rents, and we may experience a decline
in realized rental rates from time to time, which could adversely affect our financial condition, results of operations
and cash flow.

As a result of potential factors, including competitive pricing pressure in the residential rental market, a
general economic downturn and the desirability of the Units compared to other residential properties, we may be
unable to realize our estimated market rents for the Units. If we are unable to obtain sufficient rental rates for the
Units, then our ability to generate cash flow growth will be negatively impacted.

Our Property may be subject to impairment charges.

We will periodically evaluate the Units for impairment indicators. The judgment regarding the existence of
impairment indicators is based on factors such as market conditions, tenant performance and legal structure. For
example, the early termination of, or default under, a lease by a tenant may lead to an impairment charge. If we



determine that an impairment has occurred, we would be required to make a downward adjustment to the net carrying
value of the Units. Impairment charges also indicate a potential permanent adverse change in the fundamental
operating characteristics of the impaired property. There is no assurance that these adverse changes will be reversed
in the future and the decline in the impaired property’s value could be permanent.

We may rely on third-party service providers to rent the Units.

We may rely on certain third-party services providers to market and rent the Units. Such third-party service
providers typically charge fees for using their services, which will decrease the revenue we receive for renting the
Units. Our reliance on these sites may negatively impact our ability to generate the projected revenue we expect to
receive from renting each Units. Additionally, the unavailability of such sites or agents may cause us to experience
increased marketing costs and could lead to lower occupancy rates. If such services were to become unavailable or
increase their service charges, our business and the value of the Securities could be negatively impacted.

Property taxes could increase due to property tax rate changes or reassessment, which could impact our cash flow.

The real property taxes on our Units may increase as property tax rates change or as the Units are assessed
or reassessed by taxing authorities. If the property taxes we pay increase, our financial condition, results of operations,
cash flow, the value of our Securities and our ability to satisfy our principal and interest obligations and to make
distributions to our Investors could be adversely affected.

Uninsured losses relating to real property or excessively expensive premiums for insurance coverage could reduce
our cash flows and the return on our Investors’ investments.

There are types of losses, generally catastrophic in nature, such as losses due to wars, acts of terrorism,
earthquakes, floods, hurricanes, pollution or environmental matters that are uninsurable or not economically insurable,
or may be insured subject to limitations, such as large deductibles or co-payments. Insurance risks associated with
such catastrophic events could sharply increase the premiums we pay for coverage against property and casualty
claims.

Changes in the cost or availability of insurance could expose us to uninsured casualty losses. If the Units
incur a casualty loss that is not fully insured, the value of our assets will be reduced by any such uninsured loss, which
may reduce the value of our Investors’ Securities. In addition, other than any working capital reserve or other reserves
we may establish, we have no source of funding to repair or reconstruct any uninsured property. Also, to the extent
we must pay unexpectedly large amounts for insurance, we could suffer reduced earnings that would result in lower
distributions to Investors.

Climate change may adversely affect our business.

To the extent that climate change does occur and affects the markets that we invest in, we may experience
extreme weather and changes in precipitation and temperature, all of which may result in physical damage or a
decrease in demand for the Units. Should the impact of climate change be material in nature or occur for lengthy
periods of time, the financial condition or results of operations for the Units would be adversely affected. In addition,
changes in federal and state legislation and regulation on climate change could result in increased capital expenditures
to improve the energy efficiency of the Units in order to comply with such regulations

Real estate investments are relatively illiquid and may limit our flexibility.

Real estate investments are relatively illiquid, which may tend to limit our ability to react promptly to changes
in economic or other market conditions. Our ability to dispose of the Units in the future will depend on prevailing
economic and market conditions. Our inability to sell the Units on favorable terms or at all could have an adverse
effect on our sources of working capital and our ability to satisfy our debt obligations.

The failure of any bank in which we deposit our funds could reduce the amount of cash we have available to pay
distributions to our Investors and make additional investments.

Congreso Series will maintain minimal operating capital. We intend to diversify our cash and cash
equivalents among several banking institutions in an attempt to minimize exposure to any one of these entities.
However, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or FDIC, only insures amounts up to $250,000 per depositor
per insured bank. If we have cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash deposited in certain financial institutions



in excess of federally insured levels, and any of the banking institutions in which we have deposited funds ultimately
fails, we may lose our deposits over $250,000.

Potential development and construction delays and resultant increased costs and risks may hinder our operating
results and decrease our net income.

The Units will be subject to the uncertainties associated with the development and construction of real
property, including those related to re-zoning land for development, environmental concerns of governmental entities
and community groups and our builders’ ability to build in conformity with plans, specifications, budgeted costs and
timetables. If a builder fails to perform, we may resort to legal action to rescind the purchase or the construction
contract or to compel performance. A builder’s performance may also be affected or delayed by conditions beyond
the builder’s control. We may incur additional risks if we make periodic progress payments or other advances to
builders before they complete construction. These and other factors can result in increased costs of a project or loss of
our investment. In addition, we will be subject to normal lease-up risks relating to newly constructed projects. We
also must rely on rental income and expense projections and estimates of the fair market value of property upon
completion of construction when agreeing upon a purchase price at the time we acquire the property. If our projections
are inaccurate, we may pay too much for the Units, and the return on our investment could suffer.

Costs imposed pursuant to governmental laws and regulations may reduce our net income and the cash available
for distributions to our Investors.

Real property and the operations conducted on real property are subject to federal, state and local laws and
regulations relating to protection of the environment and human health. We could be subject to substantial liability in
the form of fines, penalties or damages for noncompliance with these laws and regulations. Even if we are not subject
to liability, other costs, which we would undertake to avoid or mitigate any such liability, such as the cost of removing
or remediating hazardous or toxic substances could be substantial. These laws and regulations generally govern
wastewater discharges, air emissions, the operation and removal of underground and above-ground storage tanks, the
use, storage, treatment, transportation and disposal of solid and hazardous materials, the remediation of contamination
associated with the release or disposal of solid and hazardous materials, the presence of toxic building materials and
other health and safety-related concerns.

The presence of hazardous substances, including hazardous substances that have not been detected, or the
failure to properly manage or remediate these substances, may hinder our ability to sell, rent or pledge such property
as collateral for future borrowings. Any material expenditures, fines, penalties or damages we must pay will reduce
our ability to make distributions to our Investors and may reduce the value of your investment.

Certain environmental laws and common law principles could be used to impose liability for the release of
and exposure to hazardous substances, including asbestos-containing materials and lead-based paint. Third parties
may seek recovery from real property owners or operators for personal injury or property damage associated with
exposure to released hazardous substances and governments may seek recovery for natural resource damage. The
costs of defending against claims of environmental liability, of complying with environmental regulatory
requirements, of remediating any contaminated property, or of paying personal injury, property damage or natural
resource damage claims could reduce the amounts available for distribution to our Investors.

The cost of defending against claims of liability, of compliance with environmental regulatory requirements,
of remediating any contaminated property, or of paying personal injury claims could materially adversely affect our
business, assets or results of operations and, consequently, amounts available for distribution to our Investors. We
may be subject to all the risks described here even if we do not know about the hazardous materials and if the previous
owners did not know about the hazardous materials on the property.

In addition, when excessive moisture accumulates in buildings or on building materials, mold growth may
occur, particularly if the moisture problem remains undiscovered or is not addressed over a period of time. Some
molds may produce airborne toxins or irritants. Concern about indoor exposure to mold has been increasing, as
exposure to mold may cause a variety of adverse health effects and symptoms, including allergic or other reactions.
As a result, the presence of significant mold at any of our projects could require us to undertake a costly remediation
program to contain or remove the mold from the affected property or development project, which would adversely
affect our operating results.



Environmental laws also may impose liens on property or restrictions on the manner in which property may
be used or businesses may be operated, and these restrictions may require substantial expenditures or prevent us or
our property manager and its assignees from operating the Units. Some of these laws and regulations have been
amended so as to require compliance with new or more stringent standards as of future dates. Compliance with new
or more stringent laws or regulations or stricter interpretation of existing laws may require us to incur material
expenditures. Future laws, ordinances or regulations may impose material environmental liability.

A prolonged economic slowdown, a lengthy or severe recession or declining real estate values could harm our
operations.

The Units may be susceptible to economic slowdowns or recessions, which could lead to financial losses in
our investments and a decrease in revenues, net income and assets. An economic slowdown or recession, in addition
to other non-economic factors such as an excess supply of properties, could have a material negative impact on the
values of, and the cash flows from, residential real estate properties, which could significantly harm our revenues,
results of operations, financial condition, business prospects and our ability to make distributions to our Investors.

Deficiencies in our internal control over financial reporting could adversely affect our ability to present accurately
our financial statements and could materially and adversely affect us, including our business, reputation, results
of operations, financial condition or liquidity.

Effective internal control is necessary for us to accurately report our financial results. There can be no
guarantee that our internal control over financial reporting will be effective in accomplishing all control objectives all
of the time. As we grow our business, our internal control will become more complex, and we may require
significantly more resources to ensure our internal control remains effective. Deficiencies, including any material
weakness, in our internal control over financial reporting which may occur in the future could result in misstatements
of our results of operations that could require a restatement, failing to meet our reporting obligations and causing
investors to lose confidence in our reported financial information. These events could materially and adversely affect
us, including our business, reputation, results of operations, financial condition or liquidity.

The Company is not subject to Sarbanes-Oxley regulations and may lack the financial controls and procedures of
public companies.

The Company may not have the internal control infrastructure that would meet the standards of a public
company, including the requirements of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002. As a privately-held (non-public) Company,
the Company is currently not subject to the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002, and its financial and disclosure controls and
procedures reflect its status as a development stage, non-public company. There can be no guarantee that there are no
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in the quality of the Company's financial and disclosure controls and
procedures. If it were necessary to implement such financial and disclosure controls and procedures, the cost to the
Company of such compliance could be substantial and could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results
of operations.

We operate in a highly regulated environment, and if we are found to be in violation of any of the federal, state, or
local laws or regulations applicable to us, our business could suffer.

We are also subject to a wide range of Mexican state and local laws and regulations, such as local licensing
requirements, consumer protection, environmental, health and safety, and other regulations and we expect the costs
associated with complying with all applicable laws to increase going forward. The violation of these or future
requirements or laws and regulations could result in administrative, civil, or criminal sanctions against us, which may
include fines, a cease and desist order against the subject operations or even revocation or suspension of our license
to operate the subject business. As a result, we have incurred and will continue to incur capital and operating
expenditures and other costs to comply with these requirements and laws and regulations.

We are dependent on the performance of our Manager, and could be materially and adversely affected if our
Manager or their designee does not manage the Units in our best interests.

The Manager expects to appoint a property manager (the “Property Manager”) to manage the Units. We
could be materially and adversely affected if our Property Manager fails to provide quality services and amenities,
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fails to maintain a quality brand name or otherwise fails to manage the Units in our best interest. The Property Manager
may manage other condominiums on the Property and will not be required to prioritize the Units over other
condominiums on the Property.

We have not yet selected a Property Manager, but we may do so following the completion of this Offering.
The Property Manager will be chosen by our Manager after considering such person or entity's experience in managing
properties similar to the Congreso Series Property, the quality of the services offered, and the fees charged. If the
Manager is unable to select a Property Manager within a reasonable period of time following this Offering, the
performance of the Units as an investment may suffer and the value of the Securities may be adversely affected. The
Manager may choose, in its sole discretion, to manage the Property.

Any adverse changes in the Manager’s financial health or our relationship with the Manager or its affiliates could
hinder our operating performance and the return on your investment.

The Manager will utilize its personnel to perform services on its behalf for us. Our ability to achieve our
investment objectives and to pay distributions to our Investors is dependent upon the performance of the Manager and
its affiliates as well as the Manager’s real estate professionals in the management of the Units and operation of our
day-to-day activities. Any adverse changes in the Manager’s financial condition or our relationship with the Manager
could hinder the Manager’s ability to successfully manage our operations and the Units.

Disposing of or attempting to dispose of multiple Units in a single transaction may adversely affect our operations.

From time to time, we may attempt to dispose of the Units in a single transaction or simultaneously. Multiple
property portfolio dispositions are more complex than single-property dispositions, and the risk that a portfolio
disposition does not close may be greater than in a single-property acquisition. The Congreso Series Properties may
compete with each other and sale of other condominiums located at the Property. To dispose of multiple Congreso
Series Properties in a single transaction we may be required to discount the sales price of one or more of the Units,
which would reduce the value of the Securities.

Real estate investments are relatively illiquid and may limit our flexibility.

Real estate investments are relatively illiquid, which may tend to limit our ability to react promptly to changes
in economic or other market conditions. Our ability to dispose of assets in the future will depend on prevailing
economic and market conditions. Our inability to sell the Congreso Series Properties on favorable terms or at all could
have an adverse effect on our sources of working capital and our ability to satisfy our debt obligations. In addition,
real estate can at times be difficult to sell quickly at prices we find acceptable. When we sell any of our assets, we
may recognize a loss on such sale, which would adversely impact the price of the Securities and our ability to pay
distributions to the Investors who subscribe for the Securities.

Potential development and construction delays and resultant increased costs and risks may hinder our operating
results and decrease our net income.

The Property and the Units are under construction. Investments in the Securities will be subject to the
uncertainties associated with the development and construction of real property, including those related to re-zoning
land for development, environmental concerns of governmental entities and community groups and our builders’
ability to build in conformity with plans, specifications, budgeted costs and timetables. If a builder fails to perform,
we may resort to legal action to rescind the purchase or the construction contract or to compel performance. A builder’s
performance may also be affected or delayed by conditions beyond the builder’s control. We may incur additional
risks when we make periodic progress payments or other advances to builders the Units.

We also must rely on rental income and expense projections and estimates of the fair market value of property

upon completion of construction when agreeing upon a purchase price at the time we acquire the property. If our
projections are inaccurate, we may pay too much for a property, and the return on our investment could suffer.

Risks Related to Conflicts of Interest
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The Manager’s liability is limited under the Operating Agreement, and we have agreed to indemnify the Manager
against certain liabilities. As a result, we may experience poor performance or losses of which the Manager would
not be liable.

Pursuant to the Company’s Operating Agreement, the Manager will not assume any responsibility other than
to render the services called for thereunder and will maintain a contractual, as opposed to a fiduciary, relationship with
us and the Members of Congreso Series. Under the terms of the Operating Agreement, the Manager, its officers,
investors, members, managers, directors and personnel, any person controlling or controlled by the Manager will not
be liable to Congreso Series or its members for acts or omissions performed in accordance with and pursuant to the
Operating Agreement, except by reason of acts or omissions constituting bad faith, willful misconduct, gross
negligence, or reckless disregard of their duties thereunder. Accordingly, the Members of Congreso Series will only
have recourse and be able to seek remedies against the Manager to the extent it breaches its obligations pursuant to
the Operating Agreement. Furthermore, we have agreed to limit the liability of the Manager and to indemnify the
Manager against certain liabilities. The Members of Congreso Series, by executing the Operating Agreement, will
agree to reimburse, indemnify and hold harmless the Manager, its officers, investors, members, managers, directors
and personnel, any person controlling or controlled by the Manager with respect to all expenses, losses, damages,
liabilities, demands, charges and claims in respect of, or arising from, acts or omissions of such indemnified parties
not constituting bad faith, willful misconduct, gross negligence, or reckless disregard of the Manager’s duties.

You may be more likely to sustain a loss on your investment because the Manager does not have as strong an
economic incentive to avoid losses as do managers who have made significant equity investments in their
companies.

Because it has not made a significant equity investment in our Company, the Manager will have no
exposure to loss in the value of the Securities. Without this exposure, Investors may be at a greater risk of loss
because the Manager does not have as much to lose from a decrease in the value of the Securities as do those managers
who make more significant equity investments in their companies.

If the principals of the Manager are unable to sell the other condominiums located on the Property, they may hold
an interest in an entity that owns the unsold condominiums indefinitely, meaning an affiliate of the Manager could
compete with Congreso Series for customers and will not be obligated to prioritize the Units in renting to customers.

Competition by an affiliate of our Manager, as well as other persons owning and leasing condominiums at
the Property, could adversely affect our occupancy rates and revenue streams and may require us to provide additional
amenities or make capital improvements that we otherwise would not have to make, which could reduce our
profitability and could materially and adversely affect our results of operations.

The ability of the Manager and its officers and other personnel to engage in other business activities, including
managing other similar companies, may reduce the time the Manager spends managing the business of our
Company and may result in certain conflicts of interest.

Certain of the Manager’s officers also serve or may serve as officers or employees of other companies
unaffiliated with us. These other business activities may reduce the time these persons spend managing our business.
Further, if and when there are turbulent conditions in the real estate markets or distress in the credit markets or other
times when we will need focused support and assistance from the Manager, the attention of the Manager’s personnel
and executive officers and the resources of the Manager may also be required by other entities. In such situations, we
may not receive the level of support and assistance that we may receive if we were internally managed or if we were
not managed by the Manager. In addition, these persons may have obligations to those entities, the fulfillment of
which might not be in the best interests of us, or any of our Investors. Our officers and the Manager may face conflicts
of interest in allocating sale, financing, leasing and other business opportunities among the real properties owned by
other companies.

The terms of the Operating Agreement make it so that it may adversely affect the Members ability to terminate the
Manager and retain a new one.
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Under the terms of the Operating Agreement, the members of Congreso Series may terminate the Manager
upon the occurrence of a "Manager Material Default”" and an affirmative vote of the members holding 51% of the of
Congreso Series Interests. The term “Manager Material Default” is limited to those circumstances described under
“Business — Manager — Term and Removal of the Manager” which include certain material breaches, certain acts
constituting fraud, misappropriation of funds, embezzlement and gross negligence, certain bankruptcy matters and the
dissolution of the Manager. Unsatisfactory financial performance does not constitute “cause” under the Operating
Agreement. These provisions make it difficult to end Congreso Series' relationship with the Manager, even if members
of Congreso Series believe the Manager’s performance is not satisfactory.

The Operating Agreement of the Company and Series Designation of Congreso Series does not provide for
the Manager to receive any fee for managing the Units. If the Members of Congreso Series terminate the Manager,
the value of the Securities will be adversely affected since the Members would need to appoint and compensate a new
Manager for Congreso Series.

The Operating Agreement contains provisions that reduce or eliminate duties (including fiduciary duties) of the
Manager.

The Operating Agreement provides that the Manager, in exercising its rights in its capacity as the Manager,
will be entitled to consider only such interests and factors as it desires, including its own interests, and will have no
duty or obligation (fiduciary or otherwise) to give any consideration to any interest of or factors affecting us or any of
our the Members and will not be subject to any different standards imposed by our bylaws, or under any other law,
rule or regulation or in equity. These modifications of fiduciary duties are expressly permitted by Delaware law.

There are conflicts of interest among us, the Manager and its affiliates.

While they do not currently serve as executive officers of our Manager, each of our executive officers may
serve as an executive officer of the Manager, which is wholly owned by Victor Hugo Rosales Aranda. All the
agreements and arrangements between such parties, including those relating to compensation, are not the result of
arm’s-length negotiations. Some of the conflicts inherent in the Company’s transactions with the Manager and its
affiliates, and the limitations on such parties adopted to address these conflicts, are described below. The Manager
and its affiliates will try to balance our interests with their own. However, to the extent that such parties take actions
that are more favorable to other entities than us, these actions could have a negative impact on Congreso Series’
financial performance and, consequently, on distributions to Investors and the value of our Congreso Series Interests.
The Operating Agreement provides the Manager with broad powers and authority which may exacerbate the existing
conflicts of interest among your interests and those of the Manager, its executive officers and its other affiliates.
Potential conflicts of interest include, but are not limited to, the following:

e the Manager, its executive officers and its other affiliates may continue to offer other real estate investment
opportunities, including other interests in condominiums at the Property described in this offering, and may
make investments in real estate assets for their own respective accounts, whether or not competitive with our
business;

o the Manager, its executive officers and its other affiliates will not be required to disgorge any profits or fees
or other compensation they may receive from any other business they own separately from us, and you will
not be entitled to receive or share in any of the profits or fees or other compensation from any other business
owned and operated by the Manager, its executive officers and/or its other affiliates for their own benefit;

e we may engage the Manager or affiliates of the Manager to perform services at prevailing market rates.
Prevailing market rates are determined by the Manager based on industry standards and expectations of what

the Manager would be able to negotiate with third party on an arm’s length basis; and

e the Manager, its executive officers and its other affiliates are not required to devote all of their time and
efforts to our affairs.
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The affiliations between the officers, Manager, and the Property Owner create conflicts of interest that may not be
resolved in a manner which is always in the best interests of Congreso Series or its members.

The Chief Executive Officer of the Manager of Congreso Series is the sole member of the Property Owner,
meaning he will receive the proceeds of this Offering earmarked for purchase of the Congreso Series Properties and
has represented both Congreso Series and the Property Owner in executing the purchase and sale agreement for the
Congreso Series Properties. While the Chief Executive Officer reasonably believes the terms of the purchase and sale
agreement to be fair and reasonable to Congreso Series, no disinterested person has consented to the purchase and sale
agreement on behalf of Congreso Series and the terms thereof may not be in the best interests of Congreso Series. If
a dispute arises between Congreso Series and the Property Owner, the Manager will not be required to resolve such
dispute in the best interests of Congreso Series. The Operating Agreement provides that the Manager, in exercising
its rights in its capacity as the Manager, is entitled to consider only such interests and factors as it desires, including
its own interests.

Risks Related to the Offering

State and federal securities laws are complex, and Congreso Series could potentially be found to have not complied
with all relevant state and federal securities law in prior offerings of securities.

If a court or regulatory body with the required jurisdiction ever concluded that Congreso Series may have
violated state or federal securities laws, any such violation could result in the Company being required to offer
rescission rights to investors in such offering. If such investors exercised their rescission rights, Congreso Series would
have to pay to such investors an amount of funds equal to the purchase price paid by such investors plus interest from
the date of any such purchase. No assurances can be given Congreso Series will, if it is required to offer such investors
a rescission right, have sufficient funds to pay the prior investors the amounts required or that proceeds from this
Offering would not be used to pay such amounts.

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of the Securities or the terms of the
Offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or completeness of any Offering document or literature.

You should not rely on the fact that our Form C is accessible through the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission’s EDGAR filing system as an approval, endorsement or guarantee of compliance as it relates to this
Offering. The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission has not reviewed this Form C, nor any document or literature
related to this Offering.

Neither the Offering nor the Securities have been registered under federal or state securities laws.

No governmental agency has reviewed or passed upon this Offering or the Securities. Neither the Offering
nor the Securities have been registered under federal or state securities laws. Investors will not receive any of the
benefits available in registered Offerings, which may include access to quarterly and annual financial statements that
have been audited by an independent accounting firm. Investors must therefore assess the adequacy of disclosure and
the fairness of the terms of this Offering based on the information provided in this Form C and the accompanying
exhibits.

Our manager may have broad discretion in how Congreso Series uses the net proceeds of the Offering.

The Manager will have considerable discretion over the use of proceeds from the Offering. You may not
have the opportunity, as part of your investment decision, to assess whether the proceeds are being used appropriately.

The Manager has the right to limit individual Investor commitment amounts based on its determination of an
Investor’s sophistication.

The Manager may prevent any Investor from committing more than a certain amount in this Offering based

on its determination of the Investor’s sophistication and ability to assume the risk of the investment. This means that
your desired investment amount may be limited or lowered based solely on the Manager's determination and not in
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line with relevant investment limits set forth by the Regulation CF rules. This also means that other Investors may
receive larger allocations of the Offering based solely on the Manager's determination.

Congreso Series has the right to extend the Offering Deadline.

Congreso Series may extend the Offering Deadline beyond what is currently stated herein. This means that
your investment may continue to be held in escrow while Congreso Series attempts to raise the Target Offering
Amount even after the Offering Deadline stated herein is reached. While you have the right to cancel your investment
in the event the Company extends the Offering Deadline, if you choose to reconfirm your investment, your investment
will not be accruing interest during this time and will simply be held until such time as the new Offering Deadline is
reached without Congreso Series receiving the Target Offering Amount, at which time it will be returned to you
without interest or deduction, or Congreso Series receives the Target Offering Amount, at which time it will be
released to Congreso Series to be used as set forth herein. Upon or shortly after the release of such funds to Congreso
Series, the Securities will be issued and distributed to you.

Congreso Series may also end the Offering early.

If the Target Offering Amount is met after 21 calendar days, but before the Offering Deadline, Congreso
Series can end the Offering by providing notice to Investors at least 5 business days prior to the end of the Offering.
This means your failure to participate in the Offering in a timely manner, may prevent you from being able to invest
in this Offering — it also means the Company may limit the amount of capital it can raise during the Offering by ending
the Offering early.

Funds from purchasers accompanying subscriptions for the Congreso Series Interests will not accrue interest while
in escrow.

The funds paid by an Investor for Securities will be held in a non-interest-bearing escrow account until the
admission of the subscriber as an Investor in the applicable Series, if such subscription is accepted. Investors who
subscribe for the Securities will not have the use of such funds or receive interest thereon pending the completion of
the Offering. No subscriptions will be accepted, and no Securities will be sold unless valid subscriptions for the
Offering are received and accepted prior to the termination of the applicable Offering. If we terminate an Offering
prior to accepting an Investor's subscription, escrowed funds will be returned promptly, without interest or deduction,
to the Investor.

If the Company or Congreso Series were to be required to register under the Investment Company Act or the
Manager were to be required to register under the Investment Advisers Act, it could have a material and adverse
impact on the results of operations and expenses of each Series and the Manager may be forced to liquidate and
wind up each Series or rescind the Offerings for any of the Series or the offering for any other.

The Company is not registered and will not be registered as an investment company under the Investment
Company Act of 1940, as amended (the “Investment Company Act’), and the Manager is not and will not be registered
as an investment adviser under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended (the “Investment Advisers Act’)
and the Congreso Series Interests do not have the benefit of the protections of the Investment Company Act or the
Investment Advisers Act. The Company and the Manager have taken the position that the Congreso Series Properties
are not “securities” within the meaning of the Investment Company Act or the Investment Advisers Act, and thus the
Company’s assets will consist of less than 40% investment securities under the Investment Company Act and the
Manager is not and will not be advising with respect to securities under the Investment Advisers Act. This position,
however, is based upon applicable case law that is inherently subject to judgments and interpretation. If the Company
were to be required to register under the Investment Company Act or the Manager were to be required to register
under the Investment Advisers Act, it could have a material and adverse impact on the results of operations and
expenses of each Series and the Manager may be forced to liquidate and wind up each Series or rescind the Offerings
for any of the Series or the offering for any other Series.

If the tax laws of the U.S. or Mexico change during the period in which the Units are held by the Series, Congreso
Series may experience increased tax liability.
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The Internal Revenue Code is subject to change by Congress, and interpretations of the Code may be
modified or affected by judicial decisions, by the Treasury Department through changes in regulations and by the
Internal Revenue Service through its audit policy, announcements, and published and private rulings. Although
significant changes to the tax laws historically have been given prospective application, no assurance can be given
that any changes made in the tax law affecting an investment in any Series of the Company would be limited to
prospective effect. For instance, prior to effectiveness of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017, an exchange of the
membership interests of one Series for another might have been a non-taxable like-kind exchange transaction while
transactions now only qualify for that treatment with respect to real property. Accordingly, the ultimate effect on an
Investor’s tax situation may be governed by laws, regulations or interpretations of laws or regulations which have not
yet been proposed, passed or made, as the case may be.

There can be no guarantee that Congreso Series will reach its funding target from potential investors with respect
to any Series or future proposed Series.

Due to the start-up nature of Congreso Series and the Manager, there can be no guarantee that the Congreso
Series will reach its funding target from Investors. In the event the Company does not reach a funding target, it may
not be able to achieve its investment objectives by acquiring additional properties through the issuance of additional
interests in Congreso Series and monetizing them to generate distributions for Investors.

Risks Related to the Securities

The Securities will not be freely tradable under the Securities Act until one year from the initial purchase date.
Although the Securities may be tradable under federal securities law, state securities regulations may apply, and
each Investor should consult with their attorney.

You should be aware of the long-term nature of this investment. There is not now and likely will not ever be
a public market for the Securities. Because the Securities have not been registered under the Securities Act or under
the securities laws of any state or foreign jurisdiction, the Securities have transfer restrictions and cannot be resold in
the United States except pursuant to Rule 501 of Regulation CF. It is not currently contemplated that registration under
the Securities Act or other securities laws will be effected. Limitations on the transfer of the Securities may also
adversely affect the price that you might be able to obtain for the Securities in a private sale. Investors should be aware
of the long-term nature of their investment in the Company. Each Investor in this Offering will be required to represent
that they are purchasing the Securities for their own account, for investment purposes and not with a view to resale or
distribution thereof.

Investors will not be entitled to any inspection or information rights other than those required by law.

Investors will not have the right to inspect the books and records of the Company or to receive financial or
other information from the Company, other than as required by law. Other security holders of the Company may have
such rights. Regulation CF requires only the provision of an annual report on Form C and no additional information.
Additionally, there are numerous methods by which the Company can terminate annual report obligations, resulting
in no information rights, contractual, statutory or otherwise, owed to Investors. This lack of information could put
Investors at a disadvantage in general and with respect to other security holders, including certain security holders
who have rights to periodic financial statements and updates from the Company such as quarterly unaudited financials,
annual projections and budgets, and monthly progress reports, among other things.

There is no present market for the Securities and we have arbitrarily set the price.

The Offering price was not established in a competitive market. We have arbitrarily set the price of the
Securities with reference to the general status of the securities market and other relevant factors. The Offering price
for the Securities should not be considered an indication of the actual value of the Securities and is not based on our
net worth or prior earnings. We cannot guarantee that the Securities can be resold at the Offering price or at any other

price.

There is no guarantee of a return on an Investor’s investment.
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There is no assurance that an Investor will realize a return on their investment or that they will not lose their
entire investment. For this reason, each Investor should read this Form C and all exhibits carefully and should consult
with their attorney and business advisor prior to making any investment decision.

The Congreso Series Interests carry very limited voting rights with respect to amending the Operating Agreement
or removing the Manager.

The Manager has a unilateral ability to amend the Operating Agreement in certain circumstances without the
consent of the Investors. The Investors only have limited voting rights in the Series in which they are invested.
Investors will therefore be subject to any amendments the Manager makes (if any) to the Operating Agreement and
any decision it takes in respect of the Company and Congreso Series, which the Investors do not get a right to vote
upon. Investors may not necessarily agree with such amendments or decisions and such amendments or decisions may
not be in the best interests of all of the Investors as a whole but only a limited number. Furthermore, the Manager can
only be removed as manager of the Company and each Series in very limited circumstances.

Any dispute in relation to the Operating Agreement is subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of the Court of Chancery
of the State of Delaware, except where Federal law requires that certain claims be brought in Federal courts. The
Operating Agreement, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, provides for Investors to waive their right
to a jury trial.

Each Investor will covenant and agree not to bring any claim in any venue other than the Court of Chancery
of the State of Delaware, or if required by Federal law, a Federal court of the United States, as in the case of claims
brought under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Section 27 of the Exchange Act creates exclusive
federal jurisdiction over all suits brought to enforce any duty or liability created by the Exchange Act or the rules and
regulations thereunder. As a result, the exclusive forum provision will not apply to suits brought to enforce any duty
or liability created by the Exchange Act or any other claim for which the federal courts have exclusive jurisdiction.
Furthermore, Section 22 of the Securities Act creates concurrent jurisdiction for federal and state courts over all suits
brought to enforce any duty or liability created by the Securities Act or the rules and regulations thereunder. As a
result, the exclusive forum provisions will not apply to suits brought to enforce any duty or liability created by the
Securities Act or any other claim for which the federal and state courts have concurrent jurisdiction, and Investors will
not be deemed to have waived our compliance with the federal securities laws and the rules and regulations thereunder.
If an Interest Holder were to bring a claim against the Company or the Manager pursuant to the Operating Agreement
and such claim was governed by state law, it would have to bring such claim in the Delaware Court of Chancery. The
Operating Agreement, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law and subject to limited exceptions, provides for
Investors to consent to exclusive jurisdiction to Delaware Court of Chancery and for a waiver of the right to a trial by
jury, if such waiver is allowed by the court where the claim is brought.

If we opposed a jury trial demand based on the waiver, the court would determine whether the waiver was
enforceable based on the facts and circumstances of that case in accordance with the applicable state and federal law.
To our knowledge, the enforceability of a contractual pre-dispute jury trial waiver in connection with claims arising
under the federal securities laws has not been finally adjudicated by the United States Supreme Court. However, we
believe that a contractual pre-dispute jury trial waiver provision is generally enforceable, including under the laws of
the Delaware, which govern the Operating Agreement, by a federal or state court in the State of Delaware, which has
exclusive jurisdiction over matters arising under the Operating Agreement. In determining whether to enforce a
contractual pre-dispute jury trial waiver provision, courts will generally consider whether a party knowingly,
intelligently and voluntarily waived the right to a jury trial. We believe that this is the case with respect to the Operating
Agreement and the Congreso Series Interests. It is advisable that you consult legal counsel regarding the jury waiver
provision before entering into the Operating Agreement. Nevertheless, if this jury trial waiver provision is not
permitted by applicable law, an action could proceed under the terms of the Operating Agreement with a jury trial. No
condition, stipulation or provision of the Operating Agreement or the Congreso Series Interests serves as a waiver by
any Investor or beneficial owner of the Congreso Series Interests or by us of compliance with the U.S. federal securities
laws and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. Additionally, the Company does not believe that claims
under the federal securities laws shall be subject to the jury trial waiver provision, and the Company believes that the
provision does not impact the rights of any Investor or beneficial owner of the Congreso Series Interests to bring
claims under the federal securities laws or the rules and regulations thereunder.
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These provisions may have the effect of limiting the ability of Investors to bring a legal claim against us due
to geographic limitations and may limit an Investor’s ability to bring a claim in a judicial forum that it finds favorable
for disputes with us. Furthermore, waiver of a trial by jury may disadvantage an investor to the extent a judge might
be less likely than a jury to resolve an action in the investor’s favor. Further, if a court were to find this exclusive
forum provision inapplicable to, or unenforceable in respect of, an action or proceeding against us, then we may incur
additional costs associated with resolving these matters in other jurisdictions, which could materially and adversely
affect our business and financial condition.

If the Company’s series limited liability company structure is not respected, then Investors may have to share any
liabilities of the Company with all Investors and not just those who hold the same Series as them.

The Company is structured as a Delaware series limited liability company that issues membership interests
in a separate Series for certain properties. Each Series will merely be a separate Series and not a separate legal entity.
Under the Delaware Limited Liability Company Act (the “LLC Act”), if certain conditions (as set forth in Section 18-
215(b) of the LLC Act) are met, the liability of Investors holding membership interests in one Series is segregated
from the liability of Investors holding membership interests in another Series and the assets of one Series are not
available to satisfy the liabilities of other Series. Although this limitation of liability is recognized by the courts of
Delaware, there is no guarantee that if challenged in the courts of another U.S. State or a foreign jurisdiction, such
courts will uphold a similar interpretation of Delaware corporation law, and in the past certain jurisdictions have not
honored such interpretation. If the Company’s series limited liability company structure is not respected, then
Investors may have to share any liabilities of the Company with all Investors and not just those who hold the same
Series membership interests as them. Furthermore, while we intend to maintain separate and distinct records for each
Series and account for them separately and otherwise meet the requirements of the LLC Act, it is possible a court
could conclude that the methods used did not satisfy Section 18-215(b) of the LLC Act and thus potentially expose
the assets of a Series to the liabilities of another Series. The consequence of this is that Investors may have to bear
higher than anticipated expenses which would adversely affect the value of their membership interests or the likelihood
of any distributions being made by a particular Series to its Investors. In addition, we are not aware of any court case
that has tested the limitations on inter-series liability provided by Section 18-215(b) in federal bankruptcy courts and
it is possible that a bankruptcy court could determine that the assets of one Series should be applied to meet the
liabilities of the other Series or the liabilities of the Company generally where the assets of such other Series or of the
Company generally are insufficient to meet our liabilities.

The Company may not be able to provide final Schedules K-1 to Investors for any given fiscal year until
significantly after April 15 of the following year.

The Company will provide Schedules K-1 as soon as practicable after receipt of all of the necessary
information. Investors should be prepared to obtain extensions of the filing date for their income tax returns at the
U.S. Federal, state and local level.

IN ADDITION TO THE RISKS LISTED ABOVE, RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES NOT PRESENTLY
KNOWN, OR WHICH WE CONSIDER IMMATERIAL AS OF THE DATE OF THIS FORM C, MAY ALSO
HAVE AN ADVERSE EFFECT ON OUR BUSINESS AND RESULT IN THE TOTAL LOSS OF YOUR
INVESTMENT.
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BUSINESS
Company Overview

Smart Vylon, LLC, a Delaware series limited liability company, was formed to facilitate private
investment in up to four residential condominium units, each of which will be owned by Congreso Series.
Each Series may hold the specific property either directly or in a wholly-owned subsidiary which will be
an entity with limited liability. Since forming Congreso Series, we have been engaged primarily in
negotiations to acquire the Property, which will be held by Congreso Series, and developing the financial,
offering and other materials to begin the Offering.

As a Delaware series limited liability company, the debts, liabilities, obligations and expenses
incurred, contracted for or otherwise existing with respect to a particular Series are segregated and
enforceable only against the assets of such Series, as provided under Delaware law. The Company’s core
business will be the identification, acquisition, marketing and management of residential real estate
properties for the benefit of the Investors.

The Property and the Units

Congreso Series intends to use the net proceeds of this Offering to purchase the Units: up to four
(4) 2-bed, 1-bath condominiums measuring approximately 764 square feet of space and featuring a living
room, dining room, service area, and premium finishes. Amenities and accommodations include one
parking space, a rooftop garden, and a commercial space available for leasing that will provide amenities
(e.g. coffee shop, dry cleaning) to Congreso residents exclusively. The Units will be part of a 45-apartment
building located in the heart of Mexico City and only ten minutes away from buzzing neighborhoods like
Condesa and Roma. The Property is also located near historical sites such as “Plaza de Zocalo,” the main
square in Mexico City, and Palacio de Bellas Artes (the Palace of Fine Arts). The Units will be promoted
as affordable residential rental properties designed to promote sustainability and art.

The purchase price of each Unit is expected to be approximately $130,000.
Investment Strategy and Goals

Our investment strategy is to acquire, manage, lease and eventually sell the Units. Our investment
goals are to realize growth in the value of our real property investments and to grow net cash from
operations so more cash is available for distributions to investors. Although we it is also our goal to protect
the capital contributions of our investors, we cannot assure you that we will attain these objectives or that
the value of our assets will not decrease.

Managerial Operations

Pursuant to the terms of our Operating Agreement, the Manager will provide certain management
and advisory services to us and to each of our Series and their subsidiaries, as well as a management team
and appropriate support personnel. The Manager is wholly owned by our Chief Executive Officer. For more
information, see the section of this Form C titled "Officers and Manager."

Management Fee

The Manager will not collect a fee from Congreso Series for acquiring, managing, or disposing of

the Units but Vylon Balance Solutions S.A de C.V, an entity owned by the Chief Executive Officer of our
Manager, will receive all or substantially all of the proceeds raised in this Offering in exchange for selling
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one or more of the Units to Congreso Series. The Manager expects Vylon Balance Solutions S.A de C.V
will receive approximately 15% of the sales price of each Unit as a fee for developing and selling the Units
to Congreso Series. For more information, see Conflicts of Interest.

Investment Decisions and Asset Management

The Manager will have discretion with respect to the selection of specific investments and the
purchase and sale of our assets. We believe that successful real estate investment requires the
implementation of strategies that permit favorable purchases, effective asset management and timely
disposition of those assets. As such, we have developed a disciplined investment approach that combines
the experience of the Manager with a structure that emphasizes thorough market research, stringent
underwriting standards and an extensive down-side analysis of the risks of each investment. The approach
also includes active and aggressive management of each asset acquired. To execute our disciplined
investment approach, the Manager will take responsibility for the business plan of each investment.

The Manager has the power to manage all decisions of Congreso Series and to bind Congreso Series
and the Company. The Manager has broad power and authority to make all managerial decisions, including,
but not limited to, decisions:

e to acquire the Congreso Series Properties, to execute any lease or sublease, amendments,
modifications or extensions thereof on behalf of the Company, and to take such other
actions and to enter into such other agreements as may be necessary or appropriate in
connection with managing the Congreso Series Properties;

e to cause or approve a sale, transfer or other disposition of the Congreso Series Properties;

e to employ agents, employees, managers, accountants, attorneys, consultants and other
Persons necessary or appropriate to carry out the Business, and to pay fees, expenses,
salaries, wages and other compensation to such Persons, including, without limitation, to
employ the Manager or an affiliate thereof as Property Manager and to pay the Manager or
its affiliate the Property Management Fee;

e to extend, renew, modify, adjust, submit to arbitration, prosecute, defend or compromise,
upon such terms as it may determine and upon such evidence as it may deem sufficient,
any obligation, suit, liability, cause of action or claim, including taxes, either in favor of or
against the Congreso Series or the Company;

e to establish and maintain reasonable reserves for such purposes and in such amounts as it
deems appropriate from time to time and to increase, reduce or eliminate reserves as it
deems appropriate from time to time in anticipation of expected tax payments, capital
expenses or operating expenses;

e toinvest all funds not immediately needed in the operation of the business in FDIC insured
deposit accounts;

e to cause the Congreso Series to make or revoke any elections under the Code, including,
without limitation, elections pursuant to Section 754 of the Code;

e to cause the Congreso Series or the Company to enter into a property management
agreement;
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e to deal with, or otherwise engage in business with, or provide services to and receive
compensation from, any Person (including, without limitation, Affiliates of the Manager)
who has provided or may in the future provide any services to, lend money to, sell property
to or purchase property from the Manager;

e to take any action required by or permitted under the purchase agreement executed to
acquire the Congreso Series Properties or the transactions contemplated thereby;

e to declare and make distributions to the Investors in accordance with the terms of the
Operating Agreement;

e to perform any and all other acts or activities customary or incident to managing the
Congreso Series Properties; and

e to enter into any agreement or commitment binding upon Congreso Series or the Company.
Term and Removal of Manager

The Manager shall serve Congreso Series until its dissolution unless earlier removed by the
Members. The Manager may be removed or replaced if a "Manager Material Default" occurs with respect
to Congreso Series and fifty-one percent (51%) of the Members of such Series elect to remove the Manager,
which removal shall be effective upon the Manager's receipt of written notice of such removal from such
Members. Upon the removal of the Manager, the Members of Congreso Series shall select a new manager
of Congreso Series.

Market

Mexico City is the capital and largest city of Mexico. With approximately 21.3 million inhabitants, it is one
of the most densely populated metropolitan areas in the world, considered the political, economic, and
social hub of Mexico. Like many major cities, the area is known for its historical sites, beautiful
architecture, museums and galleries, gastronomy, and nightlife. Mexico City boasts a stable housing market
and presents the opportunity for significant growth in the residential real estate rental market.

Comparable Unit Sales

The following condominium units at the Property are of similar quality to the Units and have been
sold for the prices listed below.

Unit Sales Price ($USD) Unit Sales Price ($USD)
101 $ 130,000 304 $ 110,000
102 $ 110,000 305 $ 130,000
103 $ 130,000 307 $ 130,000
104 $ 140,000 308 $ 140,000
105 $ 140,000 309 $ 140,000
106 $ 110,000 401 $ 130,000
107 $ 130,000 402 $ 110,000
108 $ 130,000 403 $ 110,000
109 $ 110,000 404 $ 140,000
201 $ 140,000 405 $ 140,000
202 $ 150,000 406 $ 130,000
203 $ 115,000 501 $ 110,000
204 $ 110,000 502 $ 140,000
205 $ 110,000 503 $ 110,000
206 $ 130,000 504 $ 130,000
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207 $ 110,000 405 $ 140,000
209 $ 140,000 406 $ 130,000
301 $ 140,000 508 $ 125,000
302 $ 110,000 509 $ 140,000
303 $ 110,000

Sources & Uses

Congreso Series has no debt and will use the net proceeds of this offering, less expenses of the
offering and organizational expenses, to purchase the Congreso Series Properties.

Property Manager

The Manager expects to appoint a property manager to manage the Units on a discretionary basis
and will enter into a property management agreement with such property manager. Pursuant to the terms of
such property management agreement, Congreso Series will pay the Property Manager an annual fee for
managing the Units.

Acquisition of the Units

Congreso Series expects to acquire the Units pursuant to a purchase and sale agreement executed
by Smart Vylon, LLC and VYLON BALANCE SOLUTIONS S.A. de C.V., a Mexican company of limited
liability (the "Property Owner'’) within a reasonable time following the Closing of this Offering.

Under the terms of the purchase and sale agreement, Congreso Series has the right to purchase up
to seven (7) of the Units for an approximate total sum of $910,000. If less than the Maximum Offering
Amount is raised, Congreso Series may purchaser fewer than four Units. The Units will be transferred to
Congreso Series or to a trustee chosen by Congreso Series without encumbrances or indebtedness. Congreso
Series and Property Owner agree the Units will be transferred to Congreso Series or to a trust for the benefit
of Congreso Series on an unspecified date following the purchase of the Units by Congreso (the "Transfer
Date").

Under the purchase and sale agreement, the parties may terminate the purchase and sale agreement
without responsibility to the other party under the following conditions.

(a) Congreso Series may terminate the purchase and sale agreement if the Property Owner:

e fails to surrender the real estate to Congreso Series in the minimum and essential conditions
of habitability and hygiene so as to be inhabited and enjoyed in the term and under the
conditions as in this agreement on or before the Transfer Date;

e fails to surrender any documents as required to obtain all necessary licenses and permits to
operate the property for the purposes described herein on or before the Transfer Date;
provided, that it was required to so provide;

o fails to make payment for contributions and considerations on the real estate subject matter

hereof for any services - including associated maintenance fees - prior to notarization of
the final purchase-sale agreement;
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e the Units or Property should not have the infrastructure for proper supply and operation of
basic utilities - water, energy, drainage, and gas - for use and utilization thereof;

e the Units or Property is encumbered, mortgaged, leased, or transferred to a third party,
without notice to Congreso Series; or

e the mortgage encumbering the real estate subject matter hereof is not canceled on or before
the Transfer Date.

(b) The Property Owner may terminate the purchase and sale agreement if Congreso Series:
e fails to pay for one or more of the Units;

e delivered false or altered information or documentation to the Property Owner, which
Property Owner relied on causing it material harm;

e promises to sell or commit by any means ownership of the Units, without the prior
authorization in writing by the Property Owner, or without subjecting to the conditions set
thereby;

e determines that prior to the notarization of the final agreement, the Property Owner failed to
maintain the real estate in good condition and prevent it from suffering deterioration additional
to that arising from normal use, and performs therein or thereon any modifications, works
altering, compromising, or modifying the structure of the jointly owned property regime, or
fails to observe that set forth in the rules of the jointly owned property regime governing the
building;

e declares bankruptcy or insolvency - whether by a ruling of a competent judge or by facts
so presuming, and which compromise payment of the purchase price;

e fails to obtain any licenses, permits, or authorizations as appropriate for acquisition of the
apartment subject matter hereof, or setup of the trust whereto the real estate subject matter
hereof should be contributed with; by virtue of the status as foreigner it holds to this date;
or

e fails to fulfill any obligations required of it, which have become impossible to perform.

Property Operations and Holding Period

Congreso Series intends to rent the Units on an annual basis. The asking rent for each Unit will be
approximately $750 per month for each 1-bedroom Units and, which is consistent with other residential
rental rates of other condominiums that makeup the Property. The Manager anticipates that property
operating expenses, which include real estate taxes, property management fees, property insurance and
repairs and maintenance costs, will be approximately $35 USD for each apartment per month. This estimate
is based on the Manager's due diligence calculations. Congreso Series intends to hold the Units for 18
months which time, it will operate the Units as rental properties. During this period, Congreso Series intends
to distribute any Free Cash Flow (as defined below) to its Members in accordance with their ownership of
the Congreso Series Interests. The determination of when to sell the Units will be made after consideration
of relevant factors, including prevailing and projected economic conditions, whether the value of the Units



is anticipated to appreciate or decline substantially, and how any existing conditions may impact the sales
price we may realize. The Manager may determine that it is in the best interests of Members to sell the
Property before or after expected 3-year holding period.

Each Series of the Company will be responsible for the following costs and expenses attributable
to the activities of the Company related to such Series (we refer to these as “Operating Expenses™):

e any and all fees, costs and expenses incurred in connection with the management of a Series
Property, including income taxes, marketing, security and maintenance;

e any fees, costs and expenses incurred in connection with preparing any reports and accounts of
each Series, including any blue sky filings required in order for a Series to be made available to
investors in certain states and any annual audit of the accounts of such Series (if applicable) and
any reports to be filed with the SEC including periodic reports on Forms C-AR, 1-K, 1-SA and 1-
U;

e any and all insurance premiums or expenses, including directors and officers insurance of the
directors and officers of the Manager in connection with the Series Property;

e any withholding or transfer taxes imposed on the Company or a Series or any of the Members as a
result of its or their earnings, investments or withdrawals;

e any governmental fees imposed on the capital of the Company or a Series or incurred in connection
with compliance with applicable regulatory requirements;

e any legal fees and costs (including settlement costs) arising in connection with any litigation or
regulatory investigation instituted against the Company, a Series or a property manager in
connection with the affairs of the Company or a Series;

e the fees and expenses of any administrator, if any, engaged to provide administrative services to
the Company or a Series;

e any fees, costs and expenses of a third-party registrar and transfer agent appointed by the Manager
in connection with a Series;

e the cost of the audit of the Company’s annual financial statements and the preparation of its tax
returns and circulation of reports to Investors;

o the cost of any audit of a Series annual financial statements, the fees, costs and expenses incurred
in connection with making of any tax filings on behalf of a Series and circulation of reports to
members of such Series;

e any indemnification payments to be made pursuant to the requirements of the Operating
Agreement;

o the fees and expenses of the Company’s or a Series’ counsel in connection with advice directly
relating to the Company’s or a Series’ legal affairs;



o the costs of any other outside appraisers, valuation firms, accountants, attorneys or other experts or
consultants engaged by the Manager in connection with the operations of the Company or a Series;
and

e any similar expenses that may be determined to be Operating Expenses, as determined by the
Manager in its reasonable discretion.

The Manager will bear its own expenses of an ordinary nature, including, all costs and expenses on
account of rent, supplies, secretarial expenses, stationery, charges for furniture, fixtures and equipment,
payroll taxes, remuneration and expenses paid to employees and utilities expenditures.

If the Operating Expenses exceed the amount of revenues generated from a Series Property (as
defined in the Operating Agreement) and cannot be covered by any Operating Expense reserves on the
balance sheet of such Series Property, the Manager may (a) pay such Operating Expenses and not seek
reimbursement, (b) loan the amount of the Operating Expenses to the applicable Series, on which the
Manager may impose a reasonable rate of interest, and be entitled to reimbursement of such amount from
future revenues generated by such Series Property (which we refer to as “Operating Expenses
Reimbursement Obligation(s))”, and/or (c) cause additional Congreso Series Interests to be issued in the
such Series in order to cover such additional amounts.

Leverage

Neither the Company nor Congreso Series has incurred or intends to incur any debt to acquire the
Property as of the date of this Form C.

Development Partners

The Property is being developed by Fabila Architects, a Mexico-based architectural firm company
dedicated to generating industrial architecture for the human being and the industry that inhabits it, thus
achieving a balance between the spiritual and the material.

Governmental/Regulatory Approval and Compliance

The Company is subject to and affected by the laws and regulations of Mexico and U.S. federal,
state and local governmental authorities. These laws and regulations are subject to change.

Investment Company Act Disclaimer

We intend to conduct our operations so that neither we, nor our Manager or any of our series, are
required to register as an investment company under the Investment Company Act of 1940 (the “Investment
Company Act”) or the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 (the "Advisers Act"). Section 3(a)(1)(A) of the
Investment Company Act defines an investment company as any issuer that is or holds itself out as being
engaged primarily in the business of investing, reinvesting or trading in securities. Section 3(a)(1)(C) of the
Investment Company Act defines an investment company as any issuer that is engaged or proposes to
engage in the business of investing, reinvesting, owning, holding or trading in securities and owns or
proposes to acquire investment securities having a value exceeding forty percent (40%) of the value of the
issuer’s total assets (exclusive of U.S. Government securities and cash items) on an unconsolidated basis,
which we refer to as the forty percent (40%) test. Excluded from the term “investment securities,” among
other things, are U.S. Government securities and securities issued by majority-owned subsidiaries that are
not themselves investment companies and are not relying on the exception from the definition of investment
company set forth in Section 3(c)(1) or Section 3(c)(7) of the Investment Company Act.



Litigation

The Company is not subject to any current litigation or threatened litigation.



USE OF PROCEEDS

The following table illustrates how we intend to use the net proceeds received from this Offering.
The values below are not inclusive of payments to financial and legal service providers and escrow related
fees, all of which were incurred in the preparation of this Offering and are due in advance of the closing of

the Offering.

o . .
% of Proceeds if Amount if Target 0 R/f[:;iﬁf;:gs if 1?/[:1;1:115:1{
Use of Proceeds Target Offering Offering Amount Offering Amount Offering Amount
Amount Raised Raised Ragise d Ragise d "
Intermediary Fees 4% $5,600 4% $39,220
Purchase of
Congreso Series 93% $130,000 93% $910,000
Properties
Operating Capital 3% $4,400 3% $31,280
Total 100% $140,000 100% $980,500

Congreso Series intends to use a portion of the net proceeds of this Offering to purchase the Units,
which comprise a 45-unit condominium building expected to be constructed and operational in the second
quarter of 2021. Congreso Series estimates the total cost of acquiring and preparing the Units to be
$980,500, approximately $910,000 of which will be used to purchase the Units and $31,280 of which will
be used to furnish and prepare each Unit for leasing and serve as operating capital to maintain the Units and
pay for expenses of the Offering. Congreso Series will purchase as many Units as can be purchased with
the proceeds of the Offering, less the operating capital required to pay for the expenses of the offering and
other general operating expenses of Congreso Series, so long as the Target Offering is met. Approximately
$40,000 will be paid to the Intermediary as fees for conducting the Offering if the Target Offering is met.

The Manager has discretion to alter the use of proceeds set forth above to adhere to Congreso Series'
business plan and liquidity requirements. For example, economic conditions may alter the Company’s
general marketing or general working capital requirements. Additionally, the Manager is unable to precisely
predict the total offering expenses, which will be paid using the operating capital of Congreso Series.

Congreso Series will be responsible for reimbursing the Manager, or its affiliates, for the expenses
of the financial and legal service providers and escrow related fees, all of which were incurred in preparation
of this Offering and were due in advance of the closing of the campaign.



OFFICERS AND MANAGER

The officers of the Company are listed below along with all positions and offices held at the
Company and their principal occupation and employment responsibilities for the past three (3) years.

Name Office Held at the Company
Victor Hugo Rosales Aranda Chief Executive Officer
Olga Lidia Aranda Salas Chief Operating Officer

Manager

Victor Hugo Rosales Aranda owns 100% of the equity interests of our Manager. The Manager has no other
members and has not appointed any person as a director, manager, or officer, but Mr. Aranda may serve in one or
more capacities for the Manager from time to time.

Biographical Information
Victor Hugo Rosales Aranda

Victor Aranda is a real estate investment manager and entrepreneur dedicated to developing
residential properties and apartment complexes with sustainable features. He has served as the Chief
Executive Officer of Smart Vylon, LLC since its inception in 2019. For the past ten years, Mr. Aranda has
overseen the development over $500 million in real estate properties. Prior to serving as the CEO, he co-
founded Zima Smart Equity, a private real estate investment company to fund the construction of residential
apartment buildings in Mexico. In 2017, Mr. Aranda co-founded Yavo Capital, a Mexico-based financial
institution focused on providing financing to residential real estate development projects. Since 2016, Mr.
Aranda has served as the chairman of Vivendum, a real estate development company focused on developing
up-scale residential apartment complexes in Mexico. Mr. Aranda also co-founded a construction
consortium in 2010 and continues to be instrumental in the company's growth to this day. Since its inception
the group has built and sold more than 1,000 homes in residential apartment buildings in Mexico City and
the Riviera Maya, all of which are eco-friendly and promote art and social inclusion. With more than 40
projects developed and 29 in process, the group's development portfolio for the next 5 years is estimated to
be valued at $507 million dollars with an expected revenue of $602 million dollars. Mr. Aranda studied
International Relations at Universidad Iberoamericana 2009-2013.

Olga Lidia Aranda Salas

Ms. Aranda has served as the Chief Operating Officer of Smart Vylon, LLC since its inception.
Prior to holding this position, she founded and, served as the managing director for the past ten years at,
Arthuman Direccionando Talentos, a consulting company dedicated to recruiting and training executive
personnel in a variety of industries. Ms. Salas also spent 15 years as the manager of business development
for Manpower, a leading recruitment firm in Mexico. Ms. Salas co-founded Community Citroz, a co-
working center in México City, Mexico. Ms. Aranda oversees management of Zima Smart Equity and
handles day to day operations.

Indemnification

Indemnification is authorized by the Company to managers, officers or controlling persons acting
in their professional capacity pursuant to Delaware law. Indemnification includes expenses such as
attorney’s fees and, in certain circumstances, judgments, fines and settlement amounts actually paid or
incurred in connection with actual or threatened actions, suits or proceedings involving such person, except



in certain circumstances where a person is adjudged to be guilty of gross negligence or willful misconduct,
unless a court of competent jurisdiction determines that such indemnification is fair and reasonable under

the circumstances.
Employees

The Company does not currently have any employees.



CAPITALIZATION, DEBT AND OWNERSHIP

Capitalization

The Company has not issued Congreso Series Interests as of the date of this Form C. The Company
will authorize between 1,400-9,805 Congreso Series Interests. At the closing of this Offering, assuming
only the Target Offering Amount is sold, 1,400 Congreso Series Interests will be issued and outstanding. If
the Maximum Offering Amount is sold, 9,805 Congreso Series Interests will be issued and outstanding.
These calculations do not include 1% of Congreso Series Interests sold in this Offering to be issued to the

Intermediary.

Outstanding Membership Interests

As of the date of this Form C, the Company has 100 outstanding membership interests, 5,117
outstanding Nectar Series Interests, and no outstanding Congreso Series Interests. For more information,
see Financial Information — Previous Offerings of Securities.

Outstanding Debt

As of the date of this Form C, the Company and Congreso Series have no outstanding debt.

Ownership

The table below lists the beneficial owners of twenty percent (20%) or more of the Company’s outstanding voting
equity securities, calculated on the basis of voting power, are listed along with the amount they own. Mr. Aranda,
through his ownership of the Manager, is the beneficial owner of more than 20% of the Company’s outstanding voting

equity securities.

Name

Amount and Type or Class Held

Percentage Ownership of the
Company (in terms of voting
power) (excluding any Series of
the Company)

Victor Hugo Rosales Aranda

100 LLC Interests

100

As of the date of this Form C, Congreso Series has not offered or sold any securities prior to this Offering.




FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Please see the financial information listed on the cover page of this Form C and attached hereto in
addition to the following information. Financial statements are attached hereto as Exhibit A.

Operations

The Company's predecessor was formed as a Delaware corporation in December 2019 and
converted to a Delaware limited liability company in April 2020. Since their inception, the Company and
Congreso Series has had minimal operations and has primarily been engaged in developing the financial,
offering and other materials to begin fundraising for this Offering. We are considered to be a development
stage company, since we are devoting substantially all of our efforts to establishing our business and
planned principal operations have only recently commenced.

Revenues will be generated at the series level. As of the date of this Form C, Congreso Series has
not generated any revenues. Congreso Series and is not expected to generate any revenues until 2021. We
have not incurred any Operating Expenses for the period since inception through the date of this Offering.
Each Series will be responsible for its own Operating Expenses beginning on the closing date of the
Offering of such Series.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers short-term, highly liquid investment with original maturities of three
months or less at the time of purchase to be cash equivalents. Cash consists of funds held in the Company’s
checking account. As of December 31, 2020, the Company had $330,100 in escrow with Republic from
Nectar Series crowdfunding campaign. As of the date of this Form C, Congreso Series has no cash or cash
equivalents.
Liquidity and Capital Resources

The proceeds from the Offering are essential to the Company’s operations. the Company intends
to use the proceeds immediately as set forth above under the section titled “Use of Proceeds”, which is an
indispensable element of our business strategy. The Company currently does not have any, and does not
anticipate having any, additional outside sources of capital for the business operations described herein
other than the proceeds from the Offering.
Capital Expenditures and Other Obligations

The Company intends to make capital expenditures following the closing of this Offering as set
forth above under the section titled “Use of Proceeds”.

Valuation

The price of the Securities does not necessarily bear any relationship to the Company’s asset value,
net worth, revenues or other established criteria of value, and should not be considered indicative of the
actual value of the Securities.

Material Changes and Other Information

Trends and Uncertainties
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After reviewing the above discussion of the steps the Company intends to take, potential Investors
should consider whether achievement of each step within the estimated time frame will be realistic in their
judgment. Potential Investors should also assess the consequences to the Company of any delays in taking
these steps and whether the Company will need additional financing to accomplish them.

Please see the financial statements attached as Exhibit A for subsequent events and applicable
disclosures.

Previous Offerings of Securities

The Company issued 100 of its membership interests to the Manager on September 29, 2020. On
March 15, 2021, the Company completed a Regulation CF for its Nectar Series and thereafter issued a total
of $511,767.00 of membership interests in Nectar Series at a price of $100 per interest, $506,700 of which
were issued to investors and $5,067 of which were issued to OpenDeal Portal, LLC d/b/a Republic. As of
the date of this Form C, Congreso Series has not offered or sold any securities prior to this Offering.

The Company is a series limited liability company formed pursuant to Section 18-215 of the LLC
Act. The purchase of membership interests in a Series of the Company is an investment only in that
particular Series and not an investment in the Company as a whole or in any other Series. In accordance
with the LLC Act, each Series is, and any other Series if issuing membership interests in the future will be,
a separate series of the Company and not in a separate legal entity. For more information, see The Offering
and the Securities — Series LLC Organization.
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CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

From time to time the Company and Congreso Series may engage in transactions with related
persons. Related persons are defined as any director or officer of the Company; any person who is the
beneficial owner of twenty percent (20%) or more of the Company’s outstanding voting equity securities,
calculated on the basis of voting power; any promoter of the Company; any immediate family member of
any of the foregoing persons or an entity controlled by any such person or persons. Specifically, the Property
Owner is wholly-owned by our Chief Executive Officer, and will receive the net proceeds raised in this
Offering following Smart Vylon, LLC’s execution of a purchase and sale agreement for one or more of the
Units.

Additionally, the Company will disclose here any transaction since the beginning of the issuer's
last fiscal year, or any currently proposed transaction, to which the issuer was or is to be a party and the
amount involved exceeds five percent (5%) of the aggregate amount of capital raised by the issuer in
reliance on section 4(a)(6), including the Target Offering Amount of this Offering, and the counter party is
either (i) any director or officer of the issuer; (ii) any person who is, as of the most recent practicable date
but no earlier than 120 days prior to the date the offering statement or report is filed, the beneficial owner
of twenty percent (20%) or more of the issuer's outstanding voting equity securities, calculated on the basis
of voting power; (iii) if the issuer was incorporated or organized within the past three years, any promoter
of the issuer; or (iv) any member of the family of any of the foregoing persons, which includes a child,
stepchild, grandchild, parent, stepparent, grandparent, spouse or spousal equivalent, sibling, mother-in-law,
father-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, or sister-in-law, and shall include adoptive
relationships. The term spousal equivalent means a cohabitant occupying a relationship generally
equivalent to that of a spouse.

Congreso Series intends to conduct the following transaction with related persons:

e Congreso Series shall execute one or more purchase and sale agreements for the Units
following the closing of this offering with Vylon Balance Solutions S.A. de C.V., a limited
liability company organized under the laws of Mexico and wholly owned by Victor Hugo
Rosales Aranda.

Fees Paid to the Manager

Typically, managers of real estate investments charge (i) a management fee calculated as a
percentage of the fair market value of the properties managed, (ii) an acquisition fee calculated as a
percentage of the purchase price of the property, and (iii) a disposition fee calculated as a percentage of the
sale price of the property. The Manager will not receive a fee for acquiring, managing, or disposing of the
Units, but the Property Owner, which is owned by the Chief Executive Officer of the Manager, will receive
a portion of the net proceeds from this Offering in exchange for selling one or more of the Units to Congreso
Series.

The total approximate cost of purchasing and developing the entire Property is $3,700,000. The

sales price for each Unit shall not be more than the sales price listed under the section of this Form C titled
"The Property and the Units."
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THE OFFERING AND THE SECURITIES

Capitalized terms used in this section which are not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to
them in the Operating Agreement and Congreso Series Designation, as applicable.

The Offering

The Company is offering a minimum amount of $140,000 (the “Target Offering Amount”) and
up to a maximum amount of $980,500 (the “Maximum Offering Amount”) of membership interests in
Congreso Series ("Congreso Series"), a series of the Company (the “Congreso Series Interests” or
“Securities”) on a best efforts basis as described in this Form C (this “Offering”). We must raise an
amount equal to or greater than the Target Offering Amount by January 30, 2022 (the “Offering
Deadline”). Unless we raise at least the Target Offering Amount by the Offering Deadline, no Securities
will be sold in this Offering, all investment commitments will be cancelled and all committed funds will
be returned. Potential purchasers of the Securities are referred to herein as “Investors” or “you”.

The price of the Securities was determined arbitrarily, does not necessarily bear any relationship to
the Company’s asset value, net worth, revenues or other established criteria of value, and should not be
considered indicative of the actual value of the Securities. The minimum amount that an Investor may invest
in the Offering is $200 and the maximum amount that an Investor may invest in the Offering is $100,000,
each of which is subject to adjustment in the Company’s sole discretion.

Purchase Procedures

In order to purchase the Securities, you must make a commitment to purchase by completing the
subscription process hosted by OpenDeal Portal LLC dba Republic (the “Intermediary”), including
complying with the Intermediary’s know your customer (KYC) and anti-money laundering (AML) policies.
If an Investor makes an investment commitment under a name that is not their legal name, they may
be unable to redeem their Security indefinitely, and neither the Intermediary nor the Company are
required to correct any errors or omissions made by the Investor.

Investor funds will be held in escrow with Prime Trust, LLC until the Target Offering Amount has
been met or exceeded and one or more closings occur. Investors may cancel an investment commitment
until up to 48 hours prior to the Offering Deadline, or such earlier time as the Company designates pursuant
to Regulation CF, using the cancellation mechanism provided by the Intermediary. Investors using a credit
card to invest must represent and warrant to cancel any investment commitment(s) by submitting a
request through the Intermediary at least 48 hours prior to the Offering Deadline, instead of
attempting to claim fraud or claw back their committed funds.

The Company will notify Investors when the Target Offering Amount has been reached through
the Intermediary. If the Company reaches the Target Offering Amount prior to the Offering Deadline, it
may close the Offering early provided (i) the expedited Offering Deadline must be twenty-one (21) days
from the time the Offering was opened, (ii) the Intermediary must provide at least five (5) business days’
notice prior to the expedited Offering Deadline to the Investors and (iii) the Company continues to meet or
exceed the Target Offering Amount on the date of the expedited Offering Deadline.

Material Changes
If any material change occurs related to the Offering prior to the current Offering Deadline the

Company will provide notice to Investors and receive reconfirmations from Investors who have already
made commitments. If an Investor does not reconfirm their investment commitment after a material change
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is made to the terms of the Offering within five (5) business days of receiving notice, the Investor’s
investment commitment will be cancelled and the committed funds will be returned without interest or
deductions. If an Investor does not cancel an investment commitment before the Target Offering Amount
is reached, the funds will be released to the Company upon the closing of the Offering and the Investor will
receive the Securities in exchange for their investment.

Intermediate Closings

In the event an amount equal to two (2) times the Target Offering Amount is committed and meets
all required terms of the Offering prior to the Offering Deadline on such date or such later time the Company
designates pursuant to Rule 304(b) of Regulation CF, the Company may conduct the first of multiple
closings of the Offering early, provided (i) the early closing date must be twenty-one (21) days from the
time the Offering opened and (ii)that all Investors will receive notice of such early closing date at least five
(5) business days prior to such new offering deadline (absent a material change that would require an
extension of the Offering and reconfirmation of all investment commitments). Investors who committed on
the date such notice is provided or prior to the issuance of such notice will be able to cancel their investment
commitment until 48 hours before such early closing date.

If the Company conducts an initial closing (the “Initial Closing”), the Company agrees to only
withdraw half of the proceeds that are in escrow and will only conduct such Initial Closing if there are more
than twenty-one (21) days remaining before the Offering Deadline as of the date of the Initial Closing. The
Company may only conduct another close (a “Subsequent Closing”) before the Offering Deadline if the
amount of investment commitments made as of the date of such Subsequent Closing exceeds two times the
amount committed as of the date of the Initial Closing and there are more than twenty-one (21) days
remaining before the Offering Deadline as of the date of such Subsequent Closing.

Any investment commitments received after an intermediate closing will be released to the
Company upon a subsequent closing and the Investor will receive evidence of the Securities via electronic
certificate/PDF in exchange for their investment commitment as soon as practicable thereafter.

The Company has agreed to return all funds to Investors in the event a Form C-W is ultimately
filed in relation to this Offering, regardless of whether multiple closings are conducted.

Investment commitments are not binding on the Company until they are accepted by the Company,
which reserves the right to reject, in whole or in part, in its sole and absolute discretion, any investment
commitment. If the Company rejects all or a portion of any investment commitment, the applicable
prospective Investor’s funds will be returned without interest or deduction.

PRIME TRUST, THE ESCROW AGENT SERVICING THE OFFERING, HAS NOT
INVESTIGATED THE DESIRABILITY OR ADVISABILITY OF AN INVESTMENT IN THIS
OFFERING OR THE SECURITIES OFFERED HEREIN. THE ESCROW AGENT MAKES NO
REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, ENDORSEMENTS, OR JUDGEMENT ON THE
MERITS OF THE OFFERING OR THE SECURITIES OFFERED HEREIN. THE ESCROW
AGENT’S CONNECTION TO THE OFFERING IS SOLELY FOR THE LIMITED PURPOSES
OF ACTING AS A SERVICE PROVIDER.

We request that you please review this Form C and the Subscription Agreement attached as Exhibit
C, in conjunction with the following summary information.

The Securities
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The Securities offered herein are membership interests in the Congreso Series and represent only a
right to the assets of the Congreso Series. The Securities do not represent a right to assets of the Company,
the Manager, or any other series now or later formed by the Company. The Congreso Series Interests
purchased and held by each person who becomes a Member of Congreso Series may be expressed as a
number of units or a percentage of each such Member's ownership of the Congreso Series Interests.

Series LLC Organization

The Company is a series limited liability company formed pursuant to Section 18-215 of the LLC
Act. The purchase of membership interests in a Series of the Company is an investment only in that
particular Series and not an investment in the Company as a whole. In accordance with the LLC Act, each
Series is, and any other Series if issuing membership interests in the future will be, a separate series of the
Company and not in a separate legal entity. The Company has not issued, and does not intend to issue, any
class of any Series membership interests entitled to any preemptive, preferential or other rights that are not
otherwise available to the Investors purchasing Congreso Series Interests in connection with any Offering.

Subject to the provisions of the Operating Agreement, the Manager can cause the Company to
establish one or more Series of the Company through the creation of a written series designation (a “Series
Designation”) for each new Series. A Series Designation relates solely to the Series established thereby and
shall not be construed: (i) to affect the terms and conditions of any other Series, or (ii) to designate, fix or
determine the rights, powers, authority, privileges, preferences, duties, responsibilities, liabilities and
obligations in respect of membership interests associated with any other Series, or the Members associated
therewith. The terms and conditions for each Series are as set forth in the Operating Agreement and in the
Series Designation, as applicable. Upon approval of any Series Designation by the Manager, the Series
Designation is attached to the Operating Agreement as an Exhibit. The Series Designation establishing a
Series may: (i) specify a name or names under which the business and affairs of such Series may be
conducted; (ii) designate, fix and determine the relative rights, powers, authority, privileges, preferences,
duties, responsibilities, liabilities and obligations in respect of the membership interests of such Series and
the members associated therewith (to the extent such terms differ from those set forth in the Operating
Agreement); and (iii) designate or authorize the designation of specific officers to be associated with such
Series. The Series Designation for Congreso Series is attached to the Operating Agreement.

Title to the properties purchased by each Series may be held by, or for the benefit of, the applicable
Series of the Company through a Delaware limited liability company which will be a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the applicable Series. We intend for Congreso Series to own only the Units. New Series will
be formed and will issue their own membership interests for future properties. An Investor who invests in
an Offering of a Series will not have any indirect interest in any properties or assets of any other Series
unless the Investor also participates in a separate series offering associated with that such property.

Section 18-215(b) of the LLC Act provides that, if certain conditions are met (including that certain
provisions are in the formation and governing documents of the series limited liability company, and upon
the closing of an offering for a Series, the records maintained for any such Series account for the assets
associated with such Series separately from the assets of the limited liability company, or any other Series),
then the debts, liabilities, obligations and expenses incurred, contracted for or otherwise existing with
respect to a particular Series shall be enforceable only against the assets of such Series and not against the
assets of the limited liability company generally or any other Series. Accordingly, the Company expects
the Manager to maintain separate, distinct record, and bank accounts, for each Series and its associated
assets and liabilities. As such, the assets of a Series include only the property associated with that Series
and other related assets (e.g., cash reserves). As noted in the “Risk Factors” section, the limitations on inter-
series liability provided by Section 18-215(b) have never been tested in federal bankruptcy courts and it is
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possible that a bankruptcy court could determine that the assets of one Series should be applied to meet the
liabilities of the other Series or the liabilities of the Company generally where the assets of such other Series
or of the Company generally are insufficient to meet the Company’s liabilities.

Section 18-215(c) of the LLC Act provides that a Series established in accordance with Section 18-
215(b) may carry on any lawful business, purpose or activity, other than the business of banking, and has
the power and capacity to, in its own name, contract, hold title to assets (including real, personal and
intangible property), grant liens and security interests, and sue and be sued. The Company intends for each
Series to conduct its business and enter into contracts in its own name to the extent such activities are
undertaken with respect to a particular Series and title to the relevant Property will be held by, or for the
benefit of, the relevant Series.

All of the Series membership interests offered by this Form C will be duly authorized and validly
issued. Upon payment in full of the consideration payable with respect to the Series membership interests,
as determined by the Manager, the holders of such Series membership interests will not be liable to the
Company to make any additional capital contributions with respect to such Series membership interests
(except for the return of distributions under certain circumstances as required by Sections 18-215, 18-607
and 18-804 of the LLC Act). Holders of Series membership interests have no conversion, exchange, sinking
fund, redemption or appraisal rights, no pre-emptive rights to subscribe for any membership interests and
no preferential rights to distributions.

Transfer Agent and Registrar
The Company will act as transfer agent and registrar for the Securities.
Distributions

The Manager has sole discretion in determining what distributions of Free Cash Flow, if any, are
made to Members except as otherwise limited by law or the Operating Agreement. “Free Cash Flow”
consists of the net income (as determined under GAAP) generated by such series plus any change in net
working capital and depreciation and amortization (and any other non-cash Operating Expenses) and less
any capital expenditures related to the Property related to such Series. The Manager may maintain Free
Cash Flow funds in a deposit account or an investment account for the benefit of the series. The Company
expects the Manager to make distributions of any Free Cash Flow on a semi-annual basis as set forth below.
However, the Manager may change the timing of distributions or determine that no distributions shall be
made in its sole discretion.

Although the Manager intends to make distributions semi-annually, it may, in its sole discretion, at
any time and from time to time, declare, make and pay distributions of cash to the Members of any Series.
Subject to the terms of any Series Designation (including, without limitation, the Preferential Rights, if any,
of holders of any other class of membership interests of any Series), distributions shall be paid to the holders
of the membership interests of any Series on an equal per-interest basis as of the Record Date selected by
the Manager. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary contained in this Agreement, neither the
Company nor any Series shall be required to make a distribution to any Member on account of its interest
in the Company or a Series if such distribution would violate the Delaware Act or other applicable law.

Dissolution
The Company shall dissolve, and its affairs shall be wound up, upon (i) an election to dissolve the

Company by the Manager; (ii) the sale, exchange or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets
and properties of all Series (which shall include the obsolesce of a Series Property) and the subsequent

16



election to dissolve the Company by the Manager; (iii) the entry of a decree of judicial dissolution of the
Company pursuant to the provisions of the Delaware Act; (iv) at any time that there are no Members of the
Company, unless the business of the Company is continued in accordance with the Delaware Act. Congreso
Series shall terminate, and its affairs shall be wound up, upon: (i) the dissolution of the Company; (ii) the
sale, exchange or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets and properties of Congreso Series
and the subsequent election to dissolve the Company by the Manager; (iii) an election to terminate the
Series by the Manager; or (iv) at any time that there are no Members of Congreso Series, unless the business
of Congreso Series is continued in accordance with the Delaware Act. Each Series shall be responsible for
all costs and expenses incidental to the termination and winding up of such Series and its share of the costs
and expenses incidental to the termination and winding up of the Company as allocated to it in accordance
with the Operating Agreement.

Voting and Control

The Manager is not required to hold an annual meeting of Members. The Members owning
membership interests in any Series shall have the voting rights, if any, as set forth in each Series
Designation. The Congreso Series Designation offers extremely limited voting rights. Specifically, it
entitles the Record Holders to one vote per membership interest on any and all matters submitted to the
consent or approval of the Members of Congreso Series.

The affirmative vote of the holders of not less than a majority of the Congreso Series Interests then
outstanding shall be required for: (a) any amendment to the Operating Agreement (including the Congresso
Series Designation) that would adversely change the rights of the Congreso Series Interests; (b) mergers,
consolidations or conversions of the Congreso Series, but not the Company; and (c) all such other matters
as the Manager, determines shall require the approval of the holders of the outstanding Congreso Series
Interests voting as a separate class.

Additionally, upon a "Manager Material Default" as defined in the Operating Agreement, fifty-one
percent (51%) of the Members of such Series may elect to remove the Managing Member

Anti-Dilution Rights

The Securities do not have anti-dilution rights, which means that future equity issuances and other
events will dilute the ownership percentage that the Investor may eventually have in the Company.

Restrictions on Transfer

The Congreso Series Interests are subject to restrictions on transferability. An Interest Holder may
not transfer, assign or pledge its Congreso Series Interests without the consent of the Manager. The Manager
may withhold consent in its sole discretion. Additionally, a Transfer shall be void or will be prohibited if it

has or may:

o result in the Company or any Series directly or indirectly exceeding the 99-investor limit
provided by Section 3(c)(1) of the Investment Company Act, if applicable;

o cause all or any portion of the assets of the Company or any Series to constitute plan assets
for purposes of ERISA;

o cause the Company, or a Series, to become subject to the Investment Company Act of
1940 or the Manager to become subject to the Investment Advisers Act of 1940;
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o subject the Company, the Series, the Manager or any of their respective Affiliates to
additional regulatory or governmental reporting or compliance requirements from which
the Company was exempt as of the date of formation;

o cause the Company to be disqualified as a limited liability company;

o subject the Company, any Series, the Manager or any of their respective Affiliates to any
tax to which it would not otherwise be subject;

o require registration of the Company, any Series or any membership interests under any
securities laws of the United States of America, any state thereof or any other jurisdiction;

o violate or be inconsistent with any representation or warranty made by the transferring
Member; or

o may adversely affect the Company or a Series as determined by the Manager in its sole
discretion.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, any Securities sold pursuant to Regulation CF being offered may
not be transferred by any Investor of such Securities during the one-year holding period beginning when
the Securities were issued, unless such Securities are transferred: (1) to the Company; (2) to an accredited
investor, as defined by Rule 501(d) of Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act; (3) as part of an
IPO; or (4) to a member of the family of the Investor or the equivalent, to a trust controlled by the Investor,
to a trust created for the benefit of a member of the family of the Investor or the equivalent, or in connection
with the death or divorce of the Investor or other similar circumstances. “Member of the family” as used
herein means a child, stepchild, grandchild, parent, stepparent, grandparent, spouse or spousal equivalent,
sibling, mother/father/daughter/son/sister/brother-in-law, and includes adoptive relationships. Each
Investor should be aware that although the Securities may legally be able to be transferred, there is no
guarantee that another party will be willing to purchase them.

In addition to the foregoing restrictions, prior to making any transfer of the Securities, such
transferring Investor must either make such transfer pursuant to an effective registration statement filed
with the SEC or provide the Company with an opinion of counsel reasonably satisfactory to the Company
stating that a registration statement is not necessary to effect such transfer.

Redemption
The Congreso Series Interests are not redeemable.
Liquidation Rights

Upon dissolution of the Company or termination of any Series, the Manager shall select one or more Persons
(which may be the Manager) to act as Liquidator. In the case of a dissolution of the Company, (i) the Liquidator shall
be entitled to receive compensation for its services as Liquidator; (ii) the Liquidator shall agree not to resign at any
time without fifteen (15) days prior notice to the Manager and may be removed at any time by the Manager; (iii) upon
dissolution, death, incapacity, removal or resignation of the Liquidator, a successor and substitute Liquidator (who
shall have and succeed to all rights, powers and duties of the original Liquidator) shall within 30 days be appointed
by the Manager.

In connection with the liquidation of a Series, whether as a result of the dissolution of the Company or the
termination of such Series, the Liquidator shall proceed to dispose of the assets of such Series, discharge its liabilities,
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and otherwise wind up its affairs in such manner and over such period as determined by the Liquidator, subject to
Sections 18-215 and 18-804 of the Delaware Act, the terms of any Series Designation and the following:

e Generally, the assets may be disposed of by public or private sale on such terms as the Liquidator
may determine. The Liquidator may defer liquidation for a reasonable time if it determines that an
immediate sale or distribution of all or some of the assets would be impractical or would cause
undue loss to the Members of such Series.

e Liabilities of each Series include amounts owed to the Liquidator as compensation for serving in
such capacity as well as any outstanding Operating Expenses Reimbursement Obligations (as
defined in the Operating Agreement) and any other amounts owed to Members of such Series
otherwise than in respect of their distribution rights under Article VII of the Operating Agreement.
With respect to any liability that is contingent, conditional or unmatured or is otherwise not yet due
and payable, the Liquidator shall either settle such claim for such amount as it thinks appropriate or
establish a reserve of Free Cash Flows (as defined in the Operating Agreement) or other assets to
provide for its payment. When paid, any unused portion of the reserve shall be applied to other
liabilities or distributed as additional liquidation proceeds.

e  Subject to the terms of any Series Designation (including, without limitation, the preferential rights,
if any, of holders of any other class of Interests of the applicable Series), all property and all Free
Cash Flows in excess of that required to discharge liabilities as provided in Section 11.3(b) of the
Operating Agreement shall be distributed to the holders of the Interests of the Series on an equal per
Interest basis.

COMMISSION AND FEES

At the conclusion of the Offering, the Congreso Series shall pay a fee of four percent (4%) of the amount
raised in the Offering to the Intermediary.

Stock, Warrants and Other Compensation

The Intermediary will also receive compensation in the form of securities equal to one percent (1%) of the
total number of the Securities sold in the offering

TAX MATTERS

EACH PROSPECTIVE INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT WITH THEIR OWN TAX AND ERISA
ADVISOR AS TO THE PARTICULAR CONSEQUENCES TO THE INVESTOR OF THE
PURCHASE, OWNERSHIP AND SALE OF THE INVESTOR’S SECURITIES, AS WELL AS
POSSIBLE CHANGES IN THE TAX LAWS.

TO ENSURE COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS IMPOSED BY THE INTERNAL
REVENUE SERVICE, WE INFORM YOU THAT ANY TAX STATEMENT IN THIS FORM C
CONCERNING UNITED STATES FEDERAL TAXES IS NOT INTENDED OR WRITTEN TO BE
USED, AND CANNOT BE USED, BY ANY TAXPAYER FOR THE PURPOSE OF AVOIDING
ANY TAX-RELATED PENALTIES UNDER THE UNITED STATES INTERNAL REVENUE
CODE. ANY TAX STATEMENT HEREIN CONCERNING UNITED STATES FEDERAL TAXES
WAS WRITTEN IN CONNECTION WITH THE MARKETING OR PROMOTION OF THE
TRANSACTIONS OR MATTERS TO WHICH THE STATEMENT RELATES. EACH
TAXPAYER SHOULD SEEK ADVICE BASED ON THE TAXPAYER’S PARTICULAR
CIRCUMSTANCES FROM AN INDEPENDENT TAX ADVISOR.
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Potential Investors who are not United States residents are urged to consult their tax advisors
regarding the United States federal income tax implications of any investment in the Company, as
well as the taxation of such investment by their country of residence. Furthermore, it should be
anticipated that distributions from the Company to such foreign investors may be subject to United
States withholding tax.

EACH POTENTIAL INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT THEIR OWN TAX ADVISOR
CONCERNING THE POSSIBLE IMPACT OF STATE TAXES.

LEGAL MATTERS

Any prospective Investor should consult with its own counsel and advisors in evaluating an investment in
the Offering.

DISCLAIMER OF TELEVISION, RADIO, PODCAST AND STREAMING PRESENTATION

The Company’s officers may participate in the filming or recording of a various media and in the course of
the filming, may present certain business information to the investor panel appearing on the show (the
“Presentation”). The Company will not pass upon the merits of, certify, approve, or otherwise authorize
the statements made in the Presentation. The Presentation commentary being made should not be viewed
as superior or a substitute for the disclosures made in this Form-C. Accordingly, the statements made in the
Presentation, unless reiterated in the Offering materials provided herein, should not be applied to the
Company’s business and operations as of the date of this Offering. Moreover, the Presentation may involve
several statements constituting puffery, that is, exaggerations not to be taken literally or otherwise as
indication of factual data or historical or future performance.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

The summaries of, and references to, various documents in this Form C do not purport to be complete and
in each instance reference should be made to the copy of such document which is either an appendix to this
Form C or which will be made available to Investors and their professional advisors upon request.

Prior to making an investment decision regarding the Securities described herein, prospective Investors
should carefully review and consider this entire Form C. The Company is prepared to furnish, upon request,
a copy of the forms of any documents referenced in this Form C. The Company’s representatives will be
available to discuss with prospective Investors and their representatives and advisors, if any, any matter set
forth in this Form C or any other matter relating to the Securities described in this Form C, so that
prospective Investors and their representatives and advisors, if any, may have available to them all
information, financial and otherwise, necessary to formulate a well-informed investment decision.
Additional information and materials concerning the Company will be made available to prospective
Investors and their representatives and advisors, if any, at a mutually convenient location upon reasonable
request.
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of Sections 4(a)(6) and 4A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Regulation
Crowdfunding (§ 227.100 et seq.), the issuer certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the
requirements for filing on Form C and has duly caused this Form to be signed on its behalf by the duly authorized
undersigned.

/s/Victor Hugo Rosales Aranda
(Signature)

Victor Hugo Rosales Aranda
(Name)

Chief Executive Officer
(Title)

Pursuant to the requirements of Sections 4(a)(6) and 4A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Regulation
Crowdfunding (§ 227.100 et seq.), this Form C has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on the
dates indicated.

VYLON BALANCE SOLUTIONS, LLC
as Manager

/s/Victor Hugo Rosales Aranda

(Signature)

Victor Hugo Rosales Aranda

(Name)

Member
(Title)

10/29/2021
(Date)

/s/Victor Hugo Rosales Aranda
(Signature)

Victor Hugo Rosales Aranda
(Name)

Chief Executive Officer
(Title)

10/29/2021
(Date)




/s/Olga Lidia Aranda Salas
(Signature)

Olga Lidia Aranda Salas
(Name)

Chief Operating Officer
(Title)

10/29/2021
(Date)

Instructions.

1. The form shall be signed by the issuer, its principal executive officer or officers, its principal financial officer,
its controller or principal accounting officer and at least a majority of the board of directors or persons performing
similar functions.

2. The name of each person signing the form shall be typed or printed beneath the signature. Intentional
misstatements or omissions of facts constitute federal criminal violations. See 18 U.S.C. 1001.
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REVIEW REPORT

To the Board of Managers of
Smart Vylon, LLC

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated balance sheet of Smart Vylon, LLC as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and
the related consolidated statements of income, statements of equity, and cash flow statement for the years then
ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements referred to present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Smart Vylon, LLC as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Smart Vylon,
LLC and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating
to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Smart Vylon, LLC's ability to continue as a going
concern for period of twelve months from the end of the year ended December 31, 2020.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users made on the basis of these financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

* Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining,
on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.




e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Smart
Vylon, LLC,’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about Smart Vylon, LLC's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that
we identified during the audit.

%M,Wt S

June 2, 2021
Los Angeles, California




SMART VYLON, LLC
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As of December 31,

(USD S in Dollars)
ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash
Total current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

MEMBERS' EQUITY
Non-controlling interest - Nectar Series
Retained earnings/(Accumulated Deficit)

Total members' equity

Total liabilities and members' equity

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements

2020

2019

330,100 $

330,100

330,100 $

330,100

330,100

330,100 $




SMART VYLON, LLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2020 2019

(USD $ in Dollars)
Net revenue S - S
Cost of revenue -

Gross profit -

Operating expenses
General and administrative -

Total operating expenses i

Operating income/(loss) -

Interest income -
Interest expense -

Income/(Loss) before provision for income taxes -
Provision/(Benefit) for income taxes -

Net income/(Net Loss) $ - 8

See accompanying notes to the financial statements




SMART VYLON, LLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Non-controlling  Total Members'
(in, SUS) Members' Capital Interest Equity

Inception—December 17, 2019 S - S - S -

Net income/(loss) - - -
Members Contributions = - -

Balance—December 31, 2019 S - S - $ -

Net income/(loss) - -
Reg CF Raise - Nectar Series - 330,100 330,100

Balance—December 31, 2020 S - S 330,100 $ 330,100

See accompanying notes to financial statements.




SMART VYLON, LLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For Fiscal Year Ended December 31,

2020

2019

(USD S in Dollars)
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income/(loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided/(used) by operating activities:
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Net cash provided/(used) by operating activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Nectar Series CF Raise
Net cash provided/(used) by financing activities

Change in cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash—beginning of year
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash—end of year

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid during the year for interest
Cash paid during the year for income taxes

OTHER NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES AND SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES
Purchase of property and equipment not yet paid for

330,100

330,100

330,100

330,100

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements




SMART VYLON, LLC
COoNSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR YEAR ENDED TO DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND DecEMBER 31, 2019

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Smart Vylon, LLC (the Company), was formed on December 17, 2019 the state of Delaware. On September 14, 2020,
Nectar Series was organized as a series of Smart Vylon. Each series of Smart Vylon, LLC has its own manager, assets, and
members that are separate from the managers, assets, and members from other series organized under Smart Vylon,
LLC. The consolidated financial statements include the operating results of Nectar Series, a Series of Smart Vylon, LLC,
and Smart Vylon, LLC. The financial statements of Smart Vylon, LLC (which may be referred to as the "Company", "we,"
"us," or "our") are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(“U.S. GAAP”). The Company's headquarters are in Dover, Delaware. As of December 31, 2020, the Company had not
begun operations.

Smart Vylon, LLC facilitates private investments in specific real estate properties in Mexico.
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (“US GAAP”). The Company has adopted the calendar year as its basis of reporting.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidation financial statements in conformity with United States GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. The estimates and assumptions adopted are based on experience and other
relevant factors considering the ongoing business and are continually reviewed using available information. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Risks and Uncertainties

he Company has a limited operating history. The Company's business and operations are sensitive to general business
and economic conditions in the United States. A host of factors beyond the Company's control could cause fluctuations
in these conditions. Adverse conditions may include recession, downturn or otherwise, local competition or changes in
consumer taste. These adverse conditions could affect the Company's financial condition and the results of its
operations.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers short-term, highly liquid investment with original maturities of three months or less at the time
of purchase to be cash equivalents. Cash consists of funds held in the Company’s checking account. As of December 31,
2020, the Company had $330,100 in escrow with Republic from Nectar Series crowdfunding campaign.

Concentration of Credit Risk
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The Company maintains its cash with a major financial institution located in the United States of America which it
believes to be creditworthy. Balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. At
times, the Company may maintain balances in excess of the federally insured limits.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Trade receivables due from customers are uncollateralized customer obligations due under normal trade terms
requiring payment within 30 days from the invoice date. Trade receivables are stated at the amount billed to the
customer. Payments of trade receivables are allocated to the specific invoices identified on the customer's remittance
advice or, if unspecified, are applied to the earliest unpaid invoices. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the company
had no accounts receivable.

The Company estimates an allowance for doubtful accounts based upon an evaluation of the current status of
receivables, historical experience, and other factors as necessary. It is reasonably possible that the Company’s estimate
of the allowance for doubtful accounts will change.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Expenditures for renewals and improvements that significantly add to
the productive capacity or extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs
are charged to expense. When equipment is retired or sold, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are
eliminated from the accounts and the resultant gain or loss is reflected in income.

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method, based on useful lives of the assets which range from three to
forty years.

Impairment of Long-lived Assets

Long-lived assets, such as property and equipment and identifiable intangibles with finite useful lives, are periodically
evaluated for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset
may not be recoverable. We look for indicators of a trigger event for asset impairment and pay special attention to any
adverse change in the extent or manner in which the asset is being used or in its physical condition. Assets are grouped
and evaluated for impairment at the lowest level of which there are identifiable cash flows, which is generally at a
location level. Assets are reviewed using factors including, but not limited to, our future operating plans and projected
cash flows. The determination of whether impairment has occurred is based on an estimate of undiscounted future cash
flows directly related to the assets, compared to the carrying value of the assets. If the sum of the undiscounted future
cash flows of the assets does not exceed the carrying value of the assets, full or partial impairment may exist. If the asset
carrying amount exceeds its fair value, an impairment charge is recognized in the amount by which the carrying amount
exceeds the fair value of the asset. Fair value is determined using an income approach, which requires discounting the
estimated future cash flows associated with the asset.

Revenue Recognition

Effective January 1, 2019, the Company adopted Accounting Standards Codification 606, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers ("ASC 606"). Revenue is recognized when performance obligations under the terms of the contracts with
our customers are satisfied. As of December 31, 2020, the Company has not yet generated any revenue.
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Advertising

The Company expenses advertising costs as they are incurred.

Business Combination

A business combination is defined as an acquisition of assets and liabilities that constitute a business. A business consists
of inputs, including non-current assets and processes, including operational processes, that when applied to those inputs
have the ability to create outputs that provide a return to the Company. Business combinations are accounted for using
the acquisition method of accounting. The consideration of each acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair
values of tangible and intangible assets obtained, liabilities and contingent liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Company at the date of acquisition. Key assumptions routinely utilized in allocation of
purchase price to intangible assets include projected financial information such as revenue projections for companies
acquired. As of the acquisition date, goodwill is measured as the excess of consideration given, generally measured at
fair value, and the net of the acquisition date fair values of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.

Income Taxes

The Company is taxed as a Limited Liability Company (LLC). Under these provisions, the Company does not pay federal
corporate income taxes on its taxable income. Instead, the members are liable for individual federal and state income
taxes on their respective shares of the Company’s taxable income. The Company will pay state income taxes at reduced
rates. The Company has recently commenced operations and is not currently under examination by the Internal
Revenue Service or state regulatory agencies.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price)
in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants as of the measurement date. Applicable accounting guidance provides an established hierarchy for inputs
used in measuring fair value that maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs
by requiring that the most observable inputs be used when available. Observable inputs are inputs that market
participants would use in valuing the asset or liability and are developed based on market data obtained from sources
independent of the Company. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the Company’s assumptions about the factors
that market participants would use in valuing the asset or liability. There are three levels of inputs that may be used to
measure fair value:

Level 1—Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical assets
or liabilities.

Level 2—Observable prices that are based on inputs not quoted on active markets, but corroborated by market data.

Level 3—Unobservable inputs reflecting the Company’s assumptions, consistent with reasonably available assumptions
made by other market participants. These valuations require significant judgment.

The fair value hierarchy also requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs when measuring fair value.
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Fair-value estimates discussed herein are based upon certain market assumptions and pertinent information available
to management as of December 31, 2020. The respective carrying value of certain on-balance-sheet financial
instruments approximated their fair values.

Subsequent Events

The Company considers events or transactions that occur after the balance sheets date, but prior to the issuance of the
financial statements to provide additional evidence relative to certain estimates or to identify matters that require
additional disclosure. Subsequent events have been evaluated through June 2, 2021, which is the date the financial
statements were issued.

3. MEMBERS EQUITY
The company is owned 100% by Vylon Balance Solutions, LLC.
Series Interests

In 2020, the Company issued 3,301 series interest for a purchase price of $330,100 as a part of the crowdfunding raise
Nectar Series. As of December 31, 2020, the Company had not received the cash for the series interests purchased.

4. RELATED PARTIES
There are no related party transactions.

5. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

CoviD-19

In January 2020, the World Health Organization has declared the outbreak of a novel coronavirus (COVID-19) as a “Public
Health Emergency of International Concern,” which continues to spread throughout the world and has adversely
impacted global commercial activity and contributed to significant declines and volatility in financial markets. The
coronavirus outbreak and government responses are creating disruption in global supply chains and adversely impacting
many industries. The outbreak could have a continued material adverse impact on economic and market conditions and
trigger a period of global economic slowdown. The rapid development and fluidity of this situation precludes any
prediction as to the ultimate material adverse impact of the coronavirus outbreak. Nevertheless, the outbreak presents
uncertainty and risk with respect to the Company, its performance, and its financial results.

Litigation

The Company is not currently involved with and does not know of any pending or threatening litigation against the
Company.

6. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company completed an offering (the “Crowdfunded Offering”) of up to $1,070,000 in interest purchase
agreements through OpenDeal Portal LLC (the “Intermediary” aka “Republic” or “Republic.co”).
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The Company intends to use these audited financial statements to raise additional funds up to $5,000,000 w through
(the “Crowdfunded Offering”).

7. GOING CONCERN

These financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis. The Company has not begun operations as of
December 31, 2020. The Company'’s ability to continue is dependent upon management’s plan to raise additional
funds and achieve profitable operations. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might be
necessary if the Company is not able to continue as a going concern.

-10 -
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Offering Page found on Intermediary’s Portal.
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R Republic

Company Congreso Park
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e Brand new condominium building in the heart of Mexico City

Located near “Plaza del Zocalo,” the main square in Mexico City

e Company is acquiring up to 7 units from the developer
e Pre-sale price that is a 20% discount from current market

e FEach unitis a 2-BR/1-BA, 764 square feet

https://republic.co/congreso/exhibit 177
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e Plan to lease units with estimated 7% annual yield

e Estimated return in 18 months of more than 20%

Project

Congreso Park is an apartment complex located in the heart of
Mexico City

Your browser does not support HTML5 video.The building is a 6-story, 8,761 square foot, newly-developed residential condominium
that includes 45 apartments, with retail space on the ground floor and a common roof garden.

The Congreso Series of Smart Vylon, LLC (the “Company”) intends to use the net proceeds of this offering to purchase up to seven 2-
bed, 1-bath condominiums measuring approximately 764 square feet of space each and featuring a living room, dining room, service
area, and premium finishes. Amenities include dedicated parking spaces, a rooftop garden, and a ground-floor retail area. The building
is marketed to owners and tenants as an affordable property designed to promote sustainability and art.

Itis currently 98% complete and will be finished no later than October 2021.

Units

The Company will be acquiring up to seven 2-bedroom, 1-bath condominium units in the Congreso building, for a price of $130,000
per unit, at which point we intend to sell the units. We are estimating a total return to investors of 15.6% after the 18 months which
includes dividends paid from operations and capital appreciation over the course of our holding period.

UNIT NUMBER UNIT TYPE SALES PRICE SQFT PRICE PER SQFT
206 2 bedroom - 1 bathroom $130,000 760 $171
207 2 bedroom - 1 bathroom $110,000 760 $145
305 2 bedroom - 1 bathroom $130,000 764 $171
306 2 bedroom - 1 bathroom $125,000 760 $164.47
308 2 bedroom - 1 bathroom $140,000 783 $179
405 2 bedroom - 1 bathroom $140,000 764 $183
407 2 bedroom - 1 bathroom $130,000 760 $171

The units range between 760 and 783 square feet, and have been designed in an avant-garde architectural style, with high quality
finishes and a .47 square foot balcony patio.

Kitchens include wood panels finished with melamine and 2" thick granite countertops. Closets are built with wood panels finished
with melamine, shelves and interiors in white, and floor-to-ceiling sliding doors.

Throughout the units are floors in beige and grey porcelain. The flooring is made of 24" x 24" beige porcelain tiles with bone joint in
the areas of living room, dining room, kitchen, and hallway.

The bedrooms are finished with laminate flooring for exclusive residential use.

Plan of Operation

We plan to lease each of the units under yearly lease, renting from 12-18 month terms. We intend to hold the units for 18 months at
which point we will sell the units with 7% annual yield and receive 15% capital gain.

Location

Congreso is located in the heart of Mexico City, and only ten minutes away from buzzing neighborhoods such as Condesa and Roma.
The Property is also located near historical sites such as “Plaza del Zocalo,” the main square in Mexico City, and Palacio de Bellas
Artes (Palace of Fine Arts).

Mexico City

https://republic.co/congreso/exhibit
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Mexico City is the capital city of Mexico. As the largest city in Mexico and one of the oldest in the Americas, it is one of the most

important financial, political, cultural and educational centers in the Americas.

Market Information
e Mexico is the 15th largest economy in the world and the 2nd in Latin America

e $1.076 trillion GDP in 2020
e The middle and residential segment represents 88% of the mortgages in the Mexican financial system.

e Nearly a 5th of the total population of Latin America and the Caribbean lives in Mexico (125 millions inhabitants)
e The mortgages market for the middle and residential segment has grown 3% annually for the last five years (Compound Annual

Growth Rate).

Housing Market Data
e There is a current shortage of affordable housing.

e Mexican residential real estate market valued at $30.98B in 2018.
e Rising middle class continues to increase the housing market, accounting for 47% of the population.

e Nationwide house price index rose by 7.72% in Q2 2021

Congreso Park is an apartment complex within 10 minutes from buzzing neighborhoods like Condesa and Roma. The exact location is

Property Location
Av. Congreso de la Unién. Col. Janitzio, Alcaldia Venustiano Carranza, CP 15200 Ciudad de México, México.
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Comparable Sales
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The following properties in close proximity and of similar quality to the Congreso Park have been sold or are for sale for the prices
listed below:

DEVELOPMENT
SALES PRICE

SQFT

PRICE PER SQFT
Trabajo y Previsién Social, Federal, Venustiano Carranza
$105,880

678

$157

Residencial La Escalera
$138,300

699

$198

Estrella

$131,000

678

$200

AV. IZTACCIHUATL
$131,251

861

$153

Av. Africa

$132,050

764

$173

Anselmo de la portilla
$153,610

785

$195

Venustiano Carranza
$144,535

785

$184

https://republic.co/congreso/exhibit 417
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Congreso Park
$130,000
760

$171

Offering

We are offering up to $1,000,000 in membership interests in the Congreso Series of Smart Vylon, LLC (the “Company”), the company
that will own and operate the 7 condominium units described above. In the event that we do not raise the maximum offering amount,
we will acquire as many units as we can using the proceeds from the offering. Any excess capital will be returned to investors.

Financial Overview

We have agreed to acquire the 7 units for a total purchase price of $130,000. In addition to the purchase price, we estimate that there
will be an additional $3,000 in expenses per unit including closing costs, and preparing each of the units for rent.

Project Proforma

Upon closing of the acquisition of the 7 units estimated Winter 2021, we intend to operate the units as long term rentals.

OPERATING ESTIMATES

Average Monthly rent per unit $700

Occupancy 100%

RevPar N/A
Annual Revenue 58,800 per year

Operating Expenses N/A

Operating Income N/A

Annual Return + Added Value 6%
Investor Returns

We intend to make distributions of cash flow semi-annually once the property is operating. Our plan is to hold the units for a period of
12-18 months at which point we intend to sell the units. We are estimating a total return to investors of 15.6% after the 18 months
which includes dividends paid from operations and capital appreciation over the course of our holding period.

Exit Strategy

In this type of customer profile, there are credits from INFONAVIT government, which is the largest mortgage loan in Latin America. In
Mexico there are 300,000 people with this purchasing capacity only from INFONAVIT and FOVISSSTE credits. About 50,000
beneficiaries that can reach these bank credits and traditional cash sales.

It is calculated that there exists more than a million potential customers for this type of market among all forms of payment.

Rent the property for 12-18 months, sell it with 7% annual yield and receive 15% capital gain.

Management

Smart Vylon specializes in pioneering residential projects. We are a visionary home development company that is changing the way
real estate investing works. Smart Vylon is the US entity that was formed in 2020 and is a subsidiary of our founding company in
Mexico, which has 10+ years of experience with 1,000+ units built and sold.

https://republic.co/congreso/exhibit
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Victor Rosales is a real estate investment manager and entrepreneur dedicated to developing residential properties and apartment
complexes with sustainable features. He has served as the Chief Executive Officer of Smart Vylon, LLC since its inception in 2019. For
the past ten years, Victor has overseen the development over $500 million in real estate properties. Prior to serving as the CEO, he co-
founded Zima Smart Equity, a private real estate investment company to fund the construction of residential apartment buildings in
Mexico. In 2017 Victor co- founded Yavo Capital, a Mexico based financial institution focused on providing financing to residential real
estate development projects. Since 2016, Victor has served as the Chairman of Vivendum, a real estate development focused on
developing up- scale residential apartment complexes in Mexico. Victor also co- founded a construction consortium in 2010 and
continues to be instrumental in the company's growth to this day. Since its inception, the group has built and sold more than 1,000
homes in residential apartment buildings in Mexico City and the Riviera Maya, all of which are eco- friendly and promote art and social
inclusion. With more than 40 projects developed and 29 in process, the group's development portfolio for the next 5 years is estimated
to be valued at $507 million dollars with expected revenue of $602 million dollars. Victor studied International Relations at Universidad
Iberoamericana 2009- 2013.

Olga Lidia Aranda

Chief Operating Officer

Olga Lidia has served as the Chief Operating Officer of Smart Vylon, LLC since its inception. Prior to holding this position, she founded
and, served as the managing director for the past eleven years at Arthuman Direccionando Talentos, a consulting company dedicated
to recruiting and training executive personnel in a variety of industries. Olga Lidia also spent 15 years as the manager of business
development for Manpower, a leading recruitment firm in Mexico. Olga Lidia oversees management of Zima Smart Equity and
handles day to day operations.

https://republic.co/congreso/exhibit 6/7
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Victor Rosales Chief Executive Officer
Olga Lidia Aranda Chief Operating Officer
Luisa Bravo Biz Dev

Marifer Dzib Biz Dev

Carlos Arreola Chief Legal Officer

Thank you note from our team

Dinner in a Mexico City restaurant

1 night at Nectar Tulum

2 nights at Nectar Tulum

Dinner in a Mexico City restaurant and 2 nights at Nectar Tulum
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SMART VYLON, LLC
a Delaware series limited liability company

SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT
between

CONGRESO SERIES
(A SERIES OF SMART VYLON, LLC)

and

SUBSCRIBER

SUBSCRIPTION BOOKLET

THIS INSTRUMENT HAS BEEN ISSUED PURSUANT TO SECTION 4(A)(6) OF THE
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE "SECURITIES ACT"), AND NEITHER IT
NOR ANY SECURITIES ISSUABLE PURSUANT HERETO HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER
THE SECURITIES ACT OR THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE OR COUNTRY. THESE
SECURITIES MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED, PLEDGED OR
HYPOTHECATED EXCEPT AS PERMITTED BY RULE 501 OF REGULATION
CROWDFUNDING UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT AND APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES
LAWS OR PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT OR EXEMPTION
THEREFROM.

IF YOU LIVE OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES, IT IS YOUR RESPONSIBILITY TO FULLY
OBSERVE THE LAWS OF ANY RELEVANT TERRITORY OR JURISDICTION OUTSIDE THE
UNITED STATES IN CONNECTION WITH ANY PURCHASE, INCLUDING OBTAINING
REQUIRED GOVERNMENTAL OR OTHER CONSENTS OR OBSERVING ANY OTHER
REQUIRED LEGAL OR OTHER FORMALITIES.

THIS OFFERING HAS NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE MEXICAN NATIONAL SECURITIES



REGISTRY (THE “REGISTRO NACIONAL DE VALORES” OR THE “RNV”) AND THE
SECURITIES WILL NOT BE REGISTERED THEREWITH OR MAINTAINED BY THE MEXICAN
NATIONAL BANKING AND SECURITIES COMMISSION (THE “COMISION NACIONAL
BANCARIA Y DE VALORES OR THE “CNBV”), AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD
PUBLICLY IN MEXICO, EXCEPT THAT THE SECURITIES MAY BE OFFERED TO MEXICAN
INVESTORS THAT QUALIFY AS INSTITUTIONAL OR ACCREDITED INVESTORS
PURSUANT TO THE PRIVATE PLACEMENT EXEMPTION SET FORTH IN ARTICLE 8 OF THE
MEXICAN SECURITIES MARKET LAW (LEY DEL MERCADO DE VALORES). THE
ACQUISITION OF THE SECURITIES BY AN INVESTOR WHO IS A RESIDENT OF MEXICO
WILL BE MADE UNDER SUCH INVESTOR’S OWN RESPONSIBILITY.

This Subscription Booklet contains a Subscription Agreement and other investor documents for use only
in connection with the offering being made by Congreso Series, a series of Smart Vylon, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company to eligible investors pursuant to an offering memorandum, as it may
be amended from time to time (the “Offering Memorandum’) in compliance with Regulation CF. This
Subscription Booklet must not be used if it is not accompanied by a copy of the Memorandum.
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UPON DECIDING TO PURCHASE UNITS OF MEMBERSHIP INTERESTS IN THE
COMPANY, PLEASE COMPLETE THE DOCUMENTS BELOW USING THE PORTAL
MAINTAINED BY THE INTERMEDIARY HOSTING THE OFFERING:

1.

SubSCIiption AGIrEEMENT. ... ...ttt 3

This document is your application to purchasing an interest in the Company. THE
SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT MUST BE READ IN ITS ENTIRETY. IT CONTAINS
VARIOUS STATEMENTS, REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND COVENANTS.

Exhibit A — Signature Page to Operating Agreement & Series Designation
N e (110 1S 4L 15

This document is attached to the Company’s Operating Agreement to show the
Subscriber's consent and membership to it.

Exhibit B-1 — Substitute FOrm W-0. ... ..o e 17

This document is a necessary tax form each Subscriber must complete so that the
Company may make distributions.

Exhibit B-2 — Substitute Form WE-BEN.......ouiii e, 18

This document is a necessary tax form each Subscriber must complete so that the
Company may make distributions if the Subscruber is a Non-U.S. Person.

Exhibit C — Registration INStructions. ..........oouvuiiuiitii e 19

This document provides the Company with the name(s) the Subscriber(s) will holder
their interest in the Company.

Exhibit D — Power of AttOINEY .........oiuiieiiiii i 20

This provides the Company the ability to affix Subscribers’ signature on to documents
as necessary and appropriate with regard to the Company.



SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT
OF
CONGRESO SERIES

1. Subscription. The undersigned (the "Subscriber"), intending to be legally bound,
hereby irrevocably agrees to purchase from CONGRESO SERIES, a series of SMART VYLON, LLC,
a Delaware series limited liability company (the "Company"), the number of Interests in CONGRESO
SERIES (the "Congreso Series Interests") set forth herein at a purchase price of $100.00 per Congreso
Series Interest for the aggregate purchase price set forth on the signature page hereto (the "Subscription
Amount") on the terms and conditions of the Limited Liability Company Agreement governing the
Company, as amended from time to time (the "Operating Agreement"), a copy of which the Subscriber
has received and read. This subscription is submitted to Vylon Balance Solutions, LLC, the managing
member of the Company and manager of Congreso Series (the "Manager") by the Subscriber in
accordance with and subject to the terms and conditions described in this Subscription Agreement,
relating to the Reg CF offering by the Company (the "Offering") of up to 9,805 Congreso Series
Interests for maximum aggregate gross proceeds of $980,500 ("Maximum Offering Amount"). The

minimum Subscription Amount is $200 per Subscriber.

2. Closing. The closing of the Offering (the "Closing") will occur on the Offering
deadline listed in the Form C or, if the Manager decides otherwise, the earliest to occur of (i) the date
subscriptions for the Maximum Offering Amount have been accepted or (ii) a date determined by the
Manager in its sole discretion, provided that subscriptions for the Minimum Offering Amount have been
accepted, provided in either case the Manager provides proper notice pursuant to Reg. CF Rule 304(b).
If the Closing has not occurred, the Offering shall be terminated on (i) January 30, 2022, which date
may be extended by the Manager in its sole discretion, or (ii) on any date on which the Manager elects
to terminate the Offering in its sole discretion (the "Termination Date').

3. Payment. Concurrent with the execution hereof, the Subscriber authorizes Prime Trust,
LLC as escrow agent for the Company's Offering (the "Escrow Agent"), to request the Subscription
Amount from the Subscriber. The Escrow Agent to maintain all such funds for the Subscriber's benefit
in a segregated non-interest-bearing account until the earliest to occur of: (i) the Closing, (ii) the
rejection of such subscription or (iii) the Termination Date.

4. Termination of Offering: Rejection of Subscriptions.

4.1.  In the event that the Company does not affect the Closing on or before the
Termination Date (as amended), the Escrow Agent will promptly refund the Subscription Amount paid
by the Subscriber, without deduction, offset or interest accrued thereon and this Subscription Agreement
shall thereafter be of no further force or effect.



4.2. The Subscriber understands and agrees that the Manager, in its sole discretion,
reserves the right to accept or reject this or any other subscription for Congreso Series Interests, in whole
or in part, and for any reason or no reason, notwithstanding prior receipt by the Subscriber of notice of
acceptance of this subscription. If the Manager rejects a subscription, either in whole or in part (which
decision is in its sole discretion), the Company shall cause the Escrow Agent to return promptly the
rejected Subscription Amount or the rejected portion thereof to the Subscriber without deduct ion, offset
or interest accrued thereon. If this subscription is rejected in whole this Subscription Agreement shall
thereafter be of no further force or effect. If this subscription is rejected in part, this Subscription

Agreement will continue in full force and effect to the extent this subscription was accepted.

5. Acceptance of Subscription. The Company reserves the right, in its sole and absolute
discretion, to accept or reject the Subscription in whole or in part. The valid execution of this Agreement
shall be conditioned upon the following terms being met: (a) all subscriptions are subject to prior sale,
withdrawal, modification or cancellation of the Offering by the Company; (b) no subscription will be
valid unless and until accepted by the Company; (c) this Agreement will be deemed to be accepted by
the Company only when it is signed by an authorized representative of the Company on behalf of the
Company; and (d) notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, the Company has no
obligation to issue the Congreso Series Interests to any person to whom the issuance of the Congreso
Series Interests would constitute a violation of any federal or state securities laws.

6. Representations and Warranties, Acknowledgments. and Agreements. The
Subscriber hereby acknowledges, represents, warrants and agrees to and with the Company, Congreso

Series and the Manager as follows:

6.1. The Subscriber is aware that an investment in the Congreso Series Interests
involves a significant degree of risk, and has received and carefully read the Offering Memorandum
and, in particular, the "Risk Factors" section therein. The Subscriber understands that the Company is
subject to all the risks applicable to early-stage companies, whether or not set forth in such "Risk
Factors". The Subscriber acknowledges that no representations or warranties have been made to it or to
its advisors or representatives with respect to the business or prospects of the Company, Congreso

Series, or their financial condition.

6.2. The offering and sale of the Congreso Series Interests has not been registered
under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the ""Securities Act''), or any state securities laws. The
Subscriber understands that the offering and sale of the Congreso Series Interests is intended to be
exempt from registration under the Securities Act, by virtue of Regulation CF of the Securities Act of
1933 thereof, based, in part, upon the representations, warranties and agreements of the Subscriber
contained in this Subscription Agreement. The Subscriber is purchasing the Congreso Series Interests
for its own account for investment purposes only and not with a view to or intent of resale or distribution

thereof in violation of any applicable securities laws, in whole or in part.



6.3. The Subscriber acknowledges that neither the SEC nor any state securities
commission or other regulatory authority has passed upon or endorsed the merits of the offering of the
Congreso Series Interests.

6.4. In evaluating the suitability of an investment in the Congreso Series Interests,
the Subscriber has not relied upon any representation or information (oral or written) other than as set
forth on https://www.republic.co/congreso together with any attached exhibits including, the Operating
Agreement and this Subscription Agreement.

6.5.  Except as previously disclosed in writing to the Company, the Subscriber has
taken no action that would give rise to any claim by any person for brokerage commissions, finders'
fees or the like relating to this Subscription Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby and
the Subscriber shall be solely liable for any such fees and shall indemnify the Company with respect
thereto pursuant to Section 7.

6.6.  The Subscriber, together with its advisors, if any, has such knowledge and
experience in financial, tax, and business matters, and, in particular, investments in securities, so as to
enable it to utilize the Offering Memorandum to evaluate the merits and risks of an investment in the
Congreso Series Interests and the Company and to make an informed investment decision with respect
thereto.

6.7.  No consent, approval, authorization or order of any court, governmental agency
or body or arbitrator having jurisdiction over the Subscriber or any of the Subscriber's affiliates is
required for the execution of this Subscription Agreement or the performance of the Subscriber's
obligations hereunder, including, without limitation, the purchase of the Congreso Series Interests by
the Subscriber.

6.8. The Subscriber has adequate means of providing for such Subscriber' s current
financial needs and foreseeable contingencies and has no need for liquidity of its investment in the
Congreso Series Interests for an in definite period of time.

6.9.  The Subscriber (a) if a natural person, represents that the Subscriber has
reached the age of 18 (or such other age as required by their state of residence) and has full power and
authority to execute and deliver this Subscription Agreement and all other related agreements or
certificates and to carry out the provision s hereof and thereof; or (b) if a corporation , partnership, or
limited liability company or other entity, represents that such entity was not formed for the specific
purpose of acquiring the Congreso Series Interests, such entity is duly organized, validly existing and
in good standing under the laws of the state of its organization, the consummation of the transactions
contemplated hereby is authorized by, and will not result in a violation of state law or its charter or
other organizational documents, such entity has full power and authority to execute and deliver this
Subscription Agreement and all other related agreements or certificates and to carry out the provisions
hereof and thereof and to purchase and hold the Congreso Series Interests , the execution and delivery
of this Subscription Agreement has been duly authorized by all necessary action, this Subscription



Agreement has been duly executed and delivered on behalf of such entity and is a legal, valid and
binding obligation of such entity; or (c) if executing this Subscription Agreement in a representative
or fiduciary capacity, represents that it has full power and authority to execute and deliver this
Subscription Agreement in such capacity and on behalf of the subscribing individual, ward,
partnership, trust, estate, corporation , or limited liability company or partnership, or other entity for
whom the Subscriber is executing this Subscription Agreement, and such individual, partnership, ward,
trust, estate, corporation, or limited liability company or partnership, or other entity has full right and
power to perform pursuant to this Subscription Agreement and make an investment in the Company,
and represents that this Subscription Agreement constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of
such entity. The execution and delivery of this Subscription Agreement will not violate or be in conflict
with any order, judgment, injunction, agreement or controlling document to which the Subscriber is a
party or by which it is bound.

6.10.  Any power of attorney of the Subscriber granted in favor of the Manager
contained in the Operating Agreement has been executed by the Subscriber in compliance with the
laws of the state, province or jurisdiction in which such agreements were executed.

6.11. The Subscriber is either (a) a natural person resident, (b) a partnership,
corporation or limited liability company organized under the laws of the United States, (c) an estate of
which any executor or administrator is a U.S. person, (d) a trust of which any trustee is a U.S. person,
(e) an agency or branch of a foreign entity located in the United States, (f) a non-discretionary account
or similar account (other than an estate or trust) held by a dealer or other fiduciary for the benefit or
account of a U.S. person, or (g) a partnership or corporation organized or incorporated under the laws
of a foreign jurisdiction that was formed by a U.S. person principally for the purpose of investing in
securities not registered under the Securities Act. The Subscriber is not (i) a discretionary account or
similar account (other than an estate or trust) held for the benefit or account of a non-U.S. person by a
dealer or other professional fiduciary organized, incorporated. or (if an individual) resident in the United
States, (ii) an estate of which any professional fiduciary acting as executor or administrator is a U.S.
person if an executor or administrator of the estate who is not a U.S. person has sole or shared investment
discretion with respect to the assets of the estate and the estate is governed by foreign law, (iii) a trust
of which any professional fiduciary acting as trustee is a U.S. person, if a trustee who is not a U.S.
person has sole or shared investment discretion with respect to the trust assets and no beneficiary of the
trust (and no settlor if the trust is revocable) is a U.S. person, (iv) an employee benefit plan established
and administered in accordance with the law of a country other than the United States and customary
practices and documentation of such country, or (v) an agency or branch of a U.S. person located outside
the United States that operates for valid business reasons engaged in the business of insurance or banking
that is subject to substantive insurance or banking regulation, respectively, in the jurisdiction where
located.

6.12.  Any information which the Subscriber has heretofore furnished or is furnishing
herewith to the Company is true, complete and accurate and may be relied upon by the Manager, or the
Company in particular, in determining the availability of an exemption from registration under federal



and state securities laws in connection with the Offering. The Subscriber further represents and warrants
that it will notify and supply corrective information to the Company immediately upon the occurrence
of any change therein occurring prior to the Company' s issuance of the Congreso Series Interests.

6.13.  The Subscriber is not, nor is it acting on behalf of, a "benefit plan investor"
within the meaning of 29 C.F.R. § 2510.3-10 I ( f)(2), as modified by Section 3(42) of the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (such regulation , the "Plan Asset Regulation", and a benefit
plan investor described in the Plan Asset Regulation, a "Benefit Plan Investor"). For the avoidance of
doubt, the term Benefit Plan Investor includes all employee benefit plans subject to Part 4, Subtitle B,
Title I of ERISA, any plan to which Section 4975 of the Internal Revenue Code applies and any entity,
including any insurance company general account, whose underlying assets constitute "plan assets", as
defined under the Plan Asset Regulation, by reason of a Benefit Plan Investor ' s investment in such
entity.

6.14. The Subscriber is satisfied that the Subscriber has received adequate
information with respect to all matters which it or its advisors, if any, consider material to its decision
to make this investment.

6.15.  Within five (5) days after receipt of a written request from the Manager of the
Subscriber, the Subscriber will provide such information and deliver such documents as may reasonably

be necessary to comply with any and all laws and ordinances to which the Company is subject.

6.16. THE CONGRESO SERIES INTERESTS OFFERED HEREBY HAVE NOT
BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, OR ANY STATE SECURITIES LAWS
AND ARE BEING OFFERED AND SOLD IN RELIANCE ON EXEMPTIONS FROM THE
REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF SAID ACT AND SUCH LAWS. THE CONGRESO Series
INTERESTS ARE SUBJECT TO RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFERABILITY AND RESALE AND
MAY NOT BE TRANSFERRED OR RESOLD EXCEPT AS PERMITTED BY THE OPERATING
AGREEMENT. THE CONGRESO SERIES INTERESTS HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED OR
DISAPPROVED BY THE SEC, ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION OR ANY OTHER
REGULATORY AUTHORITY, NOR HAVE ANY OF THE FOREGOING AUTHORITIES PASSED
UPON OR ENDORSED THE MERITS OF THIS OFFERING OR THE ACCURACY OR
ADEQUACY OF THE MEMORANDUM OR THIS SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT. ANY
REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS UNLAWFUL.

6.17. The Subscriber should check the Office of Foreign Assets Control ("OFAC")
website at http:/ /www.treas.gov/ofac before making the following representations. The Subscriber
represents that the amounts invested by it in the Company in the Offering were not and are not directly
or indirectly derived from activities that contravene federal, state or international laws and regulations,

including anti-money laundering laws and regulations. Federal regulations and Executive Orders



administered by OFAC prohibit, among other things, the engagement in transactions with, and the
provision of services to, certain foreign countries, territories, entities and individuals. The lists of OFAC
prohibited countries, territories, persons and entities can be found on the OFAC website at http:
/lwww.treas.gov/ofac. In addition, the programs administered by OFAC (the "OFAC Programs")
prohibit dealing with individuals, including specially designated nationals, specially designated
narcotics traffickers and other parties subject to OFAC sanctions and embargo programs, or entities in
certain countries regardless of whether such individuals or entities appear on the OFAC lists.
Furthermore, to the best of the Subscriber's know ledge, none of: (a) the Subscriber; (b) any person
controlling or controlled by the Subscriber; (c) if the Subscriber is a privately-held entity , any person
having a beneficial interest in the Subscriber; or (d) any person for whom the Subscriber is acting as
agent or nominee in connection with this investment is a country, territory, individual or entity named
on an OFAC list, or a person or entity prohibited under the OFAC Programs. Please be advised that the
Company may not accept any amounts from a prospective investor if such prospective investor cannot
make the representation set forth in the preceding paragraph. The Subscriber agrees to promptly notify
the Company should the Subscriber become aware of any change in the information set forth in these
representations. The Subscriber understands and acknowledges that, by law, the Company may be
obligated to "freeze the account" of the Subscriber, either by prohibiting additional subscriptions from
the Subscriber, declining any redemption requests and/or segregating the assets in the account in
compliance with governmental regulations, and the Company may also be required to report such action
and to disclose the Subscriber' s identity to OFAC. The Subscriber further acknowledges that the
Company may, by written notice to the Subscriber, suspend the redemption rights, if any, of the
Subscriber if the Company reasonably deems it necessary to do so to comply with anti-money
laundering regulations applicable to the Company or any of the Company's other service providers.
These individuals include specially designated nationals, especially designated narcotics traffickers

and other parties subject to OFAC sanctions and embargo programs.

6.18. To the best of the Subscriber's knowledge, none of: (a) the Subscriber; (b)
any person controlling or controlled by the Subscriber; (c) if the Subscriber is a privately-held
entity, any person having a beneficial interest in the Subscriber; or (d) any person for whom the
Subscriber is acting as agent or nominee in connection with this investment is a senior foreign
political figure, or an immediate family member or close associate of a senior foreign political
figure. A "senior foreign political figure" is a senior official in the executive, legislative,
administrative, military or judicial branches of a foreign government (whether elected or not), a
senior official of a major foreign political party, or a senior executive of a foreign government-
owned corporation. In addition, a "senior foreign political figure" includes any corporation,
business or other entity that has been formed by, or for the benefit of, a senior foreign political
figure. " Immediate family" of a senior foreign political figure typically includes the figure's parents,
siblings, spouse, children and in-laws. A "close associate" of a senior foreign political figure is a

person who is widely and publicly known to maintain an unusually close relationship with the senior



foreign political figure, and includes a person who is in a position to conduct substantia 1 domestic

and international financial transactions on behalf of the senior foreign political figure.

6.19. If the Subscriber is affiliated with a non-U.S. banking institution (a
"Foreign Bank"), or if the Subscriber receives deposits from, makes payments on behalf of, or
handles other financial transactions related to a Foreign Bank, the Subscriber represents and
warrants to the Company that: (a) the Foreign Bank has a fixed address, other than solely an
electronic address, in a country in which the Foreign Bank is authorized to conduct banking
activities; (b) the Foreign Bank maintains operating records related to its banking activities; (c) the
Foreign Bank is subject to inspect ion by the banking authority that licensed the Foreign Bank to
conduct banking activities; and (d) the Foreign Bank does not provide banking services to any other
Foreign Bank that does not have a physical presence in any country and that is not a regulated
affiliate.

6.20. The Subscriber has read and reviewed the confidentiality provisions found
Article XIV of the Company' s Operating Agreement, which are here by incorporated by reference
and the Subscriber affirms their understanding and consent to each of the representations and
warranties of the parties hereto set forth in this Section 6 and made as of the date hereof shall be true
and accurate as of the Closing applicable to the subscription made hereby as if made on and as of the

date of such Closing.

6.21. Each of the representations and warranties of the parties hereto set forth in
this Section 5 and made as of the date hereof shall be true and accurate as of the Closing applicable to

the subscription made hereby as if made on and as of the date of such Closing.

7. Indemnification. The Subscriber agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the
Company, Congreso Series, the Manager of the Subscriber and their respective officers, directors,
employees, agents , members, partners, control persons and affiliates (each of which shall be deemed
third party beneficiaries hereof) from and against all losses, liabilities, claims, damages, costs, fees and
expenses whatsoever (including, but not limited to, any and all expenses incurred in investigating,
preparing or defending against any litigation commenced or threatened) based upon or arising out of
any actual or alleged false acknowledgment, representation or warranty, or misrepresentation or
omission to state a material fact, or breach by the Subscriber of any covenant or agreement made by the
Subscriber herein or in any other document delivered in connection with this Subscription Agreement.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, no representation, warranty, covenant or acknowledgment made herein
by the Subscriber shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of any rights granted to it under the Securities

Act or state securities laws.

8. Irrevocability; Binding Effect. The Subscriber hereby acknowledges and agrees that

the subscription hereunder is irrevocable by the Subscriber, except as required by applicable law, and
that this Subscription Agreement shall survive the death or disability of the Subscriber and shall be

10



binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their heirs, executors, administrators, successors,
legal representatives, and permitted assigns. If the Subscriber is more than one person, the obligations
of the Subscriber hereunder shall be joint and several and the agreements, representations, warranties,
and acknowledgments herein shall be deemed to be made by and be binding upon each such person and

such person' s heirs, executors, administrators , successors, legal representatives, and permitted assigns.

9. Modification. This Subscription Agreement shall not be modified or waived except by

an instrument in writing signed by the party against whom any such modification or waiver is sought.

10. Assignability. This Subscription Agreement and the rights, interests and obligations
hereunder are not transferable or assignable by the Subscriber and the transfer or assignment of the
Congreso Series Interests shall be made only in accordance with all applicable laws and the Operating

Agreement. Any assignment contrary to the terms hereof shall be null and void and of no force or effect.

11. Applicable Law and Jurisdiction. This Subscription Agreement and the rights and

obligations of the Subscriber arising out of or in connection with this Subscription Agreement, the
Operating Agreement and the Offering Memorandum shall be construed in accordance with and
governed by the internal laws of the State of Delaware without regard to principles of conflict of
laws. The Subscriber (a) irrevocably submits to the non-exclusive jurisdiction and venue of the state
and federal courts sitting in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, in any action arising out of this
Subscription Agreement, the Operating Agreement and the Offering Memorandum and (b) consents

to the service of process by mail.
12. Miscellaneous,

12.1. Entire Agreement. This Subscription Agreement, together with the

Operating Agreement, constitute the entire agreement between the Subscriber and the Company
with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior oral or written agreements and
understandings, if any, relating to the subject matter hereof. The terms and provisions of this
Subscription Agreement may be waived, or consent for the departure therefrom granted, only by a
written document executed by the party entitled to the benefits of such terms or provisions.

12.2.  Survival. The covenants, agreements, representations and warranties of the
Company and the Subscriber made, and the indemnification rights provided for, in this Subscription
Agreement shall survive the execution and delivery hereof and delivery of the Congreso Series
Interests, regardless of any investigation made by or on behalf of any party, and shall survive
delivery of any payment for the Subscription Amount.

12.3. Fees. Except to the extent otherwise described in the Offering
Memorandum, each of the parties hereto shall pay its own fees and expenses (including the fees of
any attorneys, accountants or others engaged by such party) in connection with this Subscription

11



Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby whether or not the transactions contemplated

hereby are consummated.

12.4. Electronic Signatures. This Subscription Agreement may be executed in one

or more counterparts each of which shall be deemed an original (including signatures sent by
facsimile transmission or by email transmission of a PDF scanned document or other electronic

signature), but all of which shall together constitute one and the same instrument.

12.5.  Electronic Delivery Authorization. The Company may make reports and other

communications available in electronic form, such as E-mail or by posting on a web site (with
notification of the posting by E-mail). You hereby consent to receive deliveries of reports and other
communications from the Company (including annual and other updates of our consumer privacy
policies and procedures) exclusively in electronic form without separate mailing of paper copies. Your
consent to electronic delivery of such information may be revoked at any time upon written notice to
the Company.

12.6. Severability. Each provision of this Subscription Agreement shall be
considered separable and, if for any reason any provision or provisions hereof are determined to be
invalid or contrary to applicable law, such invalidity or illegality shall not impair the operation
of or affect the remaining portions of this Subscription Agreement.

12.7. Headings. Headings herein are for descriptive purposes only and shall
not control or alter the meaning of this Subscription Agreement as set forth in the text.

12.8. Definitions. Words and expressions which are used but not defined in
this Subscription Agreement shall have the meanings given to them in the Operating
Agreement.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS)]
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Subscription Agreement to subscribe for Smart Vylon, LLC

«=investor.name»
Legal Name of Subscriber

Number of Units subscribed for

«=Investment.amounty
Total Purchase Price of Units subscribed for

Investor Information:

Address

City

State

Zip

Country

Email Address «=investor.emaily»
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SIGNATURE PAGE TO THE SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT

SMART VYLON, LLC
CONGRESO SERIES INTERESTS

The Subscriber hereby elects to subscribe under the Subscription Agreement for the
number and price of the Units stated on the front page of this Subscription Agreement
and executes the Subscription Agreement.

Print Name of Subscriber: «=Investor.namey

By and Date:

Title of Authorized Signatory (if an entity):

Accepted:

CONGRESO SERIES, A SERIES OF SMART VYLON, LLC

By: VYLON BALANCE SOLUTIONS, LLC
MANAGER OF CONGRESO SERIES

By and Date:  «=issuer.signature»
Name: Victor Hugo Rosales

Title: Sole Member of Vylon Balance Solutions, LLC

14



EXHIBIT A — SIGNATURE PAGE TO OPERATING AGREEMENT
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COUNTERPART SIGNATURE PAGE
TO
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY AGREEMENT
AND
CONGRESO SERIES DESIGNATION
OF
SMART VYLON, LLC

Reference is made to the Amended and Restated Operating Agreement of the
SMART VYLON, LLC, dated as of September 29, 2020 (as may be amended from time to time,
the “Operating Agreement”), and the Congreso Series Designation Agreement, by and among
the Members of CONGRESO SERIES, a series of SMART VYLON, LLC.

The undersigned hereby executes this counterpart signature page to the
Operating Agreement and the Congreso Series Designation and authorizes this signature page
to be attached as a counterpart signature page to the Operating Agreement and the Congreso
Series Designation.

The undersigned acknowledges that he/she/it is a Member for all purposes under
the Operating Agreement and that, in such capacity, the undersigned will be bound by, and will
be entitled to the rights and benefits of, the terms and provisions of the Operating Agreement
and the Congreso Series Designation.

By: «=investor.signature»

Name and Date: «=investor.name»
[ ] Check Box if Entity

[ ] Check Box if Co-Subscriber
By Co-Subscriber:

Name Co-Subscriber:
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Exhibit B — 1 - Substitute Form W-9

FEDERAL INCOME TAX BACKUP WITHHOLDING

In order to prevent the application of federal income tax backup withholding, each
holder of Membership Interests must provide the Company with a correct Taxpayer
Identification Number (“TIN”). An individual’s social security number is his or her TIN. The
TIN should be provided in the space provided in the Substitute Form W-9, which is set forth
below. Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Rather, the tax liability of persons subject
to backup withholding will be reduced by the amount of tax withheld. If backup withholding
results in an overpayment of taxes, a refund may be obtained from the IRS. Certain taxpayers,
including all corporations, are not subject to these backup withholding and reporting
requirements. If the Subscriber has not been issued a TIN and has applied for a TIN or intends
to apply for a TIN in the near future, “Applied For” should be written in the space provided for
the TIN on the Substitute Form W-9.

Under the penalties of perjury, I certify that:

(1) The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or
I am waiting for a number to be issued to me); and

(2) I am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup
withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal Revenue Service
(IRS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all
interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that I am no longer subject
to backup withholding; and

3) I'am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined in the instructions).
Instruction: You must cross out #2 above if you have been notified by the Internal Revenue
Service that you are subject to backup withholding because of under reporting interest or

dividends on your tax returns.

Each person to be named on the certificate should complete this section.

Subscriber

«=investor.name» Co-Subscriber (if Applicable)
Signature: Signature:

Social Security or Tax Identification Number Social Security or Tax
Identification Number

17



Exhibit B-2 — Substitute Form W-8BEN

FEDERAL INCOME TAX BACKUP WITHHOLDING

In order to prevent the application of federal income tax backup withholding, each
holder of Membership Interests must provide the Company with a correct Taxpayer
Identification Number or a foreign tax identification number (“TIN). An individual’s social
security number is his or her TIN. The TIN should be provided in the space provided in the
Substitute Form W-9, which is set forth below. Backup withholding is not an additional tax.
Rather, the tax liability of persons subject to backup withholding will be reduced by the amount
of tax withheld. If backup withholding results in an overpayment of taxes, a refund may be
obtained from the IRS. Certain taxpayers, including all corporations, are not subject to these
backup withholding and reporting requirements. If the Subscriber has not been issued a TIN
and has applied for a TIN or intends to apply for a TIN in the near future, “Applied For” should
be written in the space provided for the TIN on the Substitute Form W-8BEN.

Under the penalties of perjury, I certify that:

(1) The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am
waiting for a number to be issued to me); and

(2) The income to which this form relates is: (a) not effectively connected with the conduct
of a trade or business in the United States, (b) effectively connected but not subject to
tax under applicable income tax treaty, or (c) the partner’s share of a partnership
effectively connected income.

(3) Iam anot a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined in the instructions).
Instruction: You must cross out #2 above if you have been notified by the Internal Revenue
Service that you are subject to backup withholding because of under reporting interest or

dividends on your tax returns.

Each person to be named on the certificate should complete this section.

Subscriber: Co-Subscriber (if Applicable):
«=investor.name» «=co-investor.name»
Signature: Signature:
«=investor.signature» «=co_subscriber.signature»
Country of Residence : Country of Residence :
«=investor. COUNTRY» «=co_subscriber. COUNTRY»
TIN #: TIN #:

«=investor.ssn» «=co_subscriber.ssn»
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Exhibit C — Registration Instructions

Please print or type below the exact way in which the Subscriber desires the Certificates to be
registered. Use multiple sheets if necessary.

NAME: «=investor.namey

Additional Name if Tenant in Common or Joint Tenants:

Mailing Address:

Social Security Number or other Taxpayer Identification Number:

Number of Membership Interests to be registered in above name(s):

Legal form of ownership: (select one)

Individual o Joint Tenants w/ Rights of Survivorship
Tenants in Common o Other:
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Exhibit D — Power of Attorney

The undersigned, as a Member, hereby makes, constitutes and appoints the Manager, Vylon
Balance Solutions, LLC, his, her or its true and lawful attorney-in-fact for him, her or it and in
such Member’s name, place and stead, to make, execute, sign, acknowledge, file for recording
at the appropriate public offices and publish such documents as may be necessary to carry out
the provisions of the Operating Agreement, including (i) the Operating Agreement, (ii) any
Articles of Organization, and (iii) such other certificates or instruments as may be required by
law, or are necessary to the conduct of the Company business. Each Member will execute and
deliver to the Manager, within five (5) days after receipt of such person’s written request
therefor, such other and further powers of attorney and instruments as the Manager deems
necessary to carry out the purpose of this Section. For the avoidance of any doubt, no Member
will be required to deliver to the Manager any further powers of attorney or instruments if the
subject power of attorney or instruments relates to an action required by the Operating
Agreement to be approved by the Members until such time as the requisite percentage of the
Members has approved such actions in accordance with the Operating Agreement.

The foregoing grant of authority is hereby declared to be irrevocable and a power coupled with
an interest and will not be affected by the death or disability of any Member or the assignment
by any Member of his, her or its Interest; provided that in the event of such assignment of a
Member’s entire interest, the foregoing power of attorney of an assignor Member will survive
such assignment only until such time as the assignee is admitted to the Company as a Substitute
Member and all required documents and instruments have been duly executed, filed and
recorded to effect each substitution or until such time as the Company repurchases such
Member’s remaining rights as permitted in the Operating Agreement.

In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of the Operating Agreement
and any document executed, signed or acknowledged by the Manager or filed for recording or
published pursuant to the power of attorney granted hereby, the Operating Agreement will
govern except to the extent such document specifically amends the Operating Agreement.

By and Date: «=investor.signature»
Name: «=investor.name»

[ ] Check Box if Entity

[ ] Check Box if Co-Subscriber

By Co-Subscriber:

Name Co-Subscriber:
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EXHIBIT D

Smart Vylon, LLC Operating Agreement



DocuSign Envelope ID: E3831312-279F-4C17-96A6-FCCF68892C2E

AMENDED AND RESTATED
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY OPERATING AGREEMENT

SMART VYLON, LLC

A Delaware Series LLC

NEITHER THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION NOR ANY STATE
REGULATORY AUTHORITY HAS APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED THIS LIMITED LIABILITY
COMPANY AGREEMENT (THIS "AGREEMENT") OR THE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY INTERESTS
PROVIDED FOR HEREIN. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS UNLAWFUL.

THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS AGREEMENT HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE "SECURITIES ACT"), OR REGISTERED OR QUALIFIED
UNDER ANY STATE SECURITIES LAWS. THESE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE OFFERED FOR SALE,
SOLD, TRANSFERRED, PLEDGED OR HYPOTHECATED UNLESS REGISTERED AND QUALIFIED
UNDER APPLICABLE FEDERAL AND STATE SECURITIES LAWS OR UNLESS, IN THE OPINION OF
COUNSEL SATISFACTORY TO THE FUND, SUCH REGISTRATION AND QUALIFICATION IS NOT
REQUIRED. ANY TRANSFER OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS AGREEMENT IS FURTHER
SUBJECT TO OTHER RESTRICTIONS, THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF WHICH ARE SET FORTH IN
THIS AGREEMENT.

THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS AGREEMENT ARE SUBJECT TO AND MAY ONLY BE SOLD,
DISPOSED OF OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED IN COMPLIANCE WITH CERTAIN RIGHTS OF FIRST
REFUSAL AND RIGHTS OF COSALE. THE RIGHTS OF FIRST REFUSAL AND RIGHTS OF CO-SALE ARE
BINDING ON CERTAIN TRANSFEREES OF THESE SECURITIES.

PURCHASERS OF SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS AGREEMENT SHOULD BE AWARE THAT
THEY WILL BE REQUIRED TO BEAR THE FINANCIAL RISKS OF THEIR INVESTMENT FOR AN
INDEFINITE PERIOD OF TIME.
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AMENDED AND RESTATED
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY OPERATING AGREEMENT OF
SMART VYLON, LLC

a Delaware Series Limited Liability Company

THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY
OPERATING AGREEMENT OF SMART VYLON, LLC (the “Agreement’) is made and
entered into effective as of September 29, 2020 (the “Effective Date”), by and among Smart Vylon,
LLC, a Delaware series limited liability company (the “Company”), and all other Persons who
may become Members of a series of the Company pursuant to the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

WHEREAS, the Company was converted from a Delaware corporation to a series limited
liability company on April 16, 2020 by the filing of a Certificate of Conversion pursuant to, and
in accordance with relevant provisions of the Delaware Limited Liability Company Act (6 Del. C.
§§ 18-101 et seq.), as amended from time to time (the "Delaware Act"), and the DGCL, including
Section 18-214 of the Act and Section 265 of the DGCL;

WHEREAS, the Company and the Manager entered into a Limited Liability Company
Operating Agreement on July 13, 2020, (the “Original Agreement’). The Company and the
Manager desire to amend and restate the Original Agreement pursuant to the terms and conditions
of this Agreement, in order to set forth certain agreements relating to the governance of the
Company and granting certain rights and imposing certain restrictions on the membership interests
now or at any time held by the Members or issuable to the Members of the Company or a Series.

NOW THEREFORE, Manager and the Members hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

Section 1.1  Definitions. The following definitions shall be for all purposes, unless
otherwise clearly indicated to the contrary, applied to the terms used in this Agreement.

Acquisition Expenses means in respect of each Series, the following fees, costs and
expenses allocable to such Series (or such Series pro rata share of any such fees, costs and
expenses allocable to the Company) and incurred in connection with the evaluation, discovery,
investigation, development and acquisition of a Series Property, including brokerage and sales
fees and commissions (but excluding any Brokerage Fee), appraisal fees, research fees, transfer
taxes, third party industry and due diligence experts, bank fees and interest (if the Series Property
was acquired using debt prior to completion of the closing on a Series property, technology costs,
photography and videography expenses in order to prepare the profile for the Series Property to
be accessible to investors via an online platform and any blue sky filings required in order for such
Series to be made available to Members in certain states (unless borne by the Manager, as
determined in its sole discretion) and similar costs and expenses incurred in connection with the
evaluation, discovery, investigation and acquisition of a Series Property.
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Additional Member means a Person admitted as a Member of the Company and of a
Series in accordance with Article III as a result of an issuance of Interests of such Series to such
Person by the Company.

Affiliate means, with respect to any Person, any other Person that directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries controls, is controlled by or is under common control with the
Person in question. As used herein, the term control means the possession, direct or indirect, of
the power to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of a Person, whether
through ownership of voting securities, by contract or otherwise.

Agreement has the meaning assigned to such term in the preamble.

Beneficial Ownership shall mean ownership of Interests in a Series by a Person, whether
the Interests are held directly or indirectly (including by a nominee), and shall include Interests
that would be treated as owned through the application of Sections 856(h)(1) and/or 544 of the
Code, as modified by Sections 856(h)(1)(B) and 856(h)(3) of the Code, provided, however, that
in determining the number of Interests Beneficially Owned by a Person, no Interest shall be
counted more than once. The terms “Beneficial Owner,” “Beneficially Owns” and “Beneficially
Owned” shall have the correlative meanings.

Broker means any SEC registered and FINRA member broker-dealer who has been
appointed by the Company (and as the Manager may select in its reasonable discretion) and
specified in any Series Designation to provide execution and other services relating to an Offering
to the Company, or its successors from time to time, or any other broker in connection with any
Offering.

Brokerage Fee means the fee payable to any Broker for the purchase by any Person of
Interests in an Offering equal to an amount agreed between the Manager and a broker- dealer from
time to time and specified in any Series Designation.

Business Day means any day other than a Saturday, a Sunday or a day on which
commercial banks in New York, New York are authorized or required to close.

Capital Contribution means with respect to any Member, the amount of cash and the
initial Gross Asset Value of any other property contributed or deemed contributed to the capital
of a Series by or on behalf of such Member, reduced by the amount of any liability assumed by
such Series relating to such property and any liability to which such property is subject.

Certificate of Formation means the Certificate of Formation of the Company filed with
the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware.

Code means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended and in effect from time to
time. Any reference herein to a specific section or sections of the Code shall be deemed to include
a reference to any corresponding provision of any successor law.
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Company means Smart Vylon, LLC, a Delaware series limited liability company, and any
successors thereto.

Covered Person means the Manager, the Partnership Representative, each director or
officer of the Company or any Series, and their respective Affiliates.

Dead Deal Costs means all fees, costs and expenses incurred in connection with any Series
Property proposals pursued by the Company, the Manager or a Series that do not proceed to
completion.

Delaware Act means the Delaware Limited Liability Company Act, 6 Del. C. Section 18
101, et seq.

DGCL means the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, 8 Del. C. Section
101, ef seq.

ERISA means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974.
Exchange Act means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
Expenses and Liabilities has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 5.4(a).

Free Cash Flow means any available cash for distribution generated from the net income
received by a Series, as determined by the Manager to be in the nature of income as defined by
U.S. GAAP, plus (i) any change in the net working capital (as shown on the balance sheet of such
Series) (ii) any amortization to the relevant Series Property (as shown on the income statement of
such Series) and (iii) any depreciation to the relevant Series Property (as shown on the income
statement of such Series) and (iv) any other non-cash Operating Expenses /ess (a) any capital
expenditure related to the Series Property (as shown on the cash flow statement of such Series)
(b) any other liabilities or obligations of the Series, in each case to the extent not already paid or
provided for and (c) upon the termination and winding up of a Series or the Company, all costs
and expenses incidental to such termination and winding up as allocated to the relevant Series in
accordance with Section 6.4.

Form of Adherence means, with respect to the Initial Offering or Subsequent Offering, a
subscription agreement or other agreement substantially in the form appended to the Offering
Document pursuant to which a Member agrees to adhere to the terms of this Agreement or, in
respect of a Transfer, a joinder agreement or instrument of Transfer, each in a form satisfactory to
the Manager from time to time, pursuant to which a Substitute Member agrees to adhere to the
terms of this Agreement.

Governmental Entity means any court, administrative agency, regulatory body,
commission or other governmental authority, board, bureau or instrumentality, domestic or
foreign and any subdivision thereof.
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Gross Asset Value means, with respect to any asset contributed by a Member to a Series,
the gross fair market value of such asset as determined by the Manager.

Indemnified Person means (a) any Person who is or was an Officer of the Company or
of a Series, (b) any Person who is or was a Manager or Liquidator, together with its officers,
directors, members, shareholders, employees, managers, partners, controlling persons, agents or
independent contractors, (¢) any Person who is or was serving at the request of the Company as
an officer, director, member, manager, partner, fiduciary or trustee of another Person; provided,
that, except to the extent otherwise set forth in a written agreement between such Person and the
Company or a Series, a Person shall not be an Indemnified Person by reason of providing, on a
fee for services basis, trustee, fiduciary, administrative or custodial services, and (d) any Person
the Manager designates as an Indemnified Person for purposes of this Agreement.

Initial Offering means the first offering and issuance of Interests of any Series, other than
to the Manager.

Interests means an interest in a Series issued by the Company that evidences a Members
rights, powers and duties with respect to the Company and such Series pursuant to this Agreement
and the Delaware Act. The Interests may expressed as a number of units or percentage.

Investment Advisers Act means the Investment Advisers Act of 1940.
Investment Company Act means the Investment Company Act of 1940.

Liquidator means one or more Persons selected by the Manager to perform the functions
described in Section 11.2 as liquidating trustee of the Company or a Series, as applicable, within
the meaning of the Delaware Act.

Manager means Vylon Balance Solutions, LLC, a Florida limited liability company and,
as the context requires, refers to its role as the Manager of the Company or the Manager of a
Series.

Manager Material Default means (i) a final adjudication establishing that the Manager
engaged in gross negligence, fraud or willful misconduct directly relating to and having a material
adverse effect on the Company, a Series, or Series Property; (i1)) Manager has been convicted of
or has pleaded nolo contendere to a crime of moral turpitude (as defined by the United States
Department of State, or its successor); (iii) the failure of the Manager to perform its duties
hereunder, which has a material adverse effect on the a Series and which is not cured within thirty
(30) days after notice to the Manager, which cure period shall be automatically extended for up to
an additional ninety (90) days provided cure is possible and is being diligently pursued by the
Manager; or (iv) the voluntary or involuntary bankruptcy of Manager or principal of Manager
(except in the case of an involuntary bankruptcy which is dismissed within one hundred twenty
(120) days of filing).

Market Value means the total capitalization (including any debt) used for the acquisition
of'a Series Property including costs and expenses of acquiring and/or renovating a Series Property.
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Member means each member of a Series, including, unless the context otherwise requires,
the Manager, each Member (as the context requires), each Substitute Member and each Additional
Member.

National Securities Exchange means an exchange registered with the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission under Section 6(a) of the Exchange Act.

Offering means the offering or issuance of Interests of any Series.

Offering Document means, with respect to any Series or the Interests of any Series, the
prospectus, offering memorandum, offering circular, offering statement, offering circular
supplement, private placement memorandum or other offering documents related to an Offering
of such Interests, in the form approved by the Manager and, to the extent required by applicable
law, approved or qualified, as applicable, by any applicable Governmental Entity, including
without limitation the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.

Offering Expenses means in respect of each Series, the following fees, costs and expenses
allocable to such Series or such Series pro rata share of any such fees, costs and expenses allocable
to the Company incurred in connection with executing the Offering, consisting of underwriting,
legal, accounting, escrow, custody and compliance costs related to a specific offering.

Officers means any executive, president, vice president, secretary, treasurer or other
officer of the Company or any Series as the Manager may designate.

Operating Expenses means in respect of each Series, the following fees, costs and
expenses allocable to such Series or such Series' pro rata share of any such fees, costs and expenses
allocable to the Company:

(a) any and all fees, costs and expenses incurred in connection with the
management of a Series Property, including Home Ownership Association fees, income
taxes, marketing, security and maintenance;

(b) any fees, costs and expenses incurred in connection with preparing any
reports and accounts of each Series, including any blue sky filings required in order for a
Series to be made available to investors in certain states and any annual audit of the accounts
of such Series (if applicable) and any reports to be filed with the SEC including periodic
reports on Forms 1-K, 1- SA and 1-U;

(c) any and all insurance premiums or expenses, including directors and
officers insurance of the directors and officers of the Manager or a Property Manager, in
connection with the Series Property;

(d) any withholding or transfer taxes imposed on the Company or a Series or
any of the Members as a result of its or their earnings, investments or withdrawals;
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(e) any governmental fees imposed on the capital of the Company or a Series
or incurred in connection with compliance with applicable regulatory requirements;

(fany legal fees and costs (including settlement costs) arising in connection with any
litigation or regulatory investigation instituted against the Company, a Series or a Property
Manager in connection with the affairs of the Company or a Series;

(g) the fees and expenses of any administrator, if any, engaged to provide
administrative services to the Company or a Series;

(h) any fees, costs and expenses of a third-party registrar and transfer agent
appointed by the Manager in connection with a Series;

(1)  the cost of the audit of the Company’s annual financial statements and the
preparation of its tax returns and circulation of reports to Members;

(j) the cost of any audit of a Series annual financial statements, the fees, costs and
expenses incurred in connection with making of any tax filings on behalf of a Series and
circulation of reports to Members;

(k) any indemnification payments to be made pursuant to Section 5.4;

(1)  the fees and expenses of the Company’s or a Series’ counsel in connection with
advice directly relating to the Company’s or a Series’ legal affairs;

(m) the costs of any other outside appraisers, valuation firms, accountants,
attorneys or other experts or consultants engaged by the Manager in connection with the

operations of the Company or a Series;

(n) any similar expenses that may be determined to be Operating Expenses, as
determined by the Manager in its reasonable discretion; and

(o) any non-U.S. taxes paid by the Company or a Series.

Operating Expenses Reimbursement Obligation(s) has the meaning ascribed in Section
6.3.

Outstanding means all Interests that are issued by the Company and reflected as
outstanding on the Company’s, or its transfer agent's, books and records as of the date of
determination.

Person means any individual, corporation, firm, partnership, joint venture, limited liability
company, estate, trust, business association, organization, Governmental Entity or other entity.

Preferential Rights has the meaning ascribed in Section 3.3(f).
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Property Manager means the property manager of each of the Series Property as specified
in each Series Designation or, its permitted successors or assigns, appointed in accordance with
Section 5.9.

Record Date means the date established by the Manager for determining (a) the identity
of the Record Holders entitled to notice of, or to vote at, any meeting of Members of any Series
or entitled to exercise rights in respect of any lawful action of Members of any Series or (b) the
identity of Record Holders entitled to receive any report or distribution or to participate in any
offer.

Record Holder or Holder means the Person in whose name such Interests are registered
on the books of the Company, or its transfer agent, as of the opening of business on a particular
Business Day, as determined by the Manager in accordance with this Agreement.

SEC means the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.
Securities Act means the Securities Act of 1933.
Series has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 3.3(a).

Series Property means, at any particular time, all assets, properties (whether tangible or
intangible, and whether real, personal or mixed) and rights of any type contributed to or acquired
by a particular Series and owned or held by or for the account of such Series, whether owned or
held by or for the account of such Series as of the date of the designation or establishment thereof
or thereafter contributed to or acquired by such Series.

Series Designation has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 3.3(a) and refers to
each Series Designation attached hereto as Exhibit B.

Subscription Agreement means, with respect to the Initial Offering or Subsequent
Offering, a subscription agreement or other agreement substantially in the form appended to the
Offering Document pursuant to which a Member agrees to adhere to the terms of this Agreement
or, in respect of a Transfer, an instrument of Transfer, each in a form satisfactory to the Manager
from time to time, pursuant to which a Substitute Member agrees to adhere to the terms of this
Agreement.

Subsequent Offering means any further issuance of Interests in any Series, excluding the
first Offering or any Transfer.

Substitute Member means a Person who is admitted as a Member of a Series pursuant to
Section 4.2 as a result of a Transfer of Interests to such Person.

Transfer means, with respect to an Interest, a transaction by which the Record Holder of
an Interest assigns such Interest to another Person who is or becomes a Member, and includes a
sale, assignment, gift, exchange or any other disposition by law or otherwise, including any
transfer upon foreclosure of any pledge, encumbrance, hypothecation or mortgage.
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U.S. GAAP means United States generally accepted accounting principles consistently
applied, as in effect from time to time.

Section 1.2  Construction. Unless the context requires otherwise: (a) any pronoun used
in this Agreement shall include the corresponding masculine, feminine or neuter forms, and the
singular form of nouns, pronouns and verbs shall include the plural and vice versa; (b) references
to paragraphs, Articles and Sections refer to paragraphs, Articles and Sections of this Agreement;
(c) the term include or includes means includes, without limitation, and including means
including, without limitation, (d) the words herein, hereof and hereunder and other words of
similar import refer to this Agreement as a whole and not to any particular Article, Section or
other subdivision, (e) or has the inclusive meaning represented by the phrase and/or, (f) unless the
context otherwise requires, references to agreements and other documents shall be deemed to
include all subsequent amendments and other modifications thereto, (g) references to any Person
shall include all predecessors of such Person, as well as all permitted successors, assigns,
executors, heirs, legal representatives and administrators of such Person, and (h) any reference to
any statute or regulation includes any implementing legislation and any rules made under that
legislation, statute or statutory provision, whenever before, on, or after the date of the Agreement,
as well as any amendments, restatements or modifications thereof, as well as all statutory and
regulatory provisions consolidating or replacing the statute or regulation. This Agreement shall be
construed without regard to any presumption or rule requiring construction or interpretation
against the party drafting an instrument or causing any instrument to be drafted.

ARTICLE 11
ORGANIZATION

Section 2.1 Formation. The Company has been formed as a series limited liability
company pursuant to Section 18-215 of the Delaware Act. Except as expressly provided to the
contrary in this Agreement, the rights, duties, liabilities and obligations of the Members and the
administration, dissolution and termination of the Company and each Series shall be governed by
the Delaware Act.

Section 2.2  Name. The name of the Company shall be Smart Vylon, LLC. The business
of the Company and any Series may be conducted under any other name or names, as determined
by the Manager. The Manager may change the name of the Company at any time and from time
to time and shall notify the Members of such change in the next regular communication to the
Members.

Section 2.3 Registered Office; Registered Agent; Principal Office; Other Offices.
Unless and until changed by the Manager, the registered office of the Company in the State of

Delaware shall be located at 8 The Green, STE A, Dover, Delaware 19901, and the registered
agent for service of process on the Company and each Series in the State of Delaware at such
registered office shall be 8 The Green, STE A, Dover, Delaware 19901. The principal office of the
Company shall be located at Jos¢ Maria Velasco 13-502, San José Insurgentes, Benito Juarez,
CDMX, 03900, or such other place as the Manager may from time to time designate by notice to
the Members. The principal office of each Series shall be located at José¢é Maria Velasco 13-502,
San José Insurgentes, Benito Juarez, CDMX, 03900, or such other place as the Manager may from
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time to time designate by notice to the Members of the applicable Series. The Company and each
Series may maintain offices at such other place or places within or outside the State of Delaware
as the Manager determines to be necessary or appropriate.

Section 2.4  Purpose. The purpose of the Company and, unless otherwise provided in
the applicable Series Designation, each Series shall be to (a) promote, conduct or engage in,
directly or indirectly, any business, purpose or activity that lawfully may be conducted by a series
limited liability company organized pursuant to the Delaware Act, (b) acquire and maintain a
portfolio of residential and commercial properties and, to exercise all of the rights and powers
conferred upon the Company and each Series with respect to its interests therein, and (¢) conduct
any and all activities related or incidental to the foregoing purposes.

Section 2.5 Powers. The Company, each Series and, subject to the terms of this
Agreement, the Manager shall be empowered to do any and all acts and things necessary or
appropriate for the furtherance and accomplishment of the purposes described in Section 2.4.

Section 2.6 Term. The term of the Company commenced on the day on which the
Certificate of Formation was filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware pursuant to
the provisions of the Delaware Act. The existence of each Series shall commence upon the
effective date of the Series Designation establishing such Series, as provided in Section 3.3. The
term of the Company and each Series shall be perpetual, unless and until it is dissolved or
terminated in accordance with the provisions of Article XI. The existence of the Company as a
separate legal entity shall continue until the cancellation of the Certificate of Formation as
provided in the Delaware Act.

Section 2.7  Title to Properties. All Interests shall constitute personal property of the
owner thereof for all purposes and a Member has no interest in specific assets of the Company or
applicable Series Property. Title to any Series Property, whether real, personal or mixed and
whether tangible or intangible, shall be deemed to be owned by the Series to which such asset was
contributed or by which such asset was acquired, and none of the Company, any Member, Officer
or other Series, individually or collectively, shall have any ownership interest in such Series
Property or any portion thereof. Title to any or all of the Series Property may be held in the name
of the relevant Series or one or more nominees, as the Manager may determine. All Series Property
shall be recorded by the Manager as the property of the applicable Series in the books and records
maintained for such Series, irrespective of the name in which record title to such Series Property
is held.

Section 2.8  Certificate of Formation. The Certificate of Formation has been filed with
the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware, such filing being hereby confirmed, ratified and
approved in all respects. The Manager Manager shall use reasonable efforts to cause to be filed
such other certificates or documents that it determines to be necessary or appropriate for the
formation, continuation, qualification and operation of a series limited liability company in the
State of Delaware or any other state in which the Company or any Series may elect to do business
or own property. To the extent that the Manager determines such action to be necessary or
appropriate, the Manager shall, or shall direct the appropriate Officers, to file amendments to and
restatements of the Certificate of Formation and do all things to maintain the Company as a series
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limited liability company under the laws of the State of Delaware or of any other state in which
the Company or any Series may elect to do business or own property, and if an Officer is so
directed, such Officer shall be an authorized person of the Company and, unless otherwise
provided in a Series Designation, each Series within the meaning of the Delaware Act for purposes
of filing any such certificate with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware. The Company
shall not be required, before or after filing, to deliver or mail a copy of the Certificate of Formation,
any qualification document or any amendment thereto to any Member.

Section 2.9  Structure. The relationship of the Company and each Series shall be
analogous to the relationship of a parent entity and a subsidiary.

ARTICLE III
MEMBERS, SERIES AND INTERESTS

Section 3.1 Members. The Persons listed on Exhibit A of this Agreement shall be
Members of the Company, but shall not be Members of any Series unless so designated in the
each applicable Series Designation.

(a) Subject to paragraph (b), a Person shall be admitted as a Member of any
Series and Record Holder thereof either as a result of an Initial Offering, Subsequent
Offering, a Transfer or at such other time as determined by the Manager, and upon (i)
agreeing to be bound by the terms of this Agreement by completing, signing and
delivering to the Manager, a completed Form of Adherence, which is then accepted by
the Manager, (i1) the prior written consent of the Manager, and (iii) otherwise complying
with the applicable provisions of Article I1I and Article I'V.

(b) The Manager may withhold its consent to the admission of any Person as
a Member for any reason, including when it determines in its reasonable discretion that
such admission could: (i) result in there being 2,000 or more beneficial owners (as such
term is used under the Exchange Act) or 500 or more beneficial owners that are not
accredited investors (as defined under the Securities Act) of any Series Interests, as
specified in Section 12(g)(1)(A)(ii) of the Exchange Act, (ii) could adversely affect the
Company or a Series or subject the Company, a Series, the Manager or any of their
respective Affiliates to any additional regulatory or governmental requirements or cause
the Company to be disqualified as a limited liability company, or subject the Company,
any Series, the Manager or any of their respective Affiliates to any tax to which it would
not otherwise be subject, (iii) cause the Company or any Series to be required to register
as an investment company under the Investment Company Act, (iv) cause the Manager
or any of its respective Affiliates being required to register under the Investment Advisers
Act, (v) cause the assets of the Company or any Series to be treated as plan assets as
defined in Section 3(42) of ERISA, or (vi) result in a loss of (a) partnership status by the
Company for US federal income tax purposes or the termination of the Company for US
federal income tax purposes or (b) corporation taxable as an association status for US
federal income tax purposes of any Series or termination of any Series for US federal
income tax purposes. A Person may become a Record Holder without the consent or
approval of any of the Members. A Person may not become a Member without acquiring
an Interest.

10
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() The name and mailing address of each Member shall be listed on the books
and records of the Company and each Series and such records may be administered by
and on behalf of the Company and each Series using blockchain technology. The Manager
shall update the books and records of the Company and of each Series from time to time
as necessary to reflect accurately the information therein.

(d) Except as otherwise provided in the Delaware Act and subject to Sections
3.1(e) and 3.3 relating to each Series, the debts, obligations and liabilities of the Company,
whether arising in contract, tort or otherwise, shall be solely the debts, obligations and
liabilities of the Company, and the Members shall not be obligated personally for any such
debt, obligation or liability of the Company solely by reason of being a Member.

(e) Except as otherwise provided in the Delaware Act, the debts, obligations
and liabilities of a Series, whether arising in contract, tort or otherwise, shall be solely the
debts, obligations and liabilities of such Series, and not of any other Series. In addition,
the Members shall not be obligated personally for any such debt, obligation or liability of
any Series solely by reason of being a Member.

63) Unless otherwise provided herein, and subject to Article XI, Members may
not be expelled from or removed as Members of the Company. Except as provided in the
Series Designation, Members shall not have any right to resign or redeem their Interests
from the Company; provided that when a transferee of a Members Interests becomes a
Record Holder of such Interests, such transferring Member shall cease to be a Member of
the Company with respect to the Interests so transferred and that Members of a Series
shall cease to be Members of such Series when such Series is finally liquidated in
accordance with Section 11.3.

(2) Except as may be otherwise agreed between the Company or a Series, on
the one hand, and a Member, on the other hand, any Member shall be entitled to and may
have business interests and engage in business activities in addition to those relating to
the Company or a Series, including business interests and activities in direct competition
with the Company or any Series. None of the Company, any Series or any of the other
Members shall have any rights by virtue of this Agreement in any such business interests
or activities of any Member.

(h) Vylon Balance Solutions, LLLC was appointed as the Manager of the
Company with effect from the date of the formation of the Company and shall continue
as Manager of the Company until the earlier of (i) the dissolution of the Company
pursuant to Section 11.1(a), or (ii) its replacement pursuant to Section 4.3. The Manager
of each series shall be set forth in the Series Designation and such Manager shall remain
until the earlier of (i) the dissolution of the Series pursuant to Section 11.1(b) or (ii) its
replacement pursuant to Section 4.3. Unless provided otherwise in this Agreement,
Interests held by the Manager, if any, or any of its Affiliates shall be identical to those of
a Member and will not have any additional distribution, redemption, conversion or
liquidation rights by virtue of its status as the Manager; provided, that the Manager shall

11
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have the rights, duties and obligations of the Manager hereunder, regardless of whether
the Manager shall hold any Interests.

Section 3.2  Capital Contributions.

(a) The minimum number of Interests a Member may acquire is one (1)
Interest or such higher or lesser amount as the Manager may determine from time to time
and as specified in each Series Designation, as applicable. Persons acquiring Interests
through an Offering shall make a Capital Contribution to the Company in an amount equal
to the per interest price determined in connection with such Offering and multiplied by
the number of Interests acquired by such Person in such Offering, as applicable. Persons
acquiring Interests in a manner other than through an Offering or pursuant to a Transfer
shall make such Capital Contribution as shall be determined by the Manager in its sole
discretion.

(b) Except as expressly permitted by the Manager, in its sole discretion (i)
initial and any additional Capital Contributions to the Company or Series as applicable,
by any Member shall be payable in fiat currency and (ii) initial and any additional Capital
Contributions shall be payable in one installment and shall be paid prior to the date of the
proposed acceptance by the Manager of a Person's admission as a Member to a Series (or
a Members application to acquire additional Interests) (or within five business days
thereafter with the Manager's approval). No Member shall be required to make an
additional capital contribution to the Company or Series but may make an additional
Capital Contribution to acquire additional interests at such Members sole discretion and
subject to the approval of the Manager.

(c) Except to the extent expressly provided in this Agreement (including any
Series Designation): (i) no Member shall be entitled to the withdrawal or return of its
Capital Contribution, except to the extent, if any, that distributions made pursuant to this
Agreement or upon dissolution or termination of the Company or any Series may be
considered as such by law and then only to the extent provided for in this Agreement; (ii)
no Member holding any Series of any Interests of a Series shall have priority over any
other Member holding the same Series either as to the return of Capital Contributions or
as to distributions; (iii) no interest shall be paid by the Company or any Series on any
Capital Contributions; and (iv) no Member, in its capacity as such, shall participate in the
operation or management of the business of the Company or any Series, transact any
business in the Company or any Series name or have the power to sign documents for or
otherwise bind the Company or any Series by reason of being a Member.

Section 3.3  Series of the Company.

(a) Establishment of Series. Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, the
Manager may, at any time and from time to time and in compliance with paragraph (c),
cause the Company to establish in writing (each, a "Series Designation") one or more
series as such term is used under Section 18-215 of the Delaware Act (each a "Series").
The Series Designation shall relate solely to the Series established thereby and shall not
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be construed: (i) to affect the terms and conditions of any other Series, or (ii) to designate,
fix or determine the rights, powers, authority, privileges, preferences, duties,
responsibilities, liabilities and obligations in respect of Interests of any other Series, or
the Members thereof. The terms and conditions for each Series established pursuant to
this Section shall be as set forth in this Agreement and the Series Designation, as
applicable, for the Series. Upon approval of any Series Designation by the Manager, such
Series Designation shall be attached to this Agreement as an Exhibit until such time as
none of such Interests of such Series remain Outstanding.

(b) Series Operation. Each of the Series shall operate to the extent practicable
as if it were a separate limited liability company.

(c) Series Designation. The Series Designation establishing a Series may: (i)
specify a name or names under which the business and affairs of such Series may be
conducted; (ii) designate, fix and determine the relative rights, powers, authority,
privileges, preferences, duties, responsibilities, liabilities and obligations in respect of
Interests of such Series and the Members thereof (to the extent such terms differ from
those set forth in this Agreement) and (iii) designate or authorize the designation of
specific Officers of such Series. A Series Designation (or any resolution of the Manager
amending any Series Designation) shall be effective when a duly executed original of the
same is included by the Manager among the permanent records of the Company, and shall
be annexed to, and constitute part of, this Agreement (it being understood and agreed that,
upon such effective date, the Series described in such Series Designation shall be deemed
to have been established and the Interests of such Series shall be deemed to have been
authorized in accordance with the provisions thereof). The Series Designation
establishing a Series may set forth specific provisions governing the rights of such Series
against a Member of such Series who fails to comply with the applicable provisions of
this Agreement (including, for the avoidance of doubt, the applicable provisions of such
Series Designation). In the event of a conflict between the terms and conditions of this
Agreement and a Series Designation, the terms and conditions of the Series Designation
shall prevail.

(d) Assets and Liabilities Of a Series.

(1) Assets Of a Series. All consideration received by the Company for the
issuance or sale of Interests of a particular Series, together with all assets in which such
consideration is invested or reinvested, and all income, earnings, profits and proceeds thereof,
from whatever source derived, including any proceeds derived from the sale, exchange or
liquidation of such assets, and any funds or payments derived from any reinvestment of such
proceeds, in whatever form the same may be (assets), shall, subject to the provisions of this
Agreement, be held for the benefit of the Series or the Members of such Series, and not for the
benefit of the Members of any other Series, for all purposes, and shall be accounted for and
recorded upon the books and records of the Series separately from any assets of any other
Series. Such assets are herein referred to as assets of that Series. In the event that there are any
assets in relation to the Company that, in the Manager's reasonable judgment, are not readily
of a particular Series, the Manager may allocate such assets to, between or among any one or
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more of the Series, in such manner and on such basis as the Manager deems fair and equitable
and any asset so allocated to a particular Series shall thereupon be deemed to be an asset of
that Series. Each allocation by the Manager pursuant to the provisions of this paragraph shall
be conclusive and binding upon the Members of each and every Series. Separate and distinct
records shall be maintained for each and every Series, and the Manager shall not commingle
the assets of one Series with the assets of any other Series.

(i1) Liabilities Of a Series. All debts, liabilities, expenses, costs, charges,
obligations and reserves incurred by, contracted for or otherwise existing (liabilities) with
respect to a particular Series shall be charged against the assets of that Series. Such liabilities
are herein referred to as liabilities of that Series. In the event that there are any liabilities in
relation to the Company that, in the Manager's reasonable judgment, are not readily of a
particular Series, the Manager shall allocate and charge (including indemnification
obligations) such liabilities to, between or among any one or more of the Series, in such manner
and on such basis as the Manager deems fair and equitable and in accordance with this
Agreement, and any liability so allocated and charged to a particular Series shall thereupon be
deemed to be a liability of that Series. Each allocation by the Manager pursuant to the
provisions of this Section shall be conclusive and binding upon the Members of each and every
Series. All liabilities of a Series shall be enforceable against the assets of that Series only, and
not against the assets of the Company or any other Series, and except to the extent set forth
above, no liabilities shall be enforceable against the assets of any Series prior to the allocation
and charging of such liabilities as provided above. Any allocation of liabilities that are not
readily of a particular Series to, between or among one or more of the Series shall not represent
a commingling of such Series to pool capital for the purpose of carrying on a trade or business
or making common investments and sharing in profits and losses therefrom. The Manager has
caused notice of this limitation on inter-series liabilities to be set forth in the Certificate of
Formation, and, accordingly, the statutory provisions of Section 18 215(b) of the Delaware Act
relating to limitations on inter-series liabilities (and the statutory effect under Section 18 207
of the Delaware Act of setting forth such notice in the Certificate of Formation) shall apply to
the Company and each Series. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, no
distribution on or in respect of Interests in a particular Series, including, for the avoidance of
doubt, any distribution made in connection with the winding up of such Series, shall be effected
by the Company other than from the assets of that Series, nor shall any Member or former
Member of a Series otherwise have any right or claim against the assets of any other Series
(except to the extent that such Member or former Member has such a right or claim hereunder
as a Member or former Member of such other Series or in a capacity other than as a Member
or former Member).

(e) Ownership of Series Property. Title to and beneficial interest in a Series
Property shall be deemed to be held and owned by the relevant Series and no Member or
Members of such Series, individually or collectively, shall have any title to or beneficial
interest in a specific Series Property or any portion thereof. Each Member of a Series
irrevocably waives any right that it may have to maintain an action for partition with
respect to its interest in the Company, any Series or any Series Property. Any Series
Property may be held or registered in the name of the relevant Series, in the name of a
nominee or as the Manager may determine; provided, however, that Series Property shall
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be recorded as the assets of the relevant Series on the Company’s books and records,
irrespective of the name in which legal title to such Series Property is held. Any
corporation, brokerage firm or transfer agent called upon to transfer any Series Property
to or from the name of any Series shall be entitled to rely upon instructions or assignments
signed or purporting to be signed by the Manager or its agents without inquiry as to the
authority of the person signing or purporting to sign such instruction or assignment or as
to the validity of any transfer to or from the name of such Series.

® Prohibition on Issuance of Preference Interests. No Interests shall entitle
any Member to any preemptive, preferential or similar rights unless such preemptive,
preferential or similar rights are set forth in the applicable Series Designation on or prior
to the date of the Initial Offering of any interests of such Series (the designation of such
preemptive, preferential or similar rights with respect to a Series in the Series Designation,
the "Preferential Rights").

Section 3.4  Authorization to Issue Interests.

(a) The Company may issue Interests, and options, rights and warrants relating
to Interests, for the Company or any Series for any purpose at any time and from time to
time to such Persons for such consideration (which may be cash, property, services or any
other lawful consideration) or for no consideration and on such terms and conditions as the
Manager shall determine, all without the approval of the Members. Each Interest shall have
the rights and be governed by the provisions set forth in this Agreement (including any
Series Designation).

(b) Subject to Section 6.3(a), and unless otherwise provided in the applicable
Series Designation, the Company is authorized to issue in respect of each Series an
unlimited number of Interests. All Interests issued pursuant to, and in accordance with the
requirements of, this Article III shall be validly issued Interests in the Company, except to
the extent otherwise provided in the Delaware Act or this Agreement (including any Series
Designation).

Section 3.5  Voting Rights of Interests Generally. Unless otherwise provided in this
Agreement or any Series Designation, (i) each Record Holder of Interests shall be entitled to one
vote per Interest for all matters submitted for the consent or approval of Members generally, (ii)
all Record Holders of Interests (regardless of Series) shall vote together as a single class on all
matters as to which all Record Holders of Interests are entitled to vote, (iii) Record Holders of
Interests of a particular Series shall be entitled to one vote per Interest for all matters submitted for
the consent or approval of the Members of such Series and (iv) the Manager or any of its Affiliates
shall not be entitled to vote in connection with any Interests they hold pursuant to Section 3.1(h)
and no such Interests shall be deemed Outstanding for purposes of any such vote.

Section 3.6  Record Holders. The Company may recognize the Record Holder as the
owner of an Interest and, accordingly, shall not be bound to recognize any equitable or other claim
to or interest in such Interest on the part of any other Person, regardless of whether the Company
shall have actual or other notice thereof, except as otherwise provided by law or any applicable
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rule, regulation, guideline or requirement of any National Securities Exchange or over- the-counter
market on which such Interests are listed for trading (if ever). Without limiting the foregoing, when
a Person (such as a broker, dealer, bank, trust company or clearing corporation or an agent of any
of the foregoing) is acting as nominee, agent or in some other representative capacity for another
Person in acquiring or holding Interests, as between the Company on the one hand, and such other
Persons on the other, such representative Person shall be the Record Holder of such Interests.

Section 3.7 Splits.

(a) Subject to paragraph (c) of this Section and Section 3.4, and unless
otherwise provided in any Series Designation, the Manager may make a pro rata
distribution of Interests of any Series to all Record Holders of such Series, or may effect a
subdivision or combination of Interests of any Series, in each case, on an equal per Interest
basis and so long as, after any such event, any amounts calculated on a per Interest basis
or stated as a number of Interests are proportionately adjusted.

(b) Whenever such a distribution, subdivision or combination of Interests is
declared, the Manager shall select a date as of which the distribution, subdivision or
combination shall be effective. The Manager shall send notice thereof at least ten (10)
Business Days prior to the date of such distribution, subdivision or combination to each
Record Holder as of a date not less than five (5) Business Days prior to the date of such
distribution, subdivision or combination. The Manager also may cause a firm of
independent public accountants selected by it to calculate the number of Interests to be held
by each Record Holder after giving effect to such distribution, subdivision or combination.
The Manager shall be entitled to rely on any certificate provided by such firm as conclusive
evidence of the accuracy of such calculation.

(c) Subject to Section 3.4 and unless otherwise provided in any Series
Designation, the Company shall not issue fractional Interests upon any distribution,
subdivision or combination of Interests. If a distribution, subdivision or combination of
Interests would otherwise result in the issuance of fractional Interests, each fractional
Interest shall be rounded to the nearest whole Interest (and a 0.5 Interest shall be rounded
to the next higher Interest).

Section 3.8  Agreements. The rights of all Members and the terms of all Interests are
subject to the provisions of this Agreement (including any Series Designation).

ARTICLE IV
REGISTER AND TRANSFER OF INTERESTS

Section 4.1 Maintenance of a Register; Manager as Transfer Agent. Subject to the
restrictions on Transfer and ownership limitations contained below, the Manager, or its appointee,

shall keep or cause to be kept on behalf of the Company and each Series a register that will set
forth the Record Holders of each of the Interests and information regarding the Transfer of each
of the Interests. The Manager is hereby initially appointed as registrar and transfer agent of the
Interests, provided that the Manager may appoint such third-party registrar and transfer agent as it
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determines appropriate in its sole discretion, for the purpose of registering Interests and Transfers
of such Interests as herein provided, including as set forth in any Series Designation.

Section 4.2  General. Upon acceptance by the Manager of the Transfer of any Interests,
each transferee of an Interest, (i) shall be admitted to the Company as a Substitute Member with
respect to the Interests so transferred to such transferee when any such transfer or admission is
reflected in the books and records of the Company, (ii) shall be deemed to agree to be bound by
the terms of this Agreement by completing a Form of Adherence to the reasonable satisfaction of
the Manager in accordance with Section 4.3(f)(ii), (iii) shall become the Record Holder of the
Interests so transferred, and (iv) makes the consents and waivers contained in this Agreement. The
Transfer of any Interests and the admission of any new Member shall not constitute an amendment
to this Agreement, and no amendment to this Agreement shall be required for the admission of
new Members.

Section 4.3 Transfer Restrictions.

(a) No Transfer of any Member's Interest, whether voluntary or involuntary,
shall be valid or effective, and no transferee shall become a Record Holder or Substituted
Member if such Transfer violates any of the provisions in this Section 4.3. The Manager
shall not recognize a transferee as a Record Holder or Substitute Member unless all of the
conditions of Section 4.3(b) are also satisfied.

(b) No Transfer of any Members Interests, whether voluntary or involuntary,
shall be valid or effective and shall be void ab initio if the Manager, in its sole discretion,
determines that such Transfer has or may:

(1) result in the Company or any Series directly or indirectly exceeding
the 99-investor limit provided by Section 3(c)(1) of the Investment Company Act, if
applicable;

(i1) cause all or any portion of the assets of the Company or any Series
to constitute plan assets for purposes of ERISA;

(ii1))  cause the Company, or a Series, to become subject to the Investment
Company Act of 1940 or the Manager to become subject to the Investment Advisers Act
of 1940;

(iv)  subject the Company, the Series, the Manager or any of their
respective Affiliates to additional regulatory or governmental reporting or compliance
requirements from which the Company was exempt as of the date of formation;

(v) cause the Company to be disqualified as a limited liability company;

(vi)  subject the Company, any Series, the Manager or any of their
respective Affiliates to any tax to which it would not otherwise be subject;
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(vil) require registration of the Company, any Series or any Interests
under any securities laws of the United States of America, any state thereof or any other
jurisdiction;

(viii) violate or be inconsistent with any representation or warranty made
by the transferring Member; or

(ix)  may adversely affect the Company or a Series as determined by the
Manager in its sole discretion.

(c) In the event any Transfer permitted by this Section shall result in beneficial
ownership by multiple Persons of any Members’ interest in the Company, the Manager
may require one or more trustees or nominees to be designated to represent a portion of or
the entire interest transferred for the purpose of receiving all notices which may be given
and all payments which may be made under this Agreement, and for the purpose of
exercising the rights which the transferor as a Member had pursuant to the provisions of
this Agreement.

(d) A transferee recognized by the Manager as a Record Holder shall be
entitled to any future distributions attributable to the Interests transferred to such transferee
and to transfer such Interests in accordance with the terms of this Agreement; provided,
however, that such transferee shall not be entitled to the other rights of a Member as a
result of such Transfer until he or she becomes a Substitute Member.

(e) The Company and each Series shall incur no liability for distributions made
in good faith to the transferring Member until a written instrument of Transfer has been
received by the Company and recorded on its books and the effective date of Transfer has
passed.

63) Any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, any
Substitute Member shall be bound by the provisions hereof. Prior to recognizing any
Transfer in accordance with this Section, the Manager may require, in its sole discretion:

(1) the transferring Member and each transferee to execute one or
more deeds or other instruments of Transfer in a form satisfactory to the Manager;

(i1) each transferee to acknowledge its assumption (in whole or, if the
Transfer is in respect of part only, in the proportionate part) of the obligations of the
transferring Member by executing a Form of Adherence (or any other equivalent
instrument as determined by the Manager);

(iii))  each transferee to provide all the information required by the

Manager to satisfy itself as to anti-money laundering, counter-terrorist financing and
sanctions compliance matters; and
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(iv)  payment by the transferring Member, in full, of the costs and
expenses referred to in paragraph (g) below, and no Transfer shall be completed or
recorded in the books of the Company, and no proposed Substitute Member shall be
admitted to the Company as a Member, unless and until each of these requirements has
been satisfied or, at the sole discretion of the Manager, waived.

(2) The transferring Member shall bear all costs and expenses arising in
connection with any proposed Transfer, whether or not the Transfer proceeds to
completion, including any legal fees incurred by the Company or any broker or dealer,
any costs or expenses in connection with any opinion of counsel, and any transfer taxes
and filing fees.

Section 44  Transfer of Interests of Manager. The Manager may Transfer its Interests,
if any, acquired at any time and from time to time. The Members hereby authorize the Manager to
assign its rights, obligations and title as Manager to an Affiliate without the prior consent of any
other Person, and, in connection with such transfer, designate such Affiliate of either Manager as
a successor or Manager, provided, that the Manager shall notify the applicable Members of such
change in the next regular communication to such Members.

Section 4.5 Death or Disability of a Member. Upon the Disability or death of a
Member, that Member will cease to be a Member of the Company or a Series, as the case may
be, and that disabled Member or the legal representative of that deceased Member's estate (or the
trustee of a living trust established by that deceased Member if that Member's Interests have been
transferred to a trust) shall not exercise any rights of a Member except such assignee may receive
the distributions to which the deceased or disabled Member would be entitled.

Section 4.6  Notice of Restricted Transfer. Any Person who Transfers one or more Interests
shall immediately give written notice to the Company of such Transfer, and shall provide to the
Company such other information as the Company may request, including, but not limited to, the
transferees name, address, email address, and the Ethereum transaction hash or transaction ID of
the transfer.

Section 4.7 Remedies for Breach. If the Manager shall at any time determine in good
faith that a Transfer or other event has taken place that results in a violation of this Article IV, it
shall take such action as it deems advisable to refuse to give effect to or to prevent such Transfer
or other event, including, without limitation, causing the Company to redeem Interests, refusing to
give effect to such Transfer on the books of the Company or instituting proceedings to enjoin such
Transfer or other event.

ARTICLE V
MANAGEMENT AND OPERATION OF THE COMPANY AND EACH SERIES
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Section 5.1 Power and Authority of Manager. Except as explicitly set forth in this
Agreement, the Manager, as appointed pursuant to Section 3.1(h) of this Agreement, shall have
full power and authority to do, and to direct the Officers, if any, to do, all things and on such terms
as it determines to be necessary or appropriate to conduct the business of the Company and each
Series, to exercise all powers set forth in Section 2.5 and to effectuate the purposes set forth in
Section 2.4, in each case without the consent of the Members, including but not limited to the
following:

(a) the making of any expenditures, the lending or borrowing of money, the
assumption or guarantee of, or other contracting for, indebtedness and other liabilities, the
issuance of evidences of indebtedness, including entering into on behalf of a Series, an
Operating Expenses Reimbursement Obligation, or indebtedness that is convertible into
Interests, and the incurring of any other obligations;

(b) the making of tax, regulatory and other filings, or rendering of periodic or
other reports to governmental or other agencies having jurisdiction over the business or
assets of the Company or any Series, and the making of any tax elections;

(c) subject to the voting rights described in Section 3.5 and the Series
Designation, the acquisition, disposition, mortgage, pledge, encumbrance, hypothecation
or exchange of any or all of the assets of the Company or any Series or the merger or other
combination of the Company with or into another Person;

(d) (1) the use of the assets of the Company (including cash on hand) for any
purpose consistent with the terms of this Agreement, including the financing of the conduct
of the operations of the Company and the repayment of obligations of the Company and
(i1) the use of the assets of a Series (including cash on hand) for any purpose consistent
with the terms of this Agreement, including the financing of the conduct of the operations
of such Series and the repayment of obligations of such Series;

(e) the negotiation, execution and performance of any contracts, conveyances
or other instruments (including instruments that limit the liability of the Company or any
Series under contractual arrangements to all or particular assets of the Company or any
Series);

63) the declaration and payment of distributions of Free Cash Flows or other
assets to Members of a Series;

(2) the election and removal of Officers of the Company or of any Series;

(h) the appointment of a Property Manager;

(1) the selection, retention and dismissal of employees, agents, outside
attorneys, accountants, consultants and contractors and the determination of their

compensation and other terms of employment, retention or hiring, and the payment of fees,
expenses, salaries, wages and other compensation to such Persons;
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() the solicitation of proxies from holders of any Series Interests issued on or
after the date of this Agreement that entitles the holders thereof to vote on any matter
submitted for consent or approval of Members under this Agreement;

(k) the maintenance of insurance for the benefit of the Company, any Series
and the Indemnified Persons and the reinvestment by the Manager in its sole discretion, of
any proceeds received by such Series from an insurance claim in a replacement Series
Property which is substantially similar to that which comprised the Series Property prior to
the event giving rise to such insurance payment;

D the formation of, or acquisition or disposition of an interest in, and the
contribution of property and the making of loans to, any limited or general partnership,
joint venture, corporation, limited liability company or other entity or arrangement;

(m)  the placement of any Free Cash Flow funds in deposit accounts in the name
of a Series or of a custodian for the account of a Series, or to invest those Free Cash Flow
funds in any other investments for the account of such Series, in each case pending the
application of those Free Cash Flow funds in meeting liabilities of the Series or making
distributions or other payments to the Members (as the case may be);

(n) the control of any matters affecting the rights and obligations of the
Company or any Series, including the bringing, prosecuting and defending of actions at
law or in equity and otherwise engaging in the conduct of litigation, arbitration or
remediation, and the incurring of legal expense and the settlement of claims and litigation,
including in respect of taxes;

(0) the indemnification of any Person against liabilities and contingencies to
the maximum extent permitted by law;

(p) the giving of consent of or voting by the Company or any Series in respect
of any securities that may be owned by the Company or such Series;

(qQ) the waiver of any condition or other matter by the Company or any Series;
(r) the entering into of listing agreements with any National Securities
Exchange, Alternative Trading System, or over- the-counter market and the delisting of
some or all of the Interests from, or requesting that trading be suspended on, any such

exchange or market;

(s) the issuance, sale or other disposition, and the purchase or other acquisition,
of Interests or options, rights or warrants relating to Interests;

(t) the registration of any offer, issuance, sale or resale of Interests or other
securities or any Series issued or to be issued by the Company under the Securities Act and
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any other applicable securities laws (including any resale of Interests or other securities by
Members or other security holders);

(u) the execution and delivery of agreements with Affiliates of the Company or
other Persons to render services to the Company or any Series;

(v) the selection of auditors for the Company;

(w)  the selection of any transfer agent or depositor for any securities of the
Company or any Series, and the entry into such agreements and provision of such other
information as shall be required for such transfer agent or depositor to perform its
applicable functions; and

(x) unless otherwise provided in this Agreement or the Series Designation, the
calling of a vote of the Members as to any matter to be voted on by all Members of the
Company or if a particular Series, as applicable.

The authority of the Manager, on the one hand, and of the Officers, on the other hand, shall be
identical to the authority and functions of the board of directors and officers, respectively, of a
corporation organized under the DGCL in addition to the powers that now or hereafter can be
granted to Manager under the Delaware Act. No Member, by virtue of its status as such, shall have
any management power over the business and affairs of the Company or any Series or actual or
apparent authority to enter into, execute or deliver contracts on behalf of, or to otherwise bind, the
Company or any Series.

Section 5.2  Determinations by the Manager. In furtherance of the authority granted
to the Manager pursuant to Section 5.1, the determination as to any of the following matters, made
in good faith by or pursuant to the direction of the Manager, consistent with this Agreement, shall
be final and conclusive and shall be binding upon the Company and each Series and every holder
of Interests:

(a) the amount of Free Cash Flow of any Series for any period and the amount
of assets at any time legally available for the payment of distributions on Interests of any

Series;

(b) the amount of paid in surplus, net assets, other surplus, annual or other cash
flow, funds from operations, net profit, net assets in excess of capital, undivided profits or
excess of profits over losses on sales of assets; the amount, purpose, time of creation,
increase or decrease, alteration or cancellation of any reserves or charges and the propriety
thereof (whether or not any obligation or liability for which such reserves or charges shall
have been created shall have been paid or discharged);

() any interpretation of the terms, preferences, conversion or other rights,
voting powers or rights, restrictions, limitations as to distributions, qualifications or terms

or conditions of redemption of any Series;

(d) the fair value, or any sale, bid or asked price to be applied in determining
the fair value, of any asset owned or held by any Series or of any Interests;
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(e) the number of Interests within a Series;

63) any matter relating to the acquisition, holding and disposition of any assets
by any Series;

(2) the evaluation of any competing interests among the Series and the
resolution of any conflicts of interests among the Series;

(h) each of the matters set forth in Section 5.1(a) through Section 5.1(y); or

(1) any other matter relating to the business and affairs of the Company or any
Series or required or permitted by applicable law, this Agreement or otherwise to be
determined by the Manager.

Section 5.3  Delegation. The Manager may delegate to any Person or Persons any of the
powers and authority vested in it hereunder and may engage such Person or Persons to provide
administrative, compliance, technological and accounting services to the Company, on such terms
and conditions as it may consider appropriate.

Section 5.4  Exculpation, Indemnification, Advances and Insurance.

(a) Subject to other applicable provisions of this Article V including Section
5.6, the Indemnified Persons shall not be liable to the Company or any Series for any acts
or omissions by any of the Indemnified Persons arising from the exercise of their rights or
performance of their duties and obligations in connection with the Company or any Series,
this Agreement or any investment made or held by the Company or any Series, including
with respect to any acts or omissions made while serving at the request of the Company or
on behalf of any Series as an officer, director, member, partner, fiduciary or trustee of
another Person, other than such acts or omissions that have been determined in a final, non-
appealable decision of a court of competent jurisdiction to constitute fraud, willful
misconduct or gross negligence. The Indemnified Persons shall be indemnified by the
Company and, to the extent Expenses and Liabilities are of any Series, each such Series,
in each case, to the fullest extent permitted by law, against all expenses and liabilities
(including judgments, fines, penalties, interest, amounts paid in settlement with the
approval of the Company and counsel fees and disbursements on a solicitor and client
basis) (collectively, Expenses and Liabilities) arising from the performance of any of their
duties or obligations in connection with their service to the Company or each such Series
or this Agreement, or any investment made or held by the Company, each such Series,
including in connection with any civil, criminal, administrative, investigative or other
action, suit or proceeding to which any such Person may hereafter be made party by reason
of being or having been a manager of the Company or such Series under Delaware law, an
Officer of the Company or of such Series, or an officer, director, member, partner, fiduciary
or trustee of another Person, provided that this indemnification shall not cover Expenses
and Liabilities that arise out of the acts or omissions of any Indemnified Party that have
been determined in a final, non- appealable decision of a court, arbitrator or other tribunal
of competent jurisdiction to have resulted primarily from such Indemnified Persons fraud,

23



DocuSign Envelope ID: E3831312-279F-4C17-96A6-FCCF68892C2E

willful misconduct or gross negligence. Without limitation, the foregoing indemnity shall
extend to any liability of any Indemnified Person, pursuant to a loan guaranty or otherwise,
for any indebtedness of the Company or any Series (including any indebtedness which the
Company or any Series has assumed or taken subject to), and the Manager or the Officers
are hereby authorized and empowered, on behalf of the Company or any Series, to enter
into one or more indemnity agreements consistent with the provisions of this Section in
favor of any Indemnified Person having or potentially having liability for any such
indebtedness. It is the intention of this paragraph that the Company and each applicable
Series indemnify each Indemnified Person to the fullest extent permitted by law, provided
that this indemnification shall not cover Expenses and Liabilities that arise out of the acts
or omissions of any Indemnified Party that have been determined in a final, non-appealable
decision of a court, arbitrator or other tribunal of competent jurisdiction to have resulted
primarily from such Indemnified Persons fraud, willful misconduct or gross negligence.

(b) The provisions of this Agreement, to the extent they restrict the duties and
liabilities of an Indemnified Person otherwise existing at law or in equity, including Section
5.7, are agreed by each Member to modify such duties and liabilities of the Indemnified
Person to the maximum extent permitted by law.

(c) Any indemnification under this Section (unless ordered by a court) shall be
made by each applicable Series. To the extent, however, that an Indemnified Person has
been successful on the merits or otherwise in defense of any action, suit or proceeding
described above, or in defense of any claim, issue or matter therein, such Indemnified
Person shall be indemnified against expenses (including attorney’s fees) actually and
reasonably incurred by such Indemnified Person in connection therewith.

(d) Any Indemnified Person may apply to the Court of Chancery of the State of
Delaware or any other court of competent jurisdiction in the State of Delaware for
indemnification to the extent otherwise permissible under paragraph (a). The basis of such
indemnification by a court shall be a determination by such court that indemnification of
the Indemnified Person is proper in the circumstances because such Indemnified Person
has met the applicable standards of conduct set forth in paragraph (a). Neither a contrary
determination in the specific case under paragraph (c) nor the absence of any determination
thereunder shall be a defense to such application or create a presumption that the
Indemnified Person seeking indemnification has not met any applicable standard of
conduct. Notice of any application for indemnification pursuant to this paragraph shall be
given to the Company promptly upon the filing of such application. If successful, in whole
or in part, the Indemnified Person seeking indemnification shall also be entitled to be paid
the expense of prosecuting such application.

(e) To the fullest extent permitted by law, expenses (including attorney’s fees)
incurred by an Indemnified Person in defending any civil, criminal, administrative or
investigative action, suit or proceeding may, at the option of the Manager, be paid by each
applicable Series in advance of the final disposition of such action, suit or proceeding upon
receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of such Indemnified Person to repay such amount
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if it shall ultimately be determined that such Indemnified Person is not entitled to be
indemnified by each such Series as authorized in this Section.

® The indemnification and advancement of expenses provided by or granted
pursuant to this Section shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which those
seeking indemnification or advancement of expenses may be entitled under this
Agreement, or any other agreement (including without limitation any Series Designation),
vote of Members or otherwise, and shall continue as to an Indemnified Person who has
ceased to serve in such capacity and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, successors,
assigns and administrators of the Indemnified Person unless otherwise provided in a written
agreement with such Indemnified Person or in the writing pursuant to which such
Indemnified Person is indemnified, it being the policy of the Company that indemnification
of the persons specified in paragraph (a) shall be made to the fullest extent permitted by
law. The provisions of this Section shall not be deemed to preclude the indemnification of
any person who is not specified in paragraph (a) but whom the Company or an applicable
Series has the power or obligation to indemnify under the provisions of the Delaware Act.

(2) The Company and any Series may, but shall not be obligated to, purchase
and maintain insurance on behalf of any Person entitled to indemnification under this
Section against any liability asserted against such Person and incurred by such Person in
any capacity to which they are entitled to indemnification hereunder, or arising out of such
Persons status as such, whether or not the Company would have the power or the obligation
to indemnify such Person against such liability under the provisions of this Section.

(h) The indemnification and advancement of expenses provided by, or granted
pursuant to, this Section shall, unless otherwise provided when authorized or ratified, inure
to the benefit of the heirs, executors and administrators of any person entitled to
indemnification under this Section.

(1) The Company and any Series may, to the extent authorized from time to
time by the Manager, provide rights to indemnification and to the advancement of expenses
to employees and agents of the Company or such Series.

() If this Section or any portion of this Section shall be invalidated on any
ground by a court of competent jurisdiction each applicable Series shall nevertheless
indemnify each Indemnified Person as to expenses (including attorney’s fees), judgments,
fines, and amounts paid in settlement with respect to any action, suit, proceeding or
investigation, whether civil, criminal or administrative, including a grand jury proceeding
or action or suit brought by or in the right of the Company, to the full extent permitted by
any applicable portion of this Section that shall not have been invalidated.

(k) Each of the Indemnified Persons may, in the performance of his, her or its
duties, consult with legal counsel, accountants, and other experts, and any act or omission
by such Person on behalf of the Company or any Series in furtherance of the interests of
the Company or such Series in good faith in reliance upon, and in accordance with, the
advice of such legal counsel, accountants or other experts will be full justification for any
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such act or omission, and such Person will be fully protected for such acts and omissions;
provided that such legal counsel, accountants, or other experts were selected with
reasonable care by or on behalf of such Indemnified Person.

) An Indemnified Person shall not be denied indemnification in whole or in
part under this Section because the Indemnified Person had an interest in the transaction
with respect to which the indemnification applies if the transaction was otherwise permitted
by the terms of this Agreement.

(m)  Any liabilities which an Indemnified Person incurs as a result of acting on
behalf of the Company or any Series (whether as a fiduciary or otherwise) in connection
with the operation, administration or maintenance of an employee benefit plan or any
related trust or funding mechanism (whether such liabilities are in the form of excise taxes
assessed by the Internal Revenue Service, penalties assessed by the Department of Labor,
restitutions to such a plan or trust or other funding mechanism or to a participant or
beneficiary of such plan, trust or other funding mechanism, or otherwise) shall be treated
as liabilities indemnifiable under this Section, to the maximum extent permitted by law.

(n) The Manager shall, in the performance of its duties, be fully protected in
relying in good faith upon the records of the Company and any Series and on such
information, opinions, reports or statements presented to the Company by any of the
Officers or employees of the Company or of any Series, or by any other Person as to matters
the Manager reasonably believes are within such other Persons professional or expert
competence.

(o) Any amendment, modification or repeal of this Section or any provision
hereof shall be prospective only and shall not in any way affect the limitations on the
liability of or other rights of any indemnitee under this Section as in effect immediately
prior to such amendment, modification or repeal with respect to claims arising from or
relating to matters occurring, in whole or in part, prior to such amendment, modification
or repeal, regardless of when such claims may arise or be asserted and provided such Person
became an indemnitee hereunder prior to such amendment, modification or repeal.

Section 5.5 Duties of Officers.

(a) Except as set forth in Sections 5.4 and 5.6, as otherwise expressly provided
in this Agreement or required by the Delaware Act, (i) the duties and obligations owed to
the Company by the Officers, if any, shall be the same as the duties and obligations owed
to a corporation organized under DGCL by its officers, and (ii) the duties and obligations
owed to the Members by the Officers shall be the same as the duties and obligations owed
to the stockholders of a corporation under the DGCL by its officers.

(b) The Manager shall have the right to exercise any of the powers granted to it
by this Agreement and perform any of the duties imposed upon it thereunder either directly
or by or through the duly authorized Officers of the Company or of a Series, and the
Manager shall not be responsible for the misconduct or negligence on the part of any such
Officer duly appointed or duly authorized by the Manager in good faith.
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Section 5.6  Standards of Conduct and Modification of Duties of the Manager.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or under any applicable law, including, without

limitation, Section 18 1101(c) of the Delaware Act, the Manager and any Covered Person, in
exercising its rights hereunder in its capacity as the manager of the Company or any Series, shall
have no duty or obligation (fiduciary or otherwise) except as stated in this Agreement. The
Manager shall not have any duty (including any fiduciary duty) to the Company, any Series, the
Members or any other Person to self-dealing or corporate opportunities, all of which are hereby
expressly waived. Notwithstanding the foregoing, neither the Manager nor any Covered Person
shall be liable to the Company, a Series, or any other Covered Person for any loss, damage, or
claim incurred by reason of any action taken or omitted to be taken so long as such action or
omission does not constitute fraud or willful misconduct by the Manager or such Covered Person.

Section 5.7  Reliance by Third Parties. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in
this Agreement, any Person dealing with the Company or any Series shall be entitled to assume
that the Manager and any Officer of the Company or any Series has full power and authority to
encumber, sell or otherwise use in any manner any and all assets of the Company or such Series
and to enter into any contracts on behalf of the Company or such Series, and such Person shall be
entitled to deal with the Manager or any Officer as if it were the Company’s or such Series sole
party in interest, both legally and beneficially. Each Member hereby waives, to the fullest extent
permitted by law, any and all defenses or other remedies that may be available against such Person
to contest, negate or disaffirm any action of the Manager or any Officer in connection with any
such dealing. In no event shall any Person dealing with the Manager or any Officer or its
representatives be obligated to ascertain that the terms of this Agreement have been complied with
or to inquire into the necessity or expedience of any act or action of the Manager or any Officer or
its representatives. Each and every certificate, document or other instrument executed on behalf of
the Company or any Series by the Manager or any Officer or its representatives shall be conclusive
evidence in favor of any and every Person relying thereon or claiming thereunder that (a) at the
time of the execution and delivery of such certificate, document or instrument, this Agreement
were in full force and effect, (b) the Person executing and delivering such certificate, document or
instrument was duly authorized and empowered to do so for and on behalf of the Company or any
Series and (c) such certificate, document or instrument was duly executed and delivered in
accordance with the terms and provisions of this Agreement and is binding upon the Company or
the applicable Series.

Section 5.8 Related Party Transactions. Notwithstanding that it may constitute a
conflict of interest, the Manager and/or their respective Affiliates may engage in any transaction
(including the purchase, sale, lease or exchange of any property or the rendering of any service or
the establishment of any salary, other compensation or other terms of employment) with the
Company or any Series, so long as (x) such transaction is on arm’s length terms at market rate and
(y) such transaction is approved by the Manager, acting in good faith. Without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, each of the Members hereby acknowledges and expressly consents to
each of the following:

(a) the Company or any Series' payment of expenses to the Manager in
connection with the purchase, sale, lease and management of real property;
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(b) with respect to any Series, the purchase of real property, as described in
such Series' Offering Document, from an affiliate or part related to the Manager or its
principals,

(c) the entering into and periodic renewal of the Property Management
Agreement in accordance with Section 5.9; and

(d) any other transaction expressly contemplated by the terms of this
Agreement.

Section 5.9 Appointment of a Property Manager for Real Property Interests. The
Manager exercises ultimate authority over the Series Property. Pursuant to Section 5.3, the

Manager has the right to delegate its responsibilities under this Agreement in respect of the
management of the Series Property. The Manager may, on behalf of the Company or any Series,
appoint a Property Manager to manage Series Property consisting of real property interests on a
discretionary basis, and to exercise, to the exclusion of the Manager (but under the supervision and
authority of the Manager), all the powers, rights and discretions conferred on the Manager in
respect of the Series Property and, the Manager on behalf of each Series, may enter into a property
management agreement pursuant to which a Property Manager is formally appointed to manage
such Series Property. Any consideration payable to a Property Manager for managing such Series
Property will be negotiated by the Manager and remain separate from fees, if any, paid to the
Manager.

Section 5.10 The Manager May Engage in Other Activities. The Manager shall not be
obligated to devote all of its time or business efforts to the affairs of the Company or any particular
Series, provided that the Manager shall devote the time, effort and skill as it determines in its sole
discretion may be necessary or appropriate for the proper operation of the Company and each
Series. Subject to the foregoing, the Manager may have other business interests and may engage
in other activities in addition to those related to the Company and each Series. The Manager and
its respective Affiliates may acquire interests in the Series, companies, partnerships, or any other
Person issuing securities managed or administered by the Manager. The Manager’s interests may
be of a different class or type, with different rights and preferences, than those held by the
Members. Likewise, the Manager may acquire or possess interests in other companies or business
ventures that are competitive with the Company and each Series. None of the Members of the
Company any Series will have the right, by virtue of this Agreement, to share or participate in
other investments or activities of the Manager or to the income derived therefrom. Except as
expressly set forth in this Agreement, the Manager and each Member, and their respective
Affiliates may engage in or possess any interest in other business ventures of any kind, nature or
description, independently or with others, whether those ventures are competitive with the
Company or any Series or otherwise.

ARTICLE VI
FEES AND EXPENSES
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Section 6.1 Cost to acquire the Series Property: Offering Expenses; Acquisition
Expenses. Each Series shall bear the Offering Expenses and Acquisition Expenses incurred in
connection with any Initial Offering and the sourcing and acquisition of a Series Property (except
in the case of an unsuccessful Offering in which case all Dead Deal Costs shall be borne by the
Manager).

Section 6.2  Operating Expenses; Dissolution Fees. Each Series shall be responsible
for its Operating Expenses, all costs and expenses incidental to the termination and winding up of
such Series and its share of the costs and expenses incidental to the termination and winding up of
the Company as allocated to it in accordance with Section 6.4.

Section 6.3 Excess Operating Expenses; Further Issuance of Interests; Operating
Expenses Reimbursement Obligation(s). If there are not sufficient cash reserves of, or revenues

generated by, a Series to meet its Operating Expenses, the Manager may:

(a) issue additional Interests in such Series in accordance with Section 3.4.
Members shall be notified in writing at least ten (10) Business Days in advance of any
proposal by the Manager to issue additional Interests pursuant to this Section; and/or

(b) pay such excess Operating Expenses and not seek reimbursement; and/or

(c) enter into an agreement pursuant to which the Manager loans to the
Company or a Series an amount equal to the remaining excess Operating Expenses (the
"Operating Expenses Reimbursement Obligation(s)"). The Manager, in its sole
discretion, may impose a reasonable rate of interest (a rate no less than the Applicable
Federal Rate (as defined in the Code)) on any Operating Expenses Reimbursement
Obligation. The Operating Expenses Reimbursement Obligation(s) shall become repayable
when cash becomes available for such purpose in accordance with Article VII.

Section 6.4  Allocation of Expenses. Each Series shall be responsible for bearing its
respective fees and expenses, including but not limited to any Brokerage Fee, Offering Expenses,
Acquisition Expenses, and Operating Expenses.

Section 6.5 Overhead of the Manager. The Manager shall pay, and the Members shall
not bear the costs related to, its own overhead expenses, including: (i) all of the ordinary overhead
and administrative expenses of the Manager including, without limitation, all costs and expenses
on account of rent, utilities, insurance (not including property insurance for the Property of each
Series), office supplies, office equipment, secretarial expenses, stationery, charges for furniture,
fixtures and equipment, payroll taxes, travel, entertainment, salaries and bonuses, but excluding
any Operating Expenses, (ii) any Dead Deal Costs, and (iii) such other amounts in respect of any
Series as it shall agree in writing or as is explicitly set forth in any Offering Document.

Section 6.6 Fees Payable to the Manager or its Affiliates. The Manager or its
Affiliates shall be entitled to receive the fees listed in the Series Designation, if any. The Manager

or its Affiliates, in their sole discretion may defer or waive any fee payable to it under this
Agreement, provided that such deferral or waiver is evidenced by the Manager in a writing
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explicitly stating the waiver or deferral. All or any portion of any deferred fees will be deferred
without interest and paid when the Manager determines. Each Series may retain certain of the
Manager’s affiliates, for necessary services relating to our investments or our operations, including
any administrative services, construction, brokerage, leasing, development, financing, title,
insurance, property oversight, other property management services, and tokenization services. Any
such arrangements will be at market terms and rates.

ARTICLE VII
DISTRIBUTIONS

Section 7.1  General. Subject to the applicable provisions of the Delaware Act and
except as otherwise provided herein, the Manager mays, in its sole discretion, at any time and from
time to time, declare, make and pay distributions of cash to the Members of any Series. Subject to
the terms of any Series Designation (including, without limitation, the Preferential Rights, if any,
of holders of any other class of Interests of any Series) and of Article XI, distributions shall be
paid to the Record Holders of Interests of any Series on an equal per-Interest basis as of the Record
Date selected by the Manager. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary contained in this
Agreement, neither the Company nor any Series shall be required to make a distribution to any
Member on account of its interest in the Company or a Series if such distribution would violate
the Delaware Act or other applicable law.

Section 7.2  Application of Amounts upon the Liquidation of a Series. Subject to
Section 7.3 and Article XI and any Series Designation, any amounts available for distribution
following the liquidation of a Series, net of any fees, costs and liabilities (as determined by the
Manager in its sole discretion), shall be applied and distributed 100% to the Members of such
Series (pro rata to their Interests and which, for the avoidance of doubt, may include the Manager
and its Affiliates).

Section 7.3  Timing of Distributions.

(a) Subject to the applicable provisions of the Delaware Act and except as
otherwise provided herein, the Manager shall pay distributions to the Members of such
Series pursuant to Section 7.1, at such times as the Manager shall reasonably determine,
and pursuant to Section 7.2, as soon as reasonably practicable after the relevant amounts
have been received by the Series; provided that, the Manager shall not be obliged to make
any distribution pursuant to this Section (i) unless there are sufficient amounts available
for such distribution or (ii) which, in the reasonable opinion of the Manager, would or
might leave the Company or such Series with insufficient funds to meet any future
contemplated obligations or contingencies including to meet any Operating Expenses and
outstanding Operating Expenses Reimbursement Obligations (and the Manager is hereby
authorized to retain any amounts within the Company to create a reserve to meet any such
obligations or contingencies), or which otherwise may result in the Company or such
Series having unreasonably small capital for the Company or such Series to continue its
business as a going concern. Subject to the terms of any Series Designation (including,
without limitation, the Preferential Rights, if any, of holders of any other class of Interests
of the applicable Series), distributions shall be paid to the holders of the Interests of a
Series on an equal per Interest basis as of the Record Date selected by the Manager.
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(b) Notwithstanding Section 7.2 and Section 7.3(a), in the event of the
termination and liquidation of a Series, all distributions shall be made in accordance with,
and subject to the terms and conditions of, Article XI.

(©) Each distribution in respect of any Interests of a Series shall be paid by the
Manager, directly or through any other Person or agent, only to the Record Holder of such
Interests as of the Record Date set for such distribution. Such payment shall constitute full
payment and satisfaction of the Company and such Series liability in respect of such
payment, regardless of any claim of any Person who may have an interest in such payment
by reason of an assignment or otherwise.

Section 7.4  Distributions in Kind. Distributions in kind of the entire or part of a Series
Property to Members are prohibited.

ARTICLE VIII
BOOKS, RECORDS, ACCOUNTING AND REPORTS

Section 8.1 Records and Accounting.

(a) The Manager shall keep or cause to be kept at the principal office of the
Company or such other place as determined by the Manager appropriate books and
records with respect to the business of the Company and each Series shall do the same for
each Series, including all books and records necessary to provide to the Members any
information required to be provided pursuant to this Agreement or applicable law. Any
books and records maintained by or on behalf of the Company or any Series in the regular
course of its business, including the record of the Members, books of account and records
of Company or Series proceedings, may be kept in such electronic form as may be
determined by the Manager; provided, that the books and records so maintained are
convertible into clearly legible written form within a reasonable period of time. The books
of the Company and each Series shall be maintained, for tax and financial reporting
purposes, on an accrual basis in accordance with U.S. GAAP, unless otherwise required
by applicable law or other regulatory disclosure requirement.

(b) Each Member shall have the right, upon reasonable demand for any purpose
reasonably related to the Members Interest as a member of the Company (as reasonably
determined by the Manager) to such information pertaining to the Company as a whole and
to each Series in which such Member has an Interest, as provided in Section 18-305 of the
Delaware Act; provided, that prior to such Member having the ability to access such
information, the Manager shall be permitted to require such Member to enter into a
confidentiality agreement in form and substance reasonably acceptable to the Manager. For
the avoidance of doubt, except as may be required pursuant to Article X, a Member shall
only have access to the information (including any Series Designation) referenced with
respect to any Series in which such Member is a Record Holder for that Series’ Interests
and not to any Series in which such Member does not have an interest.
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(c) Except as otherwise set forth in the applicable Series Designation, within
120 calendar days after the end of the fiscal year and 90 calendar days after the end of the
semi-annual reporting date, the Manager shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to
circulate to each Member electronically by e-mail or made available via an online platform:

(1) a financial statement of such Series prepared in accordance with U.S.
GAAP, which includes a balance sheet, profit and loss statement and a cash flow statement;
and

(i) confirmation of the number of Interests in each Member's respective Series
Outstanding as of the end of the most recent fiscal year; provided, that notwithstanding the
foregoing, if the Company or any Series is required to disclose financial information pursuant
to the Securities Act or the Exchange Act (including without limitations periodic reports under
the Exchange Act or under Rule 257 under Regulation A of the Securities Act), then compliance
with such provisions shall be deemed compliance with this Section 8.1(c)(ii) and no further or
earlier financial reports shall be required to be provided to the Members of the applicable Series
with such reporting requirement.

Section 8.2  Fiscal Year. Unless otherwise provided in a Series Designation, the fiscal
year for tax and financial reporting purposes of each Series shall be a calendar year ending
December 31 unless otherwise required by the Code. The fiscal year for financial reporting
purposes of the Company shall be a calendar year ending December 31.

ARTICLE IX
TAX MATTERS

Section 9.1 Partnership Representative.

(a) The Manager is hereby designated as the "partnership representative"
within the meaning of Section 6223 of the Code (the "Partnership Representative"). The
Partnership Representative will have all of the powers and authority of a "partnership
representative” under the Code. The Partnership Representative will represent the
Company (at the its expense) in connection with all administrative and judicial
proceedings by the Internal Revenue Service or any taxing authority involving any tax
return of the Company, and may expend the Company's funds for professional services
and associated costs. The Partnership Representative will provide to the Members notice
of any communication to, from, or agreements with a federal, state or local authority
regarding any return of the Fund, including a summary of the provisions.

(b) The Manager may designate a third-party as the Partnership representative
at any time.

(c) The Partnership Representative shall, within ten (10) days of the receipt of
any notice from the Internal Revenue Service in any administrative proceeding at the
Company level relating to the determination of any Company item of income, gain, loss,
deduction or credit, mail a copy of such notice to each Member.
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Section 9.2 Right to Make §754 Election.

(a) By a vote of the Members of the Company holding a majority interest, the
Members may make or revoke, on behalf of the Company, an election in accordance with
§754 of the Code, so as to adjust the basis of Company property in the case of a
distribution of property within the meaning of §734 of the Code, and in the case of a
transfer of a Company interest within the meaning of §743 of the Code. Each of the
Members of the Company and of each Series shall supply the information necessary to
give effect to such an election.

(b) In the case of a transfer of a Membership interest on the death of a Member
of a Series or of the Company, the basis of the Series’ property or Company’s property
shall be adjusted in the manner provided in Code §743 and the Series or the Company
shall file such information as may be required by the Regulations to report a Code §754
election. In any other case to which the elections under Code §734 and Code §743 may
apply, the Managers shall make such determination from time to time.

Section 9.3  Tax Classification. It is the intention of the parties hereto that the Company
and each Series be classified as a partnership, and not as an association taxable as a corporation,
for federal income-tax purposes, and the provisions of this Agreement shall be interpreted in a
manner consistent with such intention. No election shall be filed with the Internal Revenue Service
(or the tax authorities of any State) to have the Company taxable other than as a partnership for
income-tax purposes without the prior consent of all Members of the Company.

ARTICLE X
REMOVAL AND WITHDRAWAL OF THE MANAGER

Section 10.1 Term & Removal. The Manager may be removed or replaced as the
Manager only as specifically provided in this Section 10.1. Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary contained herein, if a Manager Material Default occurs with respect to a Series then fifty-
one percent (51%) of the Members of such Series may elect to remove the Manager, which removal
shall be effective upon the Manager’s receipt of written notice of such removal from such Members
and the successor Manager of such Series shall be selected by the Members of such Series.

Section 10.2 Withdrawal as Manager. The Manager may withdraw as such if the
Company or any Series becomes required to register as an investment company under the
Investment Company Act, with such withdrawal deemed to occur immediately before such event.
Except as set forth in Section 4.4, in the event of the resignation or withdrawal of Manager of its
rights, obligations and title as Manager, as the case may be, the Manager shall nominate a successor
Manager and the vote of a majority of the Interests held by Members shall be required to elect such
successor Manager. The Manager shall continue to serve as such until such date as a successor
Manager is elected pursuant to the terms of this Section 10.2. If the Manager withdraws without
disposing its Interests, the Manager shall remain a Member of the Company or Series in which it
holds Interests.
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ARTICLE XI
DISSOLUTION, TERMINATION AND LIQUIDATION

Section 11.1 Dissolution and Termination.

(a) The Company shall not be dissolved by the admission of Substitute
Members or Additional Members or the withdrawal of a transferring Member following a
Transfer of any Series. The Company shall dissolve, and its affairs shall be wound up,
upon:

(1) an election to dissolve the Company by the Manager;

(i)  the sale, exchange or other disposition of all or substantially all of
the assets and properties of all Series (which shall include the obsolesce of a Series
Property) and the subsequent election to dissolve the Company by the Manager;

(i)  the entry of a decree of judicial dissolution of the Company pursuant
to the provisions of the Delaware Act;

(iv)  at any time that there are no Members of the Company, unless the
business of the Company is continued in accordance with the Delaware Act; or

(b) A Series shall not be terminated by the admission of Substitute Members or
Additional Members or the withdrawal of a transferring Member following a Transfer of
any Series. Unless otherwise provided in the Series Designation, a Series shall terminate,
and its affairs shall be wound up, upon:

(1) the dissolution of the Company pursuant to Section 11.1(a);

(i1) the sale, exchange or other disposition of all or substantially all of
the assets and properties of such Series (which shall include the obsolesce of the Series
Property) and the subsequent election to dissolve the Company by the Manager. The
termination of the Series pursuant to this sub-paragraph shall not require the consent of the
Members;

(iii)  an event set forth as an event of termination of such Series in the
Series Designation establishing such Series;

(iv)  an election to terminate the Series by the Manager; or

v) at any time that there are no Members of such Series, unless the
business of such Series is continued in accordance with the Delaware Act.

(c) The dissolution of the Company or any Series pursuant to Section 18-
801(a)(3) of the Delaware Act shall be strictly prohibited.
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Section 11.2 Liquidator. Upon dissolution of the Company or termination of any Series,
the Manager shall select one or more Persons (which may be the Manager) to act as Liquidator. In
the case of a dissolution of the Company, (i) the Liquidator shall be entitled to receive
compensation for its services as Liquidator; (ii) the Liquidator shall agree not to resign at any time
without fifteen (15) days prior notice to the Manager and may be removed at any time by the
Manager; (iii) upon dissolution, death, incapacity, removal or resignation of the Liquidator, a
successor and substitute Liquidator (who shall have and succeed to all rights, powers and duties
of the original Liquidator) shall within 30 days be appointed by the Manager. The right to approve
a successor or substitute Liquidator in the manner provided herein shall be deemed to refer also to
any such successor or substitute Liquidator approved in the manner herein provided. Except as
expressly provided in this ARTICLE XI, the Liquidator approved in the manner provided herein
shall have and may exercise, without further authorization or consent of any of the parties hereto,
all of the powers conferred upon the Manager under the terms of this Agreement (but subject to
all of the applicable limitations, contractual and otherwise, upon the exercise of such powers)
necessary or appropriate to carry out the duties and functions of the Liquidator hereunder for and
during the period of time required to complete the winding up and liquidation of the Company as
provided for herein. In the case of a termination of a Series, other than in connection with a
dissolution of the Company, the Manager shall act as Liquidator.

Section 11.3 Liquidation of a Series. In connection with the liquidation of a Series,
whether as a result of the dissolution of the Company or the termination of such Series, the
Liquidator shall proceed to dispose of the assets of such Series, discharge its liabilities, and
otherwise wind up its affairs in such manner and over such period as determined by the Liquidator,
subject to Sections 18-215 and 18-804 of the Delaware Act, the terms of any Series Designation
and the following:

(a) Subject to Section 11.3(¢), the assets may be disposed of by public or private
sale on such terms as the Liquidator may determine. The Liquidator may defer liquidation
for a reasonable time if it determines that an immediate sale or distribution of all or some
of the assets would be impractical or would cause undue loss to the Members of such
Series.

(b) Liabilities of each Series include amounts owed to the Liquidator as
compensation for serving in such capacity (subject to the terms of Section 11.2) as well as
any outstanding Operating Expenses Reimbursement Obligations and any other amounts
owed to Members of such Series otherwise than in respect of their distribution rights under
Article VII. With respect to any liability that is contingent, conditional or unmatured or is
otherwise not yet due and payable, the Liquidator shall either settle such claim for such
amount as it thinks appropriate or establish a reserve of Free Cash Flows or other assets to
provide for its payment. When paid, any unused portion of the reserve shall be applied to
other liabilities or distributed as additional liquidation proceeds.

(c) Subject to the terms of any Series Designation (including, without
limitation, the preferential rights, if any, of holders of any other class of Interests of the
applicable Series), all property and all Free Cash Flows in excess of that required to
discharge liabilities as provided in Section 11.3(b) shall be distributed to the holders of the
Interests of the Series on an equal per Interest basis.
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Section 11.4 Cancellation of Certificate of Formation. In the case of a dissolution of
the Company, upon the completion of the distribution of all Free Cash Flows and property in
connection the termination of all Series (other than the reservation of amounts for payments in
respect of the satisfaction of liabilities of the Company or any Series), the Certificate of Formation
and all qualifications of the Company as a foreign limited liability company in jurisdictions other
than the State of Delaware shall be canceled and such other actions as may be necessary to
terminate the Company shall be taken by the Liquidator or the Manager, as applicable.

Section 11.5 Return of Contributions. None of any Member, the Manager, or any
Officer of the Company or of any Series or any of their respective Affiliates, officers, directors,
members, shareholders, employees, managers, partners, controlling persons, agents or
independent contractors will be personally liable for, or have any obligation to contribute or loan
any monies or property to the Company or any Series to enable it to effectuate, the return of the
Capital Contributions of the Members of a Series, or any portion thereof, it being expressly
understood that any such return shall be made solely from a Series Property.

Section 11.6 Waiver of Partition. To the maximum extent permitted by law, each
Member hereby waives any right to partition of the Company or a Series Property.

ARTICLE XII
AMENDMENT OF AGREEMENT, SERIES DESIGNATION

Section 12.1 General. Except as provided in Section 12.2, the Manager may amend any
of the terms of this Agreement or any Series Designation as it determines in its sole discretion and
without the consent of any of the Members. Without limiting the foregoing, the Manager, without
the approval of any Member, may amend any provision of this Agreement or any Series
Designation, and execute, swear to, acknowledge, deliver, file and record whatever documents
may be required in connection therewith, to reflect:

(a) a change that the Manager determines to be necessary or appropriate in
connection with any action taken or to be taken by the Manager pursuant to the authority
granted in this Agreement;

(b) a change in the name of the Company, the location of the principal place of
business of the Company, the registered agent of the Company or the registered office of
the Company;

() the admission, substitution, withdrawal or removal of Members in
accordance with this Agreement, any Series Designation;

(d) a change that the Manager determines to be necessary or appropriate to
qualify or continue the qualification of the Company as a limited liability company under
the laws of any state or to ensure that each Series will continue to be taxed as an entity for
U.S. federal income tax purposes;
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(e) a change that the Manager determines to be necessary or appropriate to
satisfy any requirements, conditions or guidelines contained in any opinion, directive,
order, ruling or regulation of any federal or state agency or judicial authority or contained
in any federal or state statute (including the Delaware Act);

® a change that the Manager determines to be necessary, desirable or
appropriate to facilitate the trading of the Interests (including, without limitation, the
division of any class or classes or series of Outstanding Interests into different classes or
Series to facilitate uniformity of tax consequences within such classes or Series) or comply
with any rule, regulation, guideline or requirement of any National Securities Exchange or
over-the-counter market on which Interests are or will be listed for trading, compliance
with any of which the Manager deems to be in the best interests of the Company and the
Members;

(2) a change that is required to effect the intent expressed in any Offering
Document or the intent of the provisions of this Agreement or any Series Designation or is
otherwise contemplated by this Agreement or any Series Designation;

(h) a change in the fiscal year or taxable year of the Company or any Series and
any other changes that the Manager determines to be necessary or appropriate;

(1) an amendment that the Manager determines, based on the advice of counsel,
to be necessary or appropriate to prevent the Company, the Manager, any Officers or any
trustees or agents of the Company from in any manner being subjected to the provisions of
the Investment Company Act, the Investment Advisers Act, or plan asset regulations
adopted under ERISA, regardless of whether such are substantially similar to plan asset
regulations currently applied or proposed by the United States Department of Labor;

) an amendment that the Manager determines to be necessary or appropriate
in connection with the establishment or creation of additional Series pursuant to Section
3.3 or the authorization, establishment, creation or issuance of any class or series of

Interests of any Series pursuant to Section 3.4 and the admission of Additional Members;

(k) any other amendment other than an amendment expressly requiring consent
of the Members as set forth in Section 12.2; and

) any other amendments substantially similar to the foregoing.

Section 12.2 Certain Amendment Requirements. Notwithstanding the provisions of
Section 12.1:

(a) no amendment to this Agreement shall be made without the consent of the
Members holding of a majority of all of the Outstanding Interests, that:

(1) decreases the percentage of Outstanding Interests required to take
any action hereunder;
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(i)  materially adversely affects the rights of all of the Members;

(ii1))  modifies Section 12.1(a) or gives any Person the right to dissolve
the Company; or
(iv)  modifies the term of the Company.

(b) no amendment to this Agreement shall be made without the consent of the
Members holding of a majority of the Outstanding Interests of a particular Series, that
materially adversely affects the rights of any of the holders of Interests of that particular
Series as compared to holders of Interests of other Series; and

(c) no amendment to any Series Designation shall be made without the
consent of the Members holding of a majority of the Outstanding Interests of a particular
Series, that materially adversely affects the rights of any of the holders of Interests of that
particular Series.

Section 12.3 Amendment Approval Process.

(a) If the Members desire to amend any provision of this Agreement or the
Series Designation governing such Members, then such Members shall first adopt a
resolution setting forth the amendment proposed, and, notify the Manager, in accordance
with the procedures provided by Section 15.1, of their desire to adopt such proposal.
Within ten (10) days of receiving such notice, the Manager shall, (1) if the proposed
resolution would amend this Agreement, cause a vote of the Members of all Series to be
taken for and against the proposed amendment; or (2) if the proposed resolution would
amend a particular Series Designation only and not this Agreement, cause a vote of the
Members of such Series that would be affected by the amendment to be taken for and
against the proposed amendment.

(b) If the Manager desires to amend any provision of this Agreement or any
Series Designation, other than as permitted by Section 12.1, then it shall first adopt a
resolution setting forth the amendment proposed, declaring its advisability, and, if a vote
of the Members of a Series is required under this Agreement, then call a meeting of the
Members entitled to vote in respect thereof for the consideration of such amendment.
Amendments to this Agreement or any Series Designation may be proposed only by or
with the consent of the Manager. Such meeting shall be called and held upon notice in
accordance with Article XIII of this Agreement. The notice shall set forth such
amendment in full or a brief summary of the changes to be effected thereby, as the
Manager shall deem advisable. At the meeting, a vote of Members entitled to vote thereon
shall be taken for and against the proposed amendment.

(©) A proposed amendment affecting all of the Members of all of the Series
shall be effective upon its approval by the affirmative vote of the holders of not less than
a majority of the Interests of all Series then Outstanding, voting together as a single class,
unless a greater percentage is required under this Agreement or by Delaware law. A
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proposed amendment materially adversely affecting all of the Members of a particular
Series shall be effective upon its approval by the affirmative vote of the holders of not
less than a majority of the Interests of such affected Series then Outstanding, unless a
greater percentage is required under this Agreement or by Delaware law.

(d) Within five (5) days of holding a vote to amend this Agreement, the
Manager shall deliver to each Member prompt notice of the adoption or rejection of each
proposed amendment made to this Agreement. Within five (5) days of holding a vote to
amend a Series Designation, the Manager shall deliver to the Member of such Series
prompt notice of the adoption or rejection of each proposed amendment to such Series
Designation. All such notices shall specify a summary of the adopted or rejected
amendment and the number of votes cast for and against the adopted or rejected
amendment.

ARTICLE XIII
MEMBER MEETINGS

Section 13.1 Meetings. The Company shall not be required to hold an annual meeting of
the Members. The Manager may, whenever it thinks fit, convene meetings of the Company or any
Series. Meetings may be held physically, electronically, or telephonically so long as the Manager
provides notice to each Member specifying the methods and means of attending the meeting (e.g.
dial in phone number, virtual meeting link, physical address)

Section 13.2 Quorum. No business shall be transacted at any meeting unless a quorum
of Members is present at the time when the meeting proceeds to business; in respect of meetings
of the Company, Members holding 50% of Interests, and in respect of meetings of any Series,
Members holding 50% of Interests in such Series, present in person or by proxy shall be a quorum.
In the event a meeting is not quorate, the Manager may adjourn or cancel the meeting, as it
determines in its sole discretion.

Section 13.3 Chairman. Any designee of the Manager shall preside as chairman of any
meeting of the Company or any Series.

Section 13.4 Voting Rights. Subject to the provisions of any class or series of Interests
of any Series then Outstanding, the Members of the Company shall be entitled to vote only on
those matters expressly provided for under the terms of this Agreement and in each Series
Designation.

Section 13.5 Extraordinary Actions. Except as specifically provided in this Agreement,
notwithstanding any provision of law permitting or requiring any action to be taken or authorized
by the affirmative vote of the holders of a greater number of votes, any such action shall be
effective and valid if taken or approved by the affirmative vote of holders of Interests entitled to
cast a majority of all the votes entitled to be cast on the matter.
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Section 13.6 Manager Approval. Other than as provided for in Article X, the
submission of any action of the Company or a Series to Members for their consideration shall first
be approved by the Manager.

Section 13.7 Action By Members without a Meeting. Any Series Designation may
provide that any action required or permitted to be taken by the holders of the Interests to which
such Series Designation relates may be taken without a meeting by the written consent of such
holders or Members entitled to cast a sufficient number of votes to approve the matter as required
by statute or this Agreement, as the case may be.

ARTICLE XIV
CONFIDENTIALITY

Section 14.1 Confidentiality Obligations. All information contained in the accounts
and reports prepared by the Company and any other information disclosed to a Member under or
in connection with this Agreement is confidential and non-public and each Member undertakes to
treat that information as confidential information and to hold that information in confidence. No
Member shall, and each Member shall ensure that every person connected with or of that Member
shall not, disclose to any person or use to the detriment of the Company, any Series, any Member
or any Series Property any confidential information which may have come to its knowledge
concerning the affairs of the Company, any Series, any Member, any Series Property or any
potential Series Property, and each Member shall use any such confidential information
exclusively for the purposes of monitoring and evaluating its investment in the Company. This
Section 14.1 is subject to Section 14.2 and Section 14.3.

Section 14.2 Exempted information. The obligations set out in Section 14.1 shall not
apply to any information which:

(a) is public knowledge and readily publicly accessible as of the date of such
disclosure;

(b) becomes public knowledge and readily publicly accessible, other than as a
result of a breach of this Article XIV; or

(c) has been publicly filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.
Section 14.3 Permitted Disclosures. The restrictions on disclosing confidential

information set out in Section 14.1 shall not apply to the disclosure of confidential information by
a Member:

(a) to any person, with the prior written consent of the Manager (which may
be given or withheld in the Managers sole discretion);

(b) if required by law, rule or regulation applicable to the Member (including
without limitation disclosure of the tax treatment or consequences thereof), or by any
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Governmental Entity having jurisdiction over the Member, or if requested by any
Governmental Entity having jurisdiction over the Member, but in each case only if the
Member (unless restricted by any relevant law or Governmental Entity): (i) provides the
Manager with reasonable advance notice of any such required disclosure; (ii) consults with
the Manager prior to making any disclosure, including in respect of the reasons for and
content of the required disclosure; and (iii) takes all reasonable steps permitted by law that
are requested by the Manager to prevent the disclosure of confidential information
(including (a) using reasonable endeavors to oppose and prevent the requested disclosure
and (b) returning to the Manager any confidential information held by the Member or any
person to whom the Member has disclosed that confidential information in accordance
with this Section); or

() to its trustees, officers, directors, employees, legal advisers, accountants,
investment managers, investment advisers and other professional consultants who would
customarily have access to such information in the normal course of performing their
duties, but subject to the condition that each such person is bound either by professional
duties of confidentiality or by an obligation of confidentiality in respect of the use and
dissemination of the information no less onerous than this Article XIV.

ARTICLE XV
GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 15.1 Addresses and Notices.

(a) Any notice to be served in connection with this Agreement shall be served
in writing via electronic transmission, as defined under Delaware law, (which, for the
avoidance of doubt, shall include e-mail) and any notice or other correspondence under or
in connection with this Agreement shall be delivered to the relevant party at the address
given in this Agreement (or, in the case of a Member, in its Form of Adherence) or to such
other address as may be notified in writing for the purposes of this Agreement to the party
serving the document and that appears in the books and records as administered
electronically by the Company and any Series. The Company intends to make
transmissions by electronic means to ensure prompt receipt and may also publish notices
or reports on a secure electronic application to which all Members have access, and any
such publication shall constitute a valid method of serving notices under this Agreement.

(b) Any notice or correspondence shall be deemed to have been served as
follows:

(1) in the case of hand delivery, on the date of delivery if delivered
before 5:00 p.m. Eastern Standard Time ("EST") on a Business Day and otherwise at 9:00

a.m. on the first Business Day following delivery;

(i1) in the case of service by U.S. registered mail, on the third Business
Day after the day on which it was posted;
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(1i1) in the case of email (subject to oral or electronic confirmation of
receipt of the email in its entirety), on the date of transmission if transmitted before 5:00
p.m. EST on a Business Day and otherwise at 9:00 a.m. EST on the first Business Day
following transmission; and

(iv) in the case of notices published on an electronic application, on the
date of publication if published before 5:00 p.m. EST on a Business Day and otherwise at
9:00 a.m. EST on the first Business Day following publication.

(©) In proving service (other than service by e-mail), it shall be sufficient to
prove that the notice or correspondence was properly addressed and left at or posted by
registered mail to the place to which it was so addressed.

(d)  Any notice to the Company (including any Series) shall be deemed given if
received by any member of the Manager at the principal office of the Company designated
pursuant to Section 2.3. The Manager and the Officers may rely and shall be protected in
relying on any notice or other document from a Member or other Person if believed by it
to be genuine.

Section 15.2 Further Action. The parties to this Agreement shall execute and deliver all
documents, provide all information and take or refrain from taking action as may be necessary or
appropriate to achieve the purposes of this Agreement.

Section 15.3 Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the
benefit of the parties hereto and their heirs, executors, administrators, successors, legal
representatives and permitted assigns.

Section 154 Integration. This Agreement, together with the applicable Form of
Adherence and any applicable Series Designation, constitutes the entire agreement among the
parties hereto pertaining to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior agreements and
understandings pertaining thereto.

Section 15.5 Creditors. None of the provisions of this Agreement shall be for the benefit
of, or shall be enforceable by, any creditor of the Company or any Series.

Section 15.6 Waiver. No failure by any party to insist upon the strict performance of any
covenant, duty, agreement or condition of this Agreement or to exercise any right or remedy
consequent upon a breach thereof shall constitute waiver of any such breach of any other covenant,
duty, agreement or condition.

Section 15.7 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, all of
which together shall constitute an agreement binding on all the parties hereto, notwithstanding that
all such parties are not signatories to the original or the same counterpart. Each party shall become
bound by this Agreement immediately upon affixing its signature hereto (which signature may be
provided electronically) or, in the case of a Person acquiring an Interest, upon acceptance of its
Form of Adherence.
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Section 15.8 Applicable Law and Jurisdiction.

(a) This Agreement and the rights of the parties shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Delaware. Non-contractual
obligations (if any) arising out of or in connection with this agreement (including its
formation) shall also be governed by the laws of the State of Delaware. The rights and
liabilities of the Members in the Company and each Series and as between them shall be
determined pursuant to the Delaware Act and this Agreement. To the extent the rights or
obligations of any Member are different by reason of any provision of this Agreement than
they would otherwise be under the Delaware Act in the absence of any such provision, or
even if this Agreement is inconsistent with the Delaware Act, this Agreement shall control,
except to the extent the Delaware Act prohibits any particular provision of the Delaware
Act to be waived or modified by the Members, in which event any contrary provisions
hereof shall be valid to the maximum extent permitted under the Delaware Act.

(b) To the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, any suit, action or
proceeding seeking to enforce any provision of, or based on any matter arising out of or in
connection with this Agreement, or the transactions contemplated hereby shall be brought
in Chancery Court in the State of Delaware and each Member hereby consents to the
exclusive jurisdiction of the Chancery Court in the State of Delaware (and of the
appropriate appellate courts therefrom) in any suit, action or proceeding, and irrevocably
waives, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, any objection which it may now
or hereafter have to the laying of the venue of any such suit, action or proceeding in any
such court or that any such suit, action or proceeding which is brought in any such court
has been brought in an inconvenient forum. To the fullest extent permitted by applicable
law, each Member hereby waives the right to commence an action, suit or proceeding
seeking to enforce any provisions of, or based on any matter arising out of or in connection
with this Agreement, or the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby in any court
outside of the Chancery Court in the State of Delaware except to the extent otherwise
explicitly provided herein. The provisions of this Section 15.8(b) shall not be applicable to
an action, suit or proceeding to the extent it pertains to a matter as to which the claims are
exclusively vested in the jurisdiction of a court or forum other than the Court of Chancery
of the State of Delaware, or if the Chancery Court in the State of Delaware does not have
jurisdiction over such matter.

(c) Process in any suit, action or proceeding may be served on any party
anywhere in the world, whether within or without the jurisdiction of any court. Without
limiting the foregoing, each party agrees that service of process on such party by written
notice pursuant to Section 11.1 will be deemed effective service of process on such party.

(d) TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW,
EVERY PARTY TO THIS AGREEMENT AND ANY OTHER PERSON WHO
BECOMES A MEMBER OR HAS RIGHTS AS AN ASSIGNEE OF ANY PORTION OF
ANY MEMBERS MEMBERSHIP INTEREST HEREBY WAIVES ANY RIGHT TO A
JURY TRIAL AS TO ANY MATTER UNDER THIS AGREEMENT OR IN ANY
OTHER WAY RELATING TO THE COMPANY OR THE RELATIONS UNDER THIS
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AGREEMENT OR OTHERWISE AS TO THE COMPANY AS BETWEEN OR AMONG
ANY SAID PERSONS. CLAIMS UNDER THE FEDERAL SECURITIES LAWS
SHALL NOT BE SUBJECT TO THIS JURY TRIAL WAIVER PROVISION.

(e) Notwithstanding anything contrary in this Section 15.8, Section 22 of the
Securities Act creates concurrent jurisdiction for federal and state courts over all suits
brought to enforce any duty or liability created by the Securities Act or the rules and
regulations thereunder. Additionally, Section 27 of the Exchange Act creates exclusive
federal jurisdiction over all suits brought to enforce any duty or liability created by the
Exchange Act or the rules and regulations thereunder. As a result, the exclusive forum
provisions in this Agreement will not apply to suits brought to enforce any duty or liability
created by the Securities Act, the Exchange Act or any other claim for which the federal
and state courts have concurrent or exclusive jurisdiction, as the case may be, and Interest
Holders will not be deemed to have waived our compliance with the federal securities laws
and the rules and regulations thereunder.

Section 15.9 Invalidity of Provisions. If any provision of this Agreement is or becomes
invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, the validity, legality and enforceability of the
remaining provisions contained herein shall not be affected thereby.

Section 15.10 Consent of Members. Each Member hereby expressly consents and
agrees that, whenever in this Agreement it is specified that an action may be taken upon the
affirmative vote or consent of less than all of the Members, such action may be so taken upon the
concurrence of less than all of the Members and each Member shall be bound by the results of
such action.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed as of the date first
written above.

MANAGER: VYLON BALANCE SOLUTIONS, LLC

DocuSigned by:

By: (41%%

T46C5BB7ACEFAEC

Victor Rosales
Member

MEMBER: VYLON BALANCE SOLUTIONS, LLC

By: (4 Vf%%

Victor Rosales
Member
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COUNTERPART SIGNATURE PAGE TO
AMENDED AND RESTATED
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY OPERATING AGREEMENT

Reference is made to the Amended and Restated Operating Agreement of the SMART
VYLON, LLC, dated as of September 29, 2020 (as may be amended from time to time, the
“Operating Agreement”’), by and among the Members of NECTAR SERIES, a series of SMART

VYLON, LLC.

The undersigned hereby executes this counterpart signature page to the Operating
Agreement and authorizes this signature page to be attached as a counterpart signature page to the

Operating Agreement.

The undersigned acknowledges that he/she/it is a Member for all purposes under the
Operating Agreement and that, in such capacity, the undersigned will be bound by, and will be

OF

SMART VYLON, LLC

entitled to the rights and benefits of, the terms and provisions of the Operating Agreement.

MEMBER:

FOR INDIVIDUALS:

Print Name

Signature

Home Address

Social Security No.:

Total Investment

Date:
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FOR ENTITIES:

Print Entity Name

Signature of Authorized Representative

Business Address

EIN No.:

Total Investment

Date:
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Solutions, LLC

EXHIBIT A
Smart Vylon, LLC
Name Membership Interest To_t?l Percentage
. Units Interest
(Units) _— interest
Vylon Balance 100 100 000
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EXHIBIT B

Nectar Series Designation Agreement

In accordance with the above Amended and Restated Operating Agreement of Smart
Vylon, LLC (the “Operating Agreement”), this Series Designation Agreement, dated as of
September 29, 2020 (the “Nectar Series Designation Agreement”), is entered into by and between
Smart Vylon, LLC (the “Manager”’) and the Member on the signature page hereto, both associated
as Members of this newly created series (the “Nectar Series). Capitalized terms used herein and
not otherwise defined are used as defined in the Operating Agreement.

Name of Series
Effective Date of Establishment

Manager

Investment Purpose and
Series Property

Series Members

Interests

Management Fee

No Preferential Rights

Nectar Series, a series of Smart Vylon, LLC.
September 29, 2020

Vylon Balance Solutions, LLC, was appointed as the
Manager of Nectar Series with effect from the date of this
Nectar Series Designation Agreement. Agreement and shall
continue to act as the Manager of Nectar Series until the
dissolution of the Nectar Series pursuant to Section 11.1(b)
or its replacement pursuant to Section 4.3 or Article X.

The Series was formed for the purpose of owning an interest
in real property as described in the Offering Document
provided to prospective investors in connection with the
Initial Offering of Nectar Series Interests.

The members of the Nectar Series shall include (1) the
Manager, and (2) each Person who executes this Nectar
Series Designation Agreement and purchases or subscribes
for the Interests in accordance with the Operating
Agreement.

The maximum and minimum number of the Nectar Series
Interests the Company shall initially offer shall be listed in
the Offering Document provided to prospective investors in
connection with the Initial Offering of Nectar Series
Interests. The Nectar Series Interests represent interests only
in the Nectar Series and not in Smart Vylon, LLC or any
other Series thereof.

None
No Member holding the Nectar Series Interests shall be

entitled to any preemptive, preferential or similar rights
connection with the issuance of the Nectar Series Interests.
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Voting

Splits

Other rights

Officers

Minimum Interests
Fiscal Year
Information Reporting

Dissolution

Subject to Section 3.5, the Nectar Series Interests shall
entitle the Record Holders to one vote per Interest on any
and all matters submitted to the consent or approval of the
Members of Nectar Series.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the affirmative vote of the
holders of not less than a majority of the Nectar Series
Interests then outstanding shall be required for: (a) any
amendment to the Agreement (including this Series
Designation) that would adversely change the rights of the
Nectar Series Interests; (b) mergers, consolidations or
conversions of the Nectar Series, but not the Company; and
(c) all such other matters as the Manager, determines shall
require the approval of the holders of the outstanding Nectar
Series Interests voting as a separate class.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the separate approval of the
holders of the Nectar Series Interests shall not be required
for any of the other matters specified under Section 12.1.

There shall be no subdivision of the Nectar Series Interests
other than in accordance with Section 3.7.

Holders of the Nectar Series Interests shall have no
conversion, exchange, sinking fund, redemption or appraisal
rights, no preemptive rights to subscribe for any securities of
the Company and no preferential rights to distributions of the
Nectar Series Interests.

There shall initially be no specific officers of the Nectar
Series, although, the Manager may appoint Officers of the
Nectar Series from time to time, in its sole discretion.

One (1) Interest per Member.

As stated in Section 8.2.

As stated in Section 8.1(c¢).

A Series shall remain in existence until the earlier of the
following: (i) the dissolution of the Company, (ii) the
election of the Manager to dissolve such Series; (iii) the sale,
exchange or other disposition of substantially all of the
assets of the Series; or (iv) at any time that the Series no
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Liquidation

Amendments to this Series
Designation Agreement

Action by Series Members
Without a Meeting

longer has any members, unless the business is continued in
accordance with the LLC Act.

As stated in Section 11.3.

As stated in Article XII.

Any action required or permitted to be taken by the holders
of the Interests to which such Series Designation relates may
be taken without a meeting by the written consent of such
holders or Members entitled to cast a sufficient number of
votes to approve the matter as required by statute or this
Agreement, as the case may be.

[Series Designation Signature Page Follows)
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IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, the parties hereto have executed this Nectar Series Designation
Agreement as of September 29, 2020.

MANAGER: VYLON BALANCE SOLUTIONS, LLC
By:
Victor Rosales
Member
NECTAR SERIES MEMBER:
FOR INDIVIDUALS: FOR ENTITIES:
Print Name Print Entity Name
Signature Signature of Authorized Representative
Home Address Business Address
Social Security No.: EIN No.:
Total Investment Total Investment
Date: Date:

51



Exhibit E

Property Purchase Agreement



PRIVATE PURCHASE-SALE AGREEMENT EXECUTED AND ENTERED INTO BY
AND BETWEEN THE COMPANY “VYLON BALANCE SOLUTIONS” SOCIEDAD ANOMINA
DE CAPITAL VARIABLE, HEREIN REPRESENTED BY MR. VICTOR HUGO ROSALES
ARANDA, (“COMMITTED SELLER”), AND Smart Vylon, LLC, Congreso Series a Delaware
Series Limited Liability Company (‘COMMITTED PURCHASER”) (COLLECTIVELY, THE
“PARTIES”) UNDER THE FOLLOWING ANTECEDENTS, REPRESENTATIONS, AND
CLAUSES:

ANTECEDENTS.

A. AREA: eight thousand seven hundred and sixty one square feet .

B. MEASUREMENTS AND BOUNDS: to the north forty meters with lot #06 and #13; to
the south in twenty meters with calle Plomeros and twenty meters with lot #11, to the east in
thrity meters meters with calle sastreria, to the west twenty meters with lot #11, #12 and ten
meters with calle Jiquilpan.

REPRESENTATIONS:
. The “COMMITTED SELLER” represents:

a) WHEREAS it is an entity duly organized pursuant to the laws of our country.
This is accredited through public deed number 57,857, dated June 26, 2015, executed before
Mr. Miguel Soberén Mainero, Notary Public number 181 of and for Mexico City, of which the
first official copy has been registered in the public registry of commerce under electronic folio
number 540131-1.

b) WHEREAS its legal representative has all attributes as required to execute
this agreement, same that have been granted thereto via Public Deed 57,857 dated June
26, 2015 executed before Mr. Miguel Soberén Mainero, Esq., Notary Public number 181 of
and for Mexico City and states that the same have not been revoked, restricted, or modified
in any way whatsoever.

c) WHEREAS it is registered before the Revenue Service, under taxpayer’s ID
VBS150626QES3.

d) WHEREAS the real estate subject matter hereof is free from any
encumbrances and ownership limitation - except for the mortgage in favor of “Banco
Inmobiliario Mexicano” Sociedad Anonima Institucion de Banca Multiple. Such mortgage has
been mentioned in antecedent two hereof.



e) WHEREAS on the real estate listed in antecedent one construction of a 45-
apartment building is in process. On this building property under homeowner’s association
regime known as development VYLON BALANCE SOLUTIONS will be set up. This estate will
be appointed for residential living and long term rentals.

f) The real estate will have all infrastructures as required for proper provision of all
basic services. Also, on the date of surrender of the Units (as defined herein), it will be current
with the payment of any taxes, contributions, and considerations for the respective services.

g) WHEREAS it is its intent to execute this purchase-sale agreement resulting from
the jointly owned property regime that is being conducted on the real estate described in
antecedent one hereof.

Il The “COMMITTED PURCHASER” represents

a) It is a limited liability company duly formed and validly existing, and in good
standing under the laws of the State of Delaware, is qualified to conduct business in the State of
Delaware, and has the requisite power and authority to enter into this Agreement and the
instruments referenced herein, and to consummate the transaction contemplated hereby;

b) It desires to execute this agreement in the terms and conditions as therein, for it
knows the full construction project of the development, the characteristics thereof (e.g., the
extension of the land, the construction area, the type of structure, facilities, finishings,
accessories, common areas with other real property, percentage of undivided property, as the
case may be), and all utilities on and in the real estate, as well as any authorizations, licenses
or permits issued by the appropriate authorities for construction;

c) It agrees to empower the “COMMITTED SELLER’ to utilize its personal data in
accordance with the Federal Protection of Personal Data in Possession of Private Parties for
the purposes hereof;

d) it understands that this transaction is executed under the ad-corpus mode and,
therefore, any difference of approximately in the area and boundaries of the real estate subject
matter hereof, will inure to the benefit or detriment of the "COMMITTED PURCHASER", as
well as the final purchase-sale agreement that is hereby notarized before a Notary Public; and



Mll. The “PARTIES” represent as follows:

a) WHEREAS the legal capacity under which they appear to the execution hereof
is mutually and reciprocally acknowledged for all legal/contractual purposes as warranted in
the terms hereof;

b) WHEREAS they execute this agreement willingly, freely, and responsibly
without the intervention of fraud, lesion, error, and/or any vice of consent voiding the same, for
both parties have taken part in the preparation thereof and have previously agreed on any
agreements in the clauses as hereinbelow;

c) For the legal certainty of the “PARTIES”, all agreements executed by reason of
the execution hereof will be the only ones they acknowledge and will acknowledge at all times
therebetween. For this reason, no agreement may be orally established and should any
amendment hereto arise, the same shall be approved by both parties. For this purpose, an
Addendum or amending agreement shall subscribed.

In view of the foregoing, the parties expressly state their will to execute this agreement
and for the purposes thereof they execute the following:

CLAUSES:

“ONE. “VYLON BALANCE SOLUTIONS” SOCIEDAD ANOMINA DE CAPITAL
VARIABLE, via its representative as above, promises to transfer ad-corpus to Smart Vylon,
LLC Congreso Series and they undertake to acquire via a trust set up in a restricted zone or
through the purchase-sale thereof (if so allowed by their migration status), private units
numbers 206, 207, 305, 306, 308, 405, 407(the "Units") currently being constructed in the
jointly owned property regime identified as “VYLON BALANCE SOLUTIONS” and that will be
completed on the parcel of real property located at calle la calle Plomeros numero 198, colonia
Janitzio, Delegacion Venustiano Carranza, en esta Ciudad de Meéxico, with such area,
measurements, and boundaries as listed in the descriptive memory of the jointly owned
property regime referred to in the antecedents hereof, which are hereby incorporated by
reference.



TWO. TRANSFER VALUE. The parties agree that the transfer value or purchase price
will be the amount of $130,000 USD (One Hundred and Thirty Thousand USD) per Unit and
the “COMMITTED PURCHASER” will pay the same amount to the “COMMITTED SELLER’,
through a banking transfer, check, or any other way permitted by the Mexican law upon
execution of the deed before a Notary Public before whom the final agreement is hereby
notarized.

By virtue of the migration status that to this date is borne by the “COMMITTED
PURCHASER’ in its capacity as a foreigner and pursuant to any restrictions set forth in Article
27 Section |, of the Political Constitution of the United Mexican States and Article 11, Section Il
of the Foreign Investment Act, the latter undertakes to set up a trust in a restricted zone,
whereby the “COMMITTED SELLER” undertakes to contribute with the real estate subject
matter hereof to the equity of the trust in its capacity as TRUSTOR, provided, that the full
transfer value is paid off; and whereby Smart Vylon, LLC Congreso Series will be appointed as
BENEFICIARIES in the first place in said trust. The “COMMITTED PURCHASER” will be solely
required to carry any efforts out and any formalities through, and obtain any permits and
authorizations as required and expedient for the setup of the trust in a restricted zone. Further,
it may freely choose the credit institution that will serve as TRUSTEE and the purposes of the
trust - including considering utilization and exploitation of the real estate, as well as any rights
to the use or enjoyment thereof (including, as the case may be, the attainment of fruits,
products, and, in general, any returns resulting from the for-profit operation and exploitation,
via any third parties or the trust institution of the real estate).

Where the “COMMITTED PURCHASER” changes or modifies its migration status and
setting up the trust is not required, the transfer of the ownership of the real estate subject
matter hereof will be via the final purchase-sale agreement or any other agreement whereby
full ownership of the real estate is transferred.

The sold property will be transferred to the "COMMITTED PURCHASER” or to the
TRUSTEE chosen by the COMMITTED PURCHASER (a) with no ownership limitation
whatsoever; (b) with no encumbrance whatsoever, (c) with no indebtedness (even fiscal or
labor). Any indebtedness of any nature to the date of execution of the public instrument before
a notary, will be on the exclusive account of the "COMMITTED SELLER".

THREE. THE "COMMITTED SELLER" undertakes to carry any efforts out and any
formalities through as required in order to cancel the mortgage upon the real estate subject
matter hereof, and to notarize the cancellation of the mortgage before a Notary Public -
whether previously or in the same instrument wherein the notarization of the final transfer
agreement is recorded.



FOUR. Real and legal surrender of the real estate subject matter hereof will be made
to the “COMMITTED PURCHASER” on February 27, 2022 (the "Transfer Date"); provided,
that the “COMMITTED PURCHASER” has paid off the entirety of the transfer price of the real
estate - except as otherwise agreed between the parties.

On the date on which the “COMMITTED SELLER” makes available to the
“COMMITTED PURCHASER” possession of the real estate, the same will be vacated, with any
finishing as agreed, current with the payment of any respective taxes, contributions, and
maintenance fees, as well as with respect to any consideration for any service related with the
real estate.

FIVE. The “COMMITTED PURCHASER” undertakes to appoint the real estate for a
purpose not contravening any local or federal provisions, since the appointment of the real
estate will be for housing. Therefore, in its capacity as owner of the real estate shall strictly
fulfill said appointment. The real estate may not be used with a purpose other than housing.

As a consequence of the foregoing, at all times the appropriate Condominium Rules
that for that purpose is issued for said ownership regime shall be observed.

SIX. The "COMMITTED PURCHASER” may not assign or transfer in any way in favor
of a third party, any rights and obligations for which it is responsible by virtue hereof - except
for the prior authorization in writing and expressly by the “COMMITTED SELLER".

SEVEN. The Parties agree that the final purchase-sale agreement or contribution to
the trust will be conducted at the latest of on February 27, 2022 as well as delivery of the
apartment subject matter hereof. This term may be extended or reduced by agreement of the
parties, with no penalties or extraordinary charges for any of them.

EIGHT. The Parties agree this Agreement will not terminate and COMMITTED
SELLER will not be required to pay liquidated damages if the “COMMITTED SELLER” fails to
obtain any licenses, authorizations, permits, or any other document as required for the
organization of the jointly owned property regime which it shall obtain from the various
authorities and agencies of the city of Mexico in the time set forth in the clause above for the
notarization of the final agreement before a notary public and that, as the case may be, rely on
a third party (a third party is understood, without limitation, authorities, records, government
agencies, private parties, credit institutions, or any other on which the perfection of the final
purchase-sale agreement relies).



Further, the parties may terminate this agreement without any legal dispute and will
return any amounts that had been surrendered, as the case may be, with no fee or liquidated
damages, or, if so agreed, meeting to reach an agreement as best advisable for the resolution
of any contingencies preventing execution of the final agreement.

NINE. Regardless of the provisions in the clauses above, the parties agree that either
party may terminate this agreement, with no responsibility to the other party, if any of the
following occurs:

A. The “COMMITTED SELLER”

a) Fails to surrender the real estate to the “COMMITTED PURCHASER’ in the
minimum and essential conditions of habitability and hygiene so as to be inhabited and enjoyed
in the term and under the conditions as in this agreement on or before the Transfer Date;

b) Fails to surrender any documents as required to obtain all necessary licenses
and permits to operate the property for the purposes described herein on or before the
Transfer Date; provided, that it was required to so provide;

c) Fails to make payment for contributions and considerations on the real estate
subject matter hereof for any services - including associated maintenance fees - prior to
notarization of the final purchase-sale agreement;

d) The Units or Property should not have the infrastructure for proper supply and
operation of basic utilities - water, energy, drainage, and gas - for use and utilization thereof;

e) The Units or Property is encumbered, mortgaged, leased, or transferred to a
third party, without notice to the “COMMITTED PURCHASER”; or

f) The mortgage encumbering the real estate subject matter hereof is not canceled
on or before the Transfer Date.

B. The “COMMITTED PURCHASER”

a) Fails to make the payment it undertook to make in clause TWO hereof, on the
terms therein;

b) Delivered false or altered information or documentation to the “COMMITTED
SELLER” which COMMITTED SELLER relied on and caused it material harm;



C) If it promises to sell or commit by any means ownership of the Units, without the
prior authorization in writing by the “COMMITTED SELLER”, or without subjecting to the
conditions set thereby;

d) Fully or partially transfers - except for the case of inheritance - ownership of the
Units - including by trust - without the prior authorization in writing of the “COMMITTED SELLER
“, or without subjecting to the conditions set thereby;

e) Where the Units are surrendered to the “COMMITTED PURCHASER” prior to the
notarization of the final agreement, the latter fails to maintain the real estate in good condition,
preventing it from suffering deterioration additional to that arising from normal use, and performs
therein or thereon any modifications, works altering, compromising, or modifying the structure of
the jointly owned property regime, or fails to observe that set forth in the rules of the jointly owned
property regime governing the building;

f) If declared in bankruptcy or insolvency - whether by a ruling of a competent
judge or by facts so presuming, and which compromise payment of the purchase price;

g) If fails to obtain any licenses, permits, or authorizations as appropriate for
acquisition of the apartment subject matter hereof, or setup of the trust whereto the real estate
subject matter hereof should be contributed with; by virtue of the status as foreigner it holds to
this date; or

h) For all other cases wherein, pursuant to the applicable law, fulfilment of any
obligations contracted for by the "COMMITTED PURCHASER” herein, became impossible in
advance.

TEN. WHEREAS for the purposes provided for in Article seventeen of the Confiscation Act,
the “COMMITTED PURCHASER” knows the contents of Articles four and five of said Act, stating
that any resources it possess and which will be used to pay the purchase price of the real estate
subject matter hereof, have been legally obtained; and that it acts in good faith in its capacity as
holder thereof.

ELEVEN.- All taxes, rights, expenses, and fees that are generated from the execution of
the final agreement before a Notary Public, will be on account of the “COMMITTED PURCHASER” -



except for the income tax and cancellation of the mortgage - which will be on account of
the*"COMMITTED SELLER” - if so generated.

TWELVE. JURISDICTION. This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance
with the laws of Mexico City.

The “PARTIES” appoint as their domiciles for service of process of all type of notifications
inherent to the obligations and rights herein contracted for the following:

If to the “COMMITTED SELLER”: Calle Recreo 51 numero 7, colonia Actipan, codigo
postal 03230, Alcaldia Benito Juarez, Ciudad de México.

If to the “COMMITTED PURCHASER’: 8 The Green Suite A 1900, Dover, Delaware
199018 The Green, STE A, Dover, Delaware 19901

For the construction, performance, and execution hereof, the parties expressly subject
themselves to the applicable law and the appropriate courts in Mexico City, and waive any other
jurisdiction, venue, or competence that might correspond to them by reason of their present or
future domiciles or for any other reason.

THE PARTIES, HAVING READ THIS AGREEMENT AND KNOWING ITS SCOPE,
RESPONSIBILITIES, AND LEGAL EFFECTS, AND STATING THERE IS NO FRAUD,
VIOLENCE, OR BAD FAITH THEREIN, EXECUTE THE SAME IN TWO COUNTERPARTIES IN
MEXICO CITY AS OF March 21st, 2021.



THE PARTIES

The “COMMITTED SELLER” The “COMMITTED PURCHASER’

VYLON BALANCE SOLUTIONS, S.A. DE C.V. SMART VYLON, LLC

By: Vylon Balance Solutions, LLC,
Title: Manager

MNidse /.
VICTOR H(JGO RC;/SZLES ARANDA
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By:

Name: Victor Hﬂgo Rosales Aranda
Title: Chief Executive Officer of
Vylon Balance Solutions, LLC
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SMART VYLON

CONGRESO PARK

We are a Real Estate developer and investment vehicle:

-With more than 20 years of experience.

-40+ projects developed and 900 units delivered to clients,

-5 projects in execution and 29 in pipeline

-Smart Vylon's estimated development portfolio for the next 5 years is valued at
507M USD with an expected revenue of 602M USD

Our strategy is to invest in diversified middle and low rise residential apartment
developments in Mexico City and the Riviera Maya.

We are eco friendly, promote art as well as social inclusion.

iFor the first time! After the success of our Nectar Crowdfunding!

- We are offering investors the opportunity to participate through
crowdfunding in one of our projects in our latest opportunity
- Enabling investors to buy apartments at a pre sale price.

Mexico is the 15th largest economy in the world

and the 2nd in Latin America. With a 1.2BN USD GDP, it is ranked among the 10
fastest growing property markets in the world being Mexico City and the Riviera
Maya its largest contributors.

Congreso Park
Congreso Park is Multifamily located in the heart of Mexico City only 10 minutes

away from buzzing neighborhoods like Condesa and Roma and Historical sites
such as El Zécalo and Bellas Artes.



The 6 story building has a total of 45 units. Each one has:

SMART VYLON

- 753 sqft

- 2 bedrooms

- Parking

- 1 Full bathroom
- Living Room

- Dining area

- Elevator

We provide sustainable and intelligent housing for people offering:

Savings on maintenance cost through renewable technologies such as solar
panels.

Mexico City is the political, economic and social hub of México, known for:

-Historic sites
-Architecture,

-Museums and Galleries
-Culture Gastronomy
-Nightlife and gastronomy

Join our investor community right away, and receive incredible benefits such as

courtesy nights in Tulum and incredible art experience.




